Lowell Joint School District
11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier, CA 90603

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
March 7, 2022 — 7:30 p.m.

L

AGENDA

Call to Order

A.

B.

C.

Comments from the Public

L.

Board Agenda Items: Any member of the audience may speak to
any agenda item by submitting a “Presentation Card” (supply
located on the table near double exit doors). Please hand the
completed card to the secretary. When the item is considered by the
Board, individuals submitting presentation cards will be called upon
prior to Board action. Speakers must limit their comments to three
(3) minutes. The Board shall limit the total time for public input on
each item to 30 minutes. With Board consent, the president may
increase or decrease the time allowed for public presentation,
depending on the topic and the number of persons wishing to be
heard.

Topics Not on Agenda: Anyone in attendance may address any
issue by following the same identification process as shown in I-A-
1 above. Since the Board cannot take action on items which are not
on the agenda, such items will be referred to the Superintendent for
handling. Individuals interested in speaking to items which are not
on the agenda will be called upon under Item IVA.

Closed Session

1,

Pupil Personnel Matters/Advice from Legal Counsel — Existing
and Anticipated Litigation (Disclosure of Case Name Would
Jeopardize Potential Settlement Negotiations)/Real
Property/Liability Claims/Negotiations/ Public Employee
Appointments — Discipline — Dismissal — Release (Government
Code Section 54957)/ Employer/Employee Relations

Public Employee Negotiations — Certificated School Employees
Association (LJEA)/ Classified School Employees Association
(CSEA); Agency Negotiator: Mr. Coombs

Superintendent’s Evaluation (Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54957)

Regular Session

6:30 p.m.

INFORMATION

6:30 p.m.

Approximately
7:30 p.m.



I1.

IIL

Meeting of the Board of Trustees

D. Regular Session

Preliminary Procedural — Board President

A.
B.
Cz

D.

F.
G.

Reports

Salute to the Flag

Reporting Out Action (if any) Taken in Closed Session

Introductions and Welcome of Guests

Comments from the Public

1.

Board Agenda Items: Any member of the audience may speak to
any agenda item by submitting a “Presentation Card” (supply
located on the table near double exit doors). Please hand the
completed card to the secretary. When the item is considered by
the Board, individuals submitting presentation cards will be
called upon prior to Board action. Speakers must limit their
comments to three (3) minutes. The Board shall limit the total
time for public input on each item to 30 minutes. With Board
consent, the president may increase or decrease the time allowed
for public presentation, depending on the topic and the number of
persons wishing to be heard.

Topics Not on Agenda: Anyone in attendance may address any
issue by following the same identification process as shown in II-
D-1 above. Since the Board cannot take action on items which
are not on the agenda, such items will be referred to the
Superintendent for handling. Individuals interested in speaking
to items which are not on the agenda will be called upon under
Item IVA.

Acknowledgement of Correspondence to the Board
Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes from the February 7, 2022, Regular Board Meetings

A. Timely Information from Board and Superintendent —
Board President

B. Recognition of the ACSA Every Student Succeeds Award

March 7, 2022
Page 2

INFORMATION

INFORMATION
ACTION
ACTION

INFORMATION



Meeting of the Board of Trustees
March 7, 2022 ‘

Page 3

IV.

VL

VIIL

* % * RECESS * * * *

C.  School Reports
(School Reports will be the First Meeting of the Month)

A. Topics Not on the Agenda

B. COVID 19 Updates

General — Jim Coombs

A. Approve Agreement and Proposal with True North, Inc., to Assist in the
Possible Issuance of General Obligation Bonds and Other Debt
Instruments

B. Adoption of the 2022/23 Student Attendance Calendar

C. Adoption of the 2023/24 Student Attendance Calendar

D. Resolution 2021/2022 No. 853 Order of Biennial Trustee Election ‘and
Specifications of the Election Order for Los Angeles County

El Resolution 2021/2022 No. 854 Order of Biennial Trustee Election and
Specifications of the Election Order for Orange County

Business Services — Andrea Reynolds

A. Approval of a Positive Certification of the 2021/2022 Second Interim
Report, and Concurrent Approval of Corresponding Budget
Adjustments From the First Interim Report

B. Presentation of Audit Report for 2020/2021
Human Resources — Jim Coombs

A. Public Hearing: Lowell Joint Education Association Initial Proposal
for a Successor Agreement

B. Public Hearing: Initial Proposal for public comment from the Lowell
Joint School District regarding the California School Employees
Association Agreement sections to be negotiated.

C. Release of Non-Reelect Temporary Certificated, Probationary,
Administrative Employees
1. Resolution 2021/22 No. 855, to Release and Non-Reelect

ACTION

ACTION
ACTION

ACTION/
(RESOLUTION)

ACTION/
(RESOLUTION)

INFORMATION/
ACTION

INFORMATION

INFORMATION/
PUBLIC HEARING

INFORMATION/
PUBLIC HEARING

ACTION/



Meeting of the Board of Trustees

Temporary Certificated Employees

Resolution 2021/22 No. 856, to Release Probationary
Certificated Employees

VIII. Educational Services — Sheri McDonald

A.

B.

Comprehensive School Safety Plan for 2021/22 School Year

Approval of Winter Submission of the 2021/22 Consolidated
Application

[X. Facilities & Operations — David Bennett

A. Resolution 2021/22 No. 857 Declaring March 7-11, 2022 as
“National School Breakfast Week”
B. Ratification of Professional Services Agreement with A-Tech
Consulting for Hazardous Materials Testing and Assessment
Services at Meadow Green Elementary School
X. Consent Calendar

Action by the Board in adoption of the “Consent Calendar” means
that all items appearing in this section are adopted by one single
motion, unless a Member of the Board or the Superintendent
requests that any such item be removed from the “Consent
Calendar” and voted upon separately. Generally, “Consent
Calendar” items are enacted upon in one action to conserve time
and permit focus on other-than-routine matters.

A. General - Jim Coombs

1. Approval of GigaKOM to Provide Wireless Access Points and
Computer Networking equipment for the District

2. Approval of Agreement with Orange County Department of

Education to Provide Translation Services during the 2021/2022
school year

Business Services — Andrea Reynolds

1. Purchase Order Listing Report/Check Register 2021/2022 #8

March 7, 2022
Page 4

(RESOLUTION)

ACTION/
(RESOLUTION)

INFORMATION/
ACTION

INFORMATION

ACTION/
(RESOLUTION)

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION
ACTION/

(RATIFICATION)

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)



Meeting of the Board of Trustees

March 7, 2022
Page 5

2

3.

Consolidated Check Register Listing Report 2021/2022 #7

Approval of Bus Transportation Services for the 2021-2022
School Year

Approval of Agreement with Magic Jump Rentals, Inc. to
Provide Inflatables for Rancho Starbuck Intermediate School
Boot Camp for the 2021-2022 School Year

C. Human Resources — Jim Coombs

1.

Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2021/22 #8
Which Includes Hiring, Resignations, Contract Adjustments,
and Retirements for Certificated, Classified, and Confidential
Employees

D. Educational Services — Sheri McDonald

L.

W

Approval of Agreement with Chris Becerra Consulting
Services to Provide Services during 2021-2022 School Year

Approval of Extended Field Trip to Catalina Island Marine
Institute from March 14-16, 2022

Approval of Consultant Agreement with Nancy J. Kemp to
Provide Consultation for Data Support at Rancho-Starbuck
Intermediate School for the 2021/22 School Year

Approval of Consultant Agreement with Isabel Araiza to
Provide Drumline Instruction at Rancho-Starbuck
Intermediate School for the 2021/22 School Year

Approval of Agreement #10000593 with Orange County
Department of Education

XI.  Board Member/Superintendent Comments

XII. Adjournment

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)
ACTION

ACTION

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION

ACTION

ACTION

ACTION

ACTION

INFORMATION

ADJOURNMENT

Recess and/or closed session to be called at the discretion of the Board. Meetings of the Board shall adjourn at
or before 11:00 p.m. unless approved by a majority vote of the Board.

Materials related to this agenda submitted to the Board of Trustees less than 72 hours prior to the meeting are
available for public inspection by contacting the Superintendent’s Office at 11019 Valley Home Avenue,

Whittier, CA 90603, or (562) 902-4203 during normal business hours.
The next scheduled Lowell Joint School District Board of Trustees Meeting is Monday, April 4, 2022.



631

LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT - Lowell Joint School District
11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier, CA 90603

MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

February 7, 2022

Call to Order

Topics Not on the Agenda

Closed Meeting

Call to Order

Reporting Out Action (if
any) Taken in Closed
Session

Introduction / Welcome

Acknowledgement of
Correspondence

Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes

President Salinas called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. at Lowell Joint
School District, 11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier, CA 90603
None.

President Salinas declared the meeting recessed to closed session at 6:31 p.m.

President Salinas reconvened the meeting to order at 7:34 p.m.

The flag salute was led by Anthony Zegarra, Board of Trustees Board
Member.

Trustees Present: Melissa A. Salinas, Karen L. Shaw, Anastasia M.
Shackelford, William A. Hinz, Anthony A. Zegarra

Trustees Absent: None

Staff Present: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools, Andrea
Reynolds, Assistant Superintendent of Administrative
Services; Sheri McDonald, Assistant Superintendent of
Educational Services; and David Bennett, Assistant
Superintendent of Facilities anid Operations

Staff Absent: None.

None.

President Salinas welcomed the many guests in attendance, staff members
present, guests, Leslie Mangold, LJEA lead negotiator and CSEA President,
Darleene Pullen.

None.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5-0) to approve the
February 7, 2022, Board agenda.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5-0) to approve the

minutes from the January 10, 2022, Regular Board Meeting and the January
24,2022, Special Board Meeting.



Topics Not on the Agenda

February 7, 2022
Page 632

Laura Curbell — Spoke regarding masking of children. Her concern regarding
her niece being conscientious about wearing the mask and her great nephew’s
health due to wearing the masks.

Leslie Mangold — LJEA. Spoke of her experience of 26 years teaching in
Lowell Joint District at Meadow Green Elementary School and being Lowell
Joint Strong. Refreshing to speak to the board in times of economic certainty.
The recent Governor’s overview and school districts being given increase in
per pupil funding and substantial COLA to give pay increase to their
employees. The COLA most likely increase to over six percent this year. The
district being in a healthy financial state for the 21-22 school year.
Surrounding districts given teacher increase. Asking that Lowell Joint take
care of their family.

Michelle Bohen- She joined the Lowell Joint family 24 years ago coming
from the private sector. She spoke of given curriculum and filling in the gaps
to finding ways to supplement and purchasing materials for her classroom.
The bargaining team negotiating raises for teachers. She spoke of calling in
sick, creating sub plans, and filling out a form to explain why being out. They
should have to explain medical conditions on the form.

Teddy Sachs — Social Studies teacher at Rancho, teaching since 1988 and the
last 24 years here at Lowell Joint. Shared her concerns with the ongoing
contract negotiations. Minimum expectations retroactive COLA for this year
and additional compensation next year. Inflation currently over 7% and the
Governor has allocated additional funds to supplement budgets. Meant to be
spent on resources for students and teachers are the greatest resource they
have. The Board refuses to change the number of compelling personal
necessity days from two to more reasonable. They need to make all personal
necessity.

Deanna Morrison — 30" year teaching in the district. Her concern is between
the rising cost of living and the current salary schedule. Inflation at 7% and
rising, teachers need fair pay to survive the crippling financial market. Her
children attended school in the district. Lowell Joint teachers have always
gone beyond and our test scores prove this. Currently earning 11 percent less
than a teacher with 26 years in La Habra. The time is right for reserves to
serve emergency purpose and supporting our Lowell Joint Family.

Stephanie Rutledge — 4™ grade teacher at Macy Elementary School. Asked
that there be no retaliation towards herself and colleagues for speaking here
this evening. Spoke of the extreme hardships these last years during the
COVID pandemic and not begin given compensation. The cost of living
adjustment will be adjusted to over 6 percent by Governor Newsom. This will
barely cover inflation that is exceeding 7 percent. Her household expenses
and school supplies have gone up and the only thing not gone up is her salary
with the Lowell Joint School District. She is at the end of the salary scale
with 27 years of teaching. Please do the right thing and show grace and
mercy to your teachers by compensating them for a job done.

Kristen Gober — Her 26" year teaching in Lowell Joint. There have been
many changes but the one thing that is constant is the hard work ethic by the
teachers. This goes unnoticed and the district doesn’t pass on COLA to
teachers automatically. District purchased Iready to fill in learning gaps but



February 7, 2022
Page 633

Timely Information from the
Board and Superintendent

Recognition of the John
Greenleaf Whittier Chapter
Daughters of the American
Revolution Essay Contest
Winners

RECESS #***

School Reports

Resolution 2021/22 #849 of
the Board of Trustees of the
Lowell Joint School District
Adjusting Trustee Area
Boundaries From Which

District Governing Board
Members will be Elected

did not provide Iready curriculum books for teacher to utilize. The district
reserves continue to rise and not getting paid competitively like other
districts. Take care of Lowell Joint family.

Kelly Aldecoa — Teaches 6™ grade at Macy Elementary. Anyone speaking
here tonight will not receive any form of retaliation from the district’s
administration. Never in my 25 years in the district have I felt in necessary to
state this than with this administration. She is a single parent and sole
provider of three kids. The rising costs makes it hard to survive the one
month that she does not receive a check and would need to get a second job.
The government gave the district eight million one hundred five thousand
nine hundred seventy five dollars for federal and state pandemic funding, why
weren’t they compensated for their expenses. Her son is in Mrs.
Shackelford’s math class and she asked her to ask him tomorrow when was
the last time his mom took her family on a vacation, sit down meal at
restaurant, how she has juggled to pay for a haircut and cried figuring out
how to support their family during the month they don’t get paid. Do the right
thing and take care of the Lowell family and pay them a fair wage

None.

Mr. Coombs introduced Maya Rosiles-Camelo, 7™ grade student from

Rancho Starbuck Intermediate School and Julia Machon, 8th grade student
from Rancho Starbuck Intermediate School. These students won the John
Greenleaf Whittier Chapter Society Daughters of the American Revolution
American History Essay Contest for their grade level on the “The Tomb of
the Unknown Soldier”. They were each awarded a Certificate of Outstanding
Achievement by President Salinas and asked to introduce their families and
teachers.

Mrs. Machon spoke of appreciating the teachers at El Portal and Rancho and
all they do for our children.

Mors. Salinas declared a recess at 8:15 p.m. Mrs. Salinas reopened the board
meeting at 8:20 p.m.

Each Board member shared highlights of their respective schools.

Mr. Coombs spoke of the by trustees reevaluation. Education Code section
5019.5’s requirement to adjust trustee area boundaries after each federal
census. The district hired a demographer to review data and make sure all by
trustee areas are proportionate. Legal counsel Ron Wenkart is here, via zoom,
and available if you have any questions of this process. We saw the two maps
presented at the last board meeting, which was a public hearing. The
demographer was there and said that these maps meet the legal requirements,
as does our legal counsel for CVRA. Two maps for consideration and need to
pick one for the March 1 deadline.



Resolution 2021/22 No. 850,
Recognizing February 7-11,
2022 as “School Counseling
Week”

Approve Resolution 2021/22
#851, Establishment of an
Irrevocable Trust for Other
Post-Employment Benefits
with the California
Employers' Retiree Benefit
Trust through California
Public Employees
Retirement System

Approval of Professional
Services Agreement, Nigro
and Nigro, A Professional
Accountancy Corporation,
Provide a Performance Audit
for State Facilities Program
Expenditure Reporting

Resolution 2021/22 No. 852,
Adopting Staffing Flexibility
Measures in Accordance

February 7, 2022
Page 634

Mr. Hinz said that the recommended changes in both maps are relatively
minimal and he made a motion to accept proposed map #2. Mrs. Shackelford
seconded the motion.

Mrs. Shackelford stated that though the changes are minor, it does make it
easier that as a school district that splits two counties, we will have another
trustee that is solely in one county.

Mrs. Shaw said that they all had several schools in their attendance area.
Mrs. Salinas agreed.

Mr. Coombs asked legal counsel Mr. Wenkart if there is anything that was
missed to make sure that we were are in complete compliance.

Mr. Wenkart said that the all information was covered at the last board
meeting and both maps are below the 10 percent population variance that is
required. Both maps create the Hispanic minority within the district fairly.
They are both legally compliant.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous roll call vote (5- 0) to
adopt Resolution 2021/22 #849 of the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint
School District Adjusting Trustee Area Boundaries From Which District
Governing Board Members will be Elected, and that the Superintendent or
designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous roll call vote (5— 0) to
adopt Resolution 2021/22 No. 850, Recognizing February 7-11, 2022 as
“School Counseling Week”, and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous roll call vote (5—- 0) to
adopt Resolution 2021/22 #851, Establishment of an Irrevocable Trust for
Other Post-Employment Benefits with the California Employers' Retiree
Benefit Trust through California Public Employees Retirement System, and
that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote (5 — 0), to Approve
of Professional Services Agreement, Nigro and Nigro, A Professional
Accountancy Corporation, Provide a Performance Audit for State Facilities
Program Expenditure Reporting, and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous roll call vote (5 0) to
adopt Resolution No. 852, adopting staffing flexibility measures in



February 7, 2022
Page 635

with Governor Newsom’s
Executive Order N-3-22

Mid year LCAP Review

Consent Calendar

Acceptance of
Gift/Donations

Purchase Order Report
2021/22 #7

Consolidated Check Register
Listing Report 2021/22 #6

Employer-Employee
Relations/Personnel Report
2021/22 #7 Which Includes
Hiring, Resignations,
Contract Adjustments and
Retirements for Certificated,
Classified, and Confidential
Employees

Approval of Agreement
#14042 with Inside the
Outdoors, Orange County
Department of Education, to
Provide a Traveling Scientist
Assembly for the TK/K and

accordance with Governor Newsom’s executive order N-3-22, and that the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Dr. McDonald presented the mid year LCAP update.

As part of the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), school districts, County
Offices of Education, and charter schools are required to develop, adopt, and
annually update a three-year Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP),
using a template that was adopted by the California State Board of Education
(SBE).

Due to some additional one-time dollars for the LCAP, the State Board of
Education is requiring a mid-year update to be presented to the Board for the
2021-2022 school year. The update will ultimately be submitted for approval
along with the LCAP in June of 2022.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5 — 0), to
approve/ratify the following items, under a consent procedure.

Ratified the acceptance of donations as listed: El Portal Parent
Teacher Association, ViewSonic Board ViewBoard 65”, valued at
$3676.80 to El Portal Elementary School, David Bennett - Bells and
Drum Practice set donated to Rancho Starbuck Intermediate School
band program. Valued at $500.00. and requested a letter of
appreciation be written to the donors.

Approved Purchase Order Report 2021-22 #7, as attached, which
lists all warrants issued December 1, 2021, through December 31,
2021.

Approved Consolidated Check Register Listing Report 2021/22 #5,
as attached, which lists all warrants issued December 1, 2021,
through December 31, 2021.

Ratified Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2021/22 #7, as
attached, which includes hiring, resignations, contract adjustments, and
retirements for certificated, classified, and confidential employees.

Approved the contract with Inside the Outdoors, Orange County Department
of Education to provide two Traveling Scientist Assemblies for the second-
grade and TK/K students of El Portal Elementary School, not to exceed
$1,100.00, to be paid by El Portal PTA, and that the Superintendent or
designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.



Second Grade Students of El
Portal Elementary School

Board Member/
Superintendent Comments

Adjournment

Date Approved:

February 7, 2022
Page 636

Mr. Hinz spoke of the channel 11 news broadcast that featured our
superintendent. He was never so proud of anyone representing this district.

“Mr. Coombs you did well, represented well, made me very proud of this
district and represented us glowingly”. Mr. Coombs had the opportunity to
talk about what we are doing and why we are successful.

Mr. Coombs mentioned that it was easy to talk about Lowell because it is
great and people and staff are doing and incredible job.

Mr. Coombs also highlighted that in the upcoming week, there is a film crew
coming from Virginia to highlight and put together a recognition of the “Arts
For All Let the Music Play Band Program”. The band program received the
national MANGA award. This is one of only three programs in the United
States to be selected for the grand prize. Jeremy Fletcher did an incredible
job and when he left, it hasn’t missed a beat and credit being given to
Cameron Miller.

President Salinas declared the meeting adjourned at 9:02 p.m. in accordance
with Government Code Section 54956.9 (a, b, ¢) and indicated no further
public action would be taken

Clerk/President/Secretary to the Board of Trustees



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2021/22 NO. 849

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTESS OF THE
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT OF
LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
ADJUSTING TRUSTEE AREA BOUNDARIES FROM WHICH
DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS WILL BE ELECTED

WHEREAS, on January 16, 2016, the governing board of the Lowell Joint School District (“District™)
voted to adopt a trustee area plan and transition to by-trustee area elections by approval of Resolution
Number 2017/18 No. 713; and

WHEREAS, the Orange County Committee on School District Organization approved the District’s by-
trustee area plan and the plan took effect for an election that took place in November 6, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the District has reviewed the adopted trustee area plan and determined that adjustment of
the trustee area boundaries is required based on the results of the 2020 census;

WHEREAS, the Board held a public hearing on January 24, 2022, to obtain public input; and

WHEREAS, Education Code section 5019.5 requires the adjustments of area boundaries following each
decennial federal census, if necessary.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District as
follows:

1. That the above recitals are true and correct. ‘

2. That the Board hereby adjusts the current trustee area boundary plan for use in the
November 2022 election and elections thereafter as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.

3. That the Superintendent and/or his designee take all actions necessary to notify the

Orange County Committee on School District Organization of the Board’s determination
forthwith and provide whatever assistance may be required by the Committee to complete the
process.

ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED this ’TJ % Z

President of the Board of Trustees of the
Lowell Joint School District

I, %@?‘///V , Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint

School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Board of Trustees of




the Lowell Joint School District at a meeting of said Board held on the7th day of February, 2022, and
that it was so adopted by the following vote:

AYES: Melissa Salinas, Karen Shaw, Anastasia Shackelford, William Hinz, Anthony Zegarra

NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Qaﬁ .=

Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the
U owell Joint School District




Lowell Joint SD

' La Habra Heights

A

L] * L ] i .
g T Villa Rita Dr
5 E @ o a
2022 Redistricting B D e
. ° / [ g oy ! - 7] Q (=]
as o ® MadeleraDr 2 ©® = ©
Minimal Changes Map 1 i sy 53 g . 25 3
o éﬂ: % Janine Dr e T T
= TN, ot Canmen o o o Sansinens T
5 Zegarra = g Mikinda Ave 8 2
S Skagway St = e &
® RussellSt o 2 Z > ) 3 5
2 S X © o= & m £
2 E % . Macy  Gordon Avg/ & & g Sq
.C S -5 1, A 5
Shady Valley Ln é) £ Salinas.  Wallace Ave o<%E g o)
eovonbt _ s g
s andall-Ave % S3§ @ 2
T w 3a
Whitti e ey a3 g gog
@ 5 2
?\;5 Kenrich Gt =
o -
i ‘\)s\‘e Elena Ct goxdale 88 % < - T @
c¥ ordan S I e = -l
. 3 FemWay % 3 1/ @ o -
o g Wwindsor A e %, 9 T Sgir! A E
Z 9 = 5¢ 3 Ivy Pl 2 0 la Bonita Park
o< 8 B¢ "5 9
2 c S 8s J Gregory Ln % g 3
°S @ F 3B Dunshill CY 2
s E 3 =3 Hanline Way
a3 @ > Lashburn St El Dorado Ave
0 R W El Portal Or
yaniord st El Portal § m 5
TSy Norte St % =
- e
Heathfield Dr W 75 =
| 8 Oakland Dr P )] \©
Norcrest Dr o 1 3 Rutherglen St &%f R E % g \‘o(e\\a P‘Z
L S=A LS = o
< e, Shaw & & § £ 38
ag\e“o‘ £ 4’(9 P e gStoryAve 38 3
A da\BD‘ _cg n 2 ) ‘,.’.J -
i OF < TerrazaPark: - e
ham:wa\e of o 2 WishireAve % 4] Pine Dr-
z 3 = _
é %- Linion Ave %‘ Merced Ave silver Maple
é o @ampbell Ave 2 Baja Ave
: . Sidon Ave La Habra
0] 5\)‘53
= = W Lambert Rd
all ey O < a % o g 4 Oeste Park 'é
- [
AsmDer pr East Whittier 222 Y § g Shackelford §
Whitespring s § 2 8ad & ; @
m o — £ 3 E =3 § g ) Elmsford Av:
Q@ o Meadow Green = 5 2 Szl e Do g Sheffield fir &
58 =z 2Cameo Ct—— s &g O 5 a e
28 3 Candlelight Dr i L E‘“ = & g
> ] (A Rancho-5tarblick MR 773 kY =
2 Syl Silvergrove Dr g G = & °
® 2 L3 R =3 Q = t
® % Landmark Dr g &
@5 Red Coach Ln &Redeoach n &
Mira g 3 Placid Dr Greenbner Lnm T
1 L- : gl o
] Grayfille Dr 660 6
a a?-
= ‘(@‘ gép
B
hp
Changes:
. A
Trustee Area 4 would now include the area w ©
. . o
east of Sturbridge Drive. 3
5
-
<!
-,
The remainder of La Habra Heights, including Trustee Hing!

address, i5 in Trustee Area 2

©2021 CALIPER




Lowell Joint School District - Minimal Changes Map 1
District 1 2 3 4 | 5 Total
2020 2020 Census (Ad)) 6,928 7,335 7,219 6,781 | 7,109 35,372
Deviation from ideal -146 261 145 -293 35 554
% Deviation -2.07% | 3.68% | 2.04% | -4.15% | 0.49% 7.83%
% Hisp 57% 37% 56% 51% 49% 50%
2020 Total Pop % NH White 32% 41% 31% 29% 32% 33%
% NH Black 2% 1% 1% 3% 2% 2%
% Asian-American 6% 18% 9% 15% 13% 12%
Total 4,967 6,485 5,316 4,290 5,147 26,205
% Hisp 40% 31% 50% 45% 50% 43%
Citizen Voting Age Pop % NH Whitc 47% 50% 42% 1% 39% 44%
% NH Black | 4% 0% | 1% 2% 1% 1%
% Asian/Pac.sl. 8% 18% 7% 12% | 10% 1%
Total 4,066 5,097 4,817 3,767 4,628 22,375
% Latino est. 45% 28% 49% 47% 44% 42%
Voter Registration (Nov % Spanish-Surnamed 41% 26% 44% 43% 40% 38%
2020) % Asian-Surnamed 3% 11% 4% 6% 6% 6%
% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 51% 62% 49% 48% 52% 52%
% NH Black 3% 0% 1% 1% 0% 1%
Total 2,359 3,151 2,580 2,039 2,581 12,710
% Latino cst. 39% 23% 43% 43% 40% 36%
Voter Tmmout  [(Nov Yo Spaflish-Sumamcd 36% 21% 40% 39% 36% 34%
2018) % Asian-Surnamed 2% 8% 3% 3% 5% 5%
% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 57% 69% 54% 55% 56% 59%
% NH Black 4% 0% 1% 1% 0% 1%
Total 3,463 4,246 3,870 3,167 3,766 18,512
% Latino est. _44% 27% 48% 46% 44% 41%
Voter Tumout  (Nov % Spanish-Surnamed 41% 25% 44% 42% 40% 38%
2020) % Asian-Surnamed 3% 10% 4% 6% 6% 6%
% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 52% 63% 49% 49% 52% 53%
% NH Black est. 3% 0% 1% 1% 0% 1%
ACS Pop. Est. Total 7,133 8,666 7,036 6,281 6,740 35,856
age0-19 26% 21% 21% 26% 21% 23%
Age age20-60 53% 52% 53% 56% 56% 54%
apcGOplus 20% 27% 26% 18% 23% 23%
R immigrants 18% 20% 15% 23% 22% 19%
naturalized 56% 75% 71% 61% 63% 66%
cnglish 71% 63% 77% 65% 67% 68%
Language spoken at home spanish 22% 21% 17% 22% 21% 21%
asian-lang 6% 11% 4% 13% 10% 9%
other lang 1% 5% 2% 1% 2% 2%
n
Language Fluency SF:::SVE:V&\V;;?S 12% | 13% | 8% | 14% | 11% 1%
Ecafions(A-TORpBoR hs-grad 53% 38% 54% 55% 54% 50%
age 25+) bachclor 19% 26% 22% 19% 17% 21%
graduatedegree 8% 18% 10% 8% 11% 12%
Child in Household child-under18 40% 30% 31% 40% 30% 34%
Pct of Pop. Age 16+ employed 70% 60% 62% 66% 63% 64%
income 0-25k 13% 6% 21% 14% 10% 13% |
income 25-50k 14% 11% 10% 15% 16% 13%
Houschold Income income 50-75k 13% 13% 17% 16% 12% 14%
income 75-200k 49% 43% 45% 47% 50% 47%
income 200k-plus 11% 26% 8% 9% 12% 14%
single family 74% 90% 83% 76% 7% 81%
Housing Stats multi-family 26% 10% 17% 24% 23% 19%
rented 37% 16% 23% 32% 28% 27%
owned 63% 84% 7% 68% 72% 73%

Total population data from the Califoria adjustment to the 2020 Decennial Census. Sumame-based Voter Registration and Tumout data from
the Califomia Statewide Database. Latino voter registration and tumout data are Spanish-sumame counts adjusted using Census Population

Department undercount estimates. NH White and NH Black registration and tumout counts estimated by NDC. Citizen Voting Age Pop., Age,
[mmigration, and other demographics from the 2015-2019 American Community Survey and Special Tabulation 5-year data.




~ LaHabra Heights

Av

. s .l 5 e Dr Villa Rita Dr '
2022 Redistricting 8o sz § §o |
5= i £ %5 g Eseverri Ln o) o
141 £ [ G AT M o 0 o |
@ adelenaDr 2 B ZF ®©
Minimal Changes Map 2 ST - g8 &
o éﬂ kSl Janine Dr G NS e
_g SRR TR pret Caneng o %r. oory Sansinena Ln 2
c y HE0rMio Far =
2 Zegarra “é—a 2 Mikinda Ave 8 & [
> Skagway St c o g
¢ B  RusseliSt o ° Z g,; Ot S &
T z (o LY & m £
c » : ~3§ "> Macy Gordon A &ssk = g S )
2 c = 6 3 b =3
(‘3 Shady Valley Ln ;‘_@ 58 Salinas Wa{:luaceAve oxq‘bo < £ § é? 8.
8 TR {1 3
92  RandalAve 2 e32 o & %
Areep St fharon wa £ & 2 85g 7
Whittie} 0 TR IS T
9 : = 5 - |
i o
ee?‘€> Foxdale Ave Ken”d’OCl g I
st Elena Ct = 7 a2
N :]ordan ANL Ll ’%@‘ 2 1 g .8 2
o FemWa . o
T & co Windsor Al 5 ! ® Qi $ 2 la Bonita park
=4 z § ?:.O: Ivy PI A ) nC)’ a Bonita Par
[%] c k7
“‘p -
35 348  ounshilcfy ore9evin = .
S E » 38 o < Hanline Way
€3 53 9 El Dorado A
@ O © »  Lashbumn St g S RIatoiae
® R o _{? fé. W El Portal Dr
gShiord St = 2 El Portal ] m G
g, & < 3 &
S, ~ g Q
= District Office Norte St g =
Heathfield Dr S0 =
! Ly . Oakland Dr 4] Ne
Norcrest Dr @ '3 RuthsrlenSt iy RN R § & o‘e\\ap‘z
z b SRS g = \O= o F
< Shaw & & © EEIGR
3 g 4 Sstoya 3o 3
E L@ G gStoryAve A
& _ Terazs pare
- Wilshire Ave Pine Dr
> .
z Andiron DF Union Ave S Merced Ave . \apie
_§ ampbell AVe gy Baja Ave
Sidon Ave La Habra
° fr=== W Lambert Rd
> o 3.
< & 0 9 . gestepark B
'g 5 '; _g‘;‘h g Shackelford §
o g é < & [ =1 ) Elmsford Avl:
@ O Meadow Green @ 5 b = & ﬁa ‘§: R Sheffield [Pr &
: 3 Cameo Ct = & @ L &G ¢
oS = ) = g F Olita. < PS S
4 9 Candlelight Dr i " E g 2 yi '
>3 © Rancho-Starbfick Al L 0 S 2
4k S TS Silvergrove Dr r AR = 2 =
o Z & g' (&) s
® % Landmark Dr re) g |
@ g Red Coach Ln SRedooachi L © 141
Lp Mirala g 2 Placid Dr Greenbrier Lo 5
[=]
=]
=8
Changes: g

Trustee Area 4 would now include the area
south of Imperial Highway as well as a
connection block south of Sheffield Dr.
Trustee Area 5 would now include the area
in East Whittier, west of Valley Home Ave.

The remainder of La Habra Heights, including Trusiee Hing!
address, 15 in Trustee Area 2

©2021 CALIPER




Lowell Joint School District - Minimal Changes Map 2
District 1 2 3 4 5 Total
2020 2020 Census (Adj) 6,928 7,335 7,219 7,141 6,749 35,372
Deviadon from ideal -146 261 145 67 -325 586
% Deviation -2.07% | 3.68% | 2.04% | 0.94% | -4.60% 8.28%
% Hisp 57% 37% 56% 49% 52% 50%
% NH Whitc 32% 41% 31% 29% 33% 33%
eiz0foaliRep % NH Black 2% % | 1% | 3% | 2% 2%
% Asian-Amcrican 6% 18% 9% 17% 10% 12%
Total 4,967 6,485 5,316 4,823 4,614 26,205
% Hisp 40% 31% 50% 47% 49% 43%
Citizen Voting Age Pop % NH White 47% 50% 42% 37% 42% 44%
% NH Black 4% 0% 1% % | 0% | 1%
% Asian/Pac.Isl. 8% 18% | 1% 14% 8% | 11%
Total 4,066 5,097 4,817 3,875 4,520 22,375
% Latino est. 45% 28% 49% 46% 45% 42%
g : % Spanish-Surnamed 41% 26% 44% 42% 41% 38%
Voter Rci’gt;g)“m Moy I AsianSumamed | 3% | 11% | 4% | 8% | 5% %
% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 51% 62% 49% 47% 52% 52%
% NIH Black 3% 0% 1% 1% 0% 1%
Total 2,359 3,151 2,580 2,106 2,514 12,710
% Latino est. 39% 23% 43% 41% 41% 36%
% Spanish-Surnamed 36% 21% 40% 38% 38% 34%
M T“;g;’;t MoV 1”0 Asian-Suenamed | 2% 8% | 3% | 4% | 4% 5%
% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 57% 69% | 54% | 55% | 55% | 59%
% NI Black 4% 0% 1% | 2% 0% 1%
‘Total 3,463 4,246 3,870 3,253 3,680 18,512
olatino cst. | 4% | 21% | 48% | 45% | 45% 4%
Woter Tumouy (Vo % Spanish-Surnamed 41% 25% 44% 41% 41% 38%
2020) % Asian-Surnamed 3% 10% 4% 7% 5% 6%
% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% | 1% 1%
% NI White est. 52% 63% 49% 49% 52% 53%
% NI Black cst. 3% 0% 1% 1% 0% 1%
ACS Pop. Ist. T'otal 7,133 8,666 7,036 6,870 6,151 35,856
apc0-19 26% 21% 21% 25% 22% 23%
Age [N age20-60 53% 52% 53% 57% 55% 54%
agc60plus 20% 27% 26% 18% 23% 23%
vemigzation tmmigrants 18% 20% 15% 29% 16% 19%
naturalized 56% 75% 71% 64% 59% 66%
english 71% 63% 7% 62% 70% 68%
Language spoken at home spanish 22% 21% 17% 20% 23% 21%
asian-lang 6% 11% 4% 17% 5% 9%
B other lang 1% 5% 2% 2% 1% 2%
2 1"
Language Fluency SFPAL;:Q\E:ngI(;iT'?q 12% 13% 8% 16% 8% 11%
Education (smong those hs-grad 53% 38% 54% 50% 59% 50%
bachclor 19% 26% 22% 23% 12% 21%
age 25) graduatedegrec 8% 18% | 10% | 11% | 9% 12%
Child in Houschold child-under18 40% 30% 31% 37% 33% 34%
Pct of Pop. Age 16+ employed 70% 60% 62% 66% 63% 64%
income 0-25k 13% 6% 21% 13% 11% 13%
income 25-50k 14% 11% 10% 15% 17% 13%
Iouschold Income " income 50-75k 13% 13% 17% 13% 15% 14%
income 75-200k 49% 43% 45% 47% 50% 47%
income 200k-plus 11% 26% 8% 12% 8% 14%
single family T4% 90% 83% 76% 1% 81%
Housing Stats muld-family 26% 10% 17% 24% 23% 19%
rented 37% 16% 23% 31% 30% 27%
owned 63% 84% 77% 69% 70% 73%

Total population data from the California adjustment to the 2020 Decennial Census. Suname-based Voter Registration and Tumout data from
the Califomia Statewide Database. Latino voter registration and tumout data are Spanish-sumame counts adjusted using Census Population

Department undercount estimates, NH White and NI Black registration and tumout counts estimated by NDC, Citizen Voting Age Pop, Age,
Immigration, and other demographics from the 2015-2019 American Community Sucvey and Special Tabulation 3-yeardata,




LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

RESOLUTION 2021/2022 NO. 850

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
OF LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
RECOGNIZING FEBRUARY 7-11, 2022, AS
“SCHOOL COUNSELING WEEK”

WHEREAS, school counselors are employed in public and private schools to help students reach their full
potential; and

WHEREAS, school counselors are actively committed to helping students explore their abilities, strengths,
interests, and talents as these traits relate to career awareness and development; and

WHEREAS, School counselors help parents focus on ways to further the educational, personal and social
growth of their children; and

WHEREAS, school counselors work with teachers and other educators to help students explore their
potential and set realistic goals for themselves; and

WHEREAS, school counselors seek to identify and utilize community resources that can enhance and
complement comprehensive school counseling programs and help students become productive members of
society; and

WHEREAS, comprehensive developmental school counseling programs are considered an integral part of
the educational process that enables all students to achieve success in school;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Board of Trustees on behalf of the students,
parents, and community at large, does hereby recognize February 7-11, 2022, as “School Counseling Week”
and that all school counselors in the Lowell Joint School District be commended for the contributions they
make to successful student achievement.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 7% day of February, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES: Melissa A. Salinas, Karen L. Shaw, Anastasia M. Shackelford, William A. Hinz,
Anthony A. Zegarra

NOES:  yone
ABSTAIN: None

AB SENT' None

I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of
Los Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution was duly
and regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held on the 7% day of February, 2022, and
passed by a unanimous vote of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal the 7 day of February, 2022.

Jim Coollnbs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees

v



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2021/22 No. 851

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT OF
LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
ESTABLISHMENT OF AN IRREVOCABLE TRUST FOR OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS THROUGH CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Lowell Joint School District wishes to establish an
irrevocable trust; and,

WHEREAS, the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) has
established the California Employers' Retirement Benefit Trust Fund (CERBT) for California Public
Agencies to use to prefund future retiree health and other post-employment benefit costs; and;

WHEREAS, to participate in the CERBT program, CalPERS requires that the Governing
Board approve the associated agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Board of the Lowell Joint
School District, hereby adopts the agreement with California Public Employees' Retirement
Systems (CalPERS) to prefund retiree medical benefits through participation in the California
Employer's Retiree Benefit Trust Program (CERBT); and appoints the incumbents in the
following positions, Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent of Administrative Services, and
the Director of Fiscal Services, as Plan Administrators of the Program;

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Plan Administrators are authorized to
execute the Program legal and administrative documents on behalf of the district and to take
whatever additional actions are necessary to maintain the district’s participation, facilitate the
funding, investment management and administration in the Program, and to maintain compliance
of any relevant regulation issued or as may be issued: therefore, authorizing the Plan
Administrators to take whatever additional actions are required to administer the district’s
Program.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 7" day of February 2022, by the following vote:
AYES: Melissa Salinas, Karen Shaw, Anastasia Shackelford, William Hinz, Anthony Zegarra
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN; None
I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of
Los Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution
was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held on the 7™ day of
February 2022, and passed by a vote of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 7" day of February 2022.

Jim Coombs
Seckgtary to the Board of Trustees




1
e,
e

)

ALY
NT .
NIGRZNIGRO~

December 23, 2021

To the Board of Trustees and Management of
Lowell Joint School District
Whittier, California

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are providing for Lowell Joint School
District. We will conduct a performance audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
Education Code section 41024 to ensure that school facility program (SFP) bonds have been appropriately
spent according to State guidelines for Project No. 57/64766-00-001: Olita Elementary School.

Objective

The objective of our performance audit is the expression of an opinion about whether the District complied
with the State’s requirements with regards to the use of school facility program (SFP) bonds.

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and will include tests of the accounting records of Lowell Joint School District and other procedures
we consider necessary to enable us to express an opinion on whether the District complied with State
requirements regarding the use of school facility program (SFP) bonds. If our opinion is other than
unqualified, we will fully discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to
complete the audit or form an opinion, we may disclaim an opinion or not issue a report.

Audit Procedures

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the SAB 50-06 reports. Therefore, our audit
will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested. Also, we
will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the District
complied with the State’s requirements with regards to the use of school facility program (SFP) bonds,
whether from errors, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws or
governmental regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on
behalf of the entity. An audit is not designed, though, to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws
or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, because of the concept of reasonable assurance and because we will not perform a detailed
examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us.
We will inform you of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets that
come to our attention. In addition, we will inform you of any violations of laws or governmental regulations
that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. Our responsibility as auditors is, of course, limited
to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as
auditors.



As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District complied with the State’s requirements
with regards to the use of school facility program (SFP) bonds, we will perform tests of Lowell Joint School
District's compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and agreements.
However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not
express such an opinion. Management maintains the responsibility for identifying and ensuring that Lowell
Joint School District complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and other agreements.

An audit includes obtaining an understanding of intermal control sufficient to plan the audit and to determine
the nature, timing, and extent of audit procedures to be performed. An audit is not designed to provide
assurance on intermal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control. However, during the audit, we will
communicate internal control-related matters to management and those charged with governance as required
by professional standards.

Management Responsibilities

We understand that you will make all financial records and related information available to us for our audit
and that you are responsible for the accuracy and completeness of that information. The management of
Lowell Joint School District has the responsibility for the proper recording of transactions in the books of
account, for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities,
for the safeguarding of assets, for ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and for the
preparation and substantial accuracy of the financial statements, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Although we may advise you about appropriate accounting principles and their
application, the selection and method of application are the sole responsibility of the Lowell Joint School
District' management. As part of our engagement, we may also propose standard, adjusting, or correcting
journal entries on your financial statements. Management, however, has final responsibility for reviewing the
proposed entries and understanding the nature and impact of the proposed entries to the financial statements.
It is our understanding that management has designated qualified individuals with the necessary expertise to
be responsible and accountable for overseeing all services performed as part of this engagement as well as
evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and accepting responsibility for the services. In addition,
management is responsible for adjusting the financial statements for all material adjustments and for
confirming to us in the management representation letter that all uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us
during the current audit engagement are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

By your signature below, you acknowledge that you are responsible for the design and implementation of
programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud
affecting the government that involves management, employees who have significant roles in internal control,
and others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. You are also responsible
for informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government
that have been received in communications from employees, former employees, regulators, or others. In
addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws and
regulations and for taking timely and appropriate actions to remedy any fraud, illegal acts, or violations of
contracts and agreements. You agree that you will confirm to us in your management representation letter
your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter.

Other
Jeff Nigro, CPA, CFE is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter. His

responsibilities include supervising Nigro & Nigro's services performed as part of this engagement and
signing or authorizing another qualified firm representative to sign the audit report.



It is our policy to keep records related to this engagement for seven (7) years. However, Nigro & Nigro does
not keep any original client records, so we will return those to you at the completion of the services rendered
under this engagement. When records are returned to you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect your
records for possible future use, including potential examination by any government or regulatory agencies. By
your signature below, you acknowledge and agree that upon the expiration of the seven-year period Nigro &
Nigro shall be free to destroy our records related to this engagement.

Our fees for this work will be $7,500. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work
progresses and are payable upon presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if
your account becomes 90 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full.
The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected
circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will
discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before incutring additional costs.

If a dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree to first try in good faith to settle the dispute by
mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Rules for Professional Accounting
and Related Services Disputes before resorting to litigation. The costs of any mediation proceeding shall be
shared equally by all parties.

Client and accountant both agree that any dispute over fees charged by the accountant to the client will be
submitted for resolution by arbitration in accordance with the Rules for Professional Accounting and Related
Services Disputes of the American Arbitration Association. Such arbitration shall be binding and final. IN
AGREEING TO ARBITRATION, WE BOTH ACKNOWLEDGE THAT, IN THE EVENT OF A DISPUTE
OVER FEES CHARGED BY THE ACCOUNTANT, EACH OF US IS GIVING UP THE RIGHT TO
HAVE THE DISPUTE DECIDED IN A COURT OF LAW BEFORE A JUDGE OR JURY AND INSTEAD
WE ARE ACCEPTING THE USE OF ARBITRATION FOR RESOLUTION.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Lowell Joint School District and believe this letter
accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us
know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy
and return it to us.
Very truly yours,

777“-, 722, —,.
Nigro & Nigro, PC

RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Lowell Joint School District.

APPROVED:

Lowell Joint School District

Date



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2021/22 NO. 852

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
OF LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
ADOPTING STAFFING FLEXIBILITY MEASURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNOR
NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-3-22

WHEREAS, on January 11, 2022, the Governor issued Executive Order N-3-22, providing staffing
flexibility measures to address staffing needs for in-person instruction through March 31, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the flexibility measures authorized by the Executive Order include, but are not limited to,
suspending requirements that substitute teachers have an application on file with the California Commission
on Teacher Credentialing prior to the issuance of temporary certificates; extending substitute service in general
education assignments to not more than 120 days through March 31, 2022; suspending requirements that student
teachers be under the direct supervision of a credentialed teacher; and providing incentives for CalSTRS' retirees
to return to classroom service; and

WHEREAS, between the time period of January 3, 2021 and January 31, 2022, the instructional
programs operated by the Lowell Joint School District had a need to fill five substitute teaching assignments
for in-person instruction, at an average of five assignments per day for 120 working days; and

WHEREAS, due to extreme substitute shortages caused by the Omicron-driven rise in COVID-19
cases, the instructional programs were unable to fill daily substitute assignments at an average of 20 percent
(20%) per instructional day between January 3, 2021 and January 31, 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Board of the Lowell Joint School
District, hereby finds that the staffing flexibility measures specified in Executive Order N-3-22 will greatly
assist instructional programs operated under my auspices to provide in person services to students despite the
staffing shortages caused by the Omicron-driven rise in COVID-19 cases.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 7" day of February 2022, by the following vote:
AYES: Melissa Salinas, Karen Shaw, Anastasia Shackelford, William Hinz, Anthony Zegarra
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None
I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of
Los Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution was duly and
regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held on the 7" day of February 2022, and passed by

at least a majority vote of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 7™ day of June 2022.

o (radre

Jim Coortys, Secretary to the Board of Trustees




Lowell Joint
School District

A Traditien of Excellence Since 1906

Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021-22 Local Control and
>ooo=:$_o__:< Plan

_.oom_ macom:o:m_ Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone il s |
| Lowell Joint School District Jim Coombs jcoombs@ljsd.org ﬂ
e e Superintendent 562.902.4200 o _

California's 202122 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. The following is a one-time mid-year report to the
local governing board or body and educational partners related to engagement on, and implementation of, these Acts.

A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or-plans to engage, its: educational: vm::ma on Em ‘use of funds provided through the
Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2024-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP).

Because of the short timeline involved in developing plans along side the current planning for the Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP),
discussions related to the additional monies (Educator Effectiveness, Expanded Learning Opportunity Program, and the Universal Pre-
Kindergarten) were held during the already scheduled meetings with educational partners for LCAP input. It was discussed separately from
the LCAP process as an opportunity to include one-time dollars in services we would be able to provide for students that fit within the
categories identified for appropriate expenditures. With that in mind, educational partners were given the opportunity to provide input both
during the meeting and as part of a Padlet created to capture the thoughts of various educational partners for both the LCAP and these new
one-time funds. The Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services is meeting with the Parent Teacher Associations (PTAs) for each
school site, with the staff at each school site, the District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC), the LCAP Advisory Committee,
California School Employees Association (CSEA) for classified staff, and Lowell Joint Education Association (LJEA) for certificated staff. In
addition, communications through the Superintendent's Office in the Healthy Families Update for both staff and parents provided information
on potential opportunities for input at meetings as well as regularly scheduled meetings with PTAs. The surveys conducted for the LCAP also
provide information from parents, staff, and students that have helped to inform services that we may provide under the Extended Learning
Opportunities Grant/Program even though the survey was specific to the LCAP process. Discussions specific to the development of all plans
were also part of both Instructional Cabinet meetings and Principal meetings. The Board of Trustees is updated on a weekly basis through
the Superintendent's Office in addition to information shared at regularly scheduled Board meetings once a month.

2021-22 LCAP Supplement for Lowell Joint School District Page 1 of 6



A description of how the LEA used, or plans to use, the additional concentration grant'add-on funding it received to increase the number of

staff who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enroliment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent.

As a district, Lowell Joint doe snot receive and concentration monies and was therefore, not eligible for these additional funds.

A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are intended to
support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on ncc__m

Again, due to the short timeline involved in developing plans along side the current planning for the Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP),
discussions related to the development of the Extended Learning Opportunities Grant Plan (ELO-G), the Learning Continuity Plan, and the
Safe Return to Instruction plan were held during the already scheduled meetings with educational partners for LCAP input. It was discussed
separately from the LCAP process as an opportunity to include one-time dollars in services we would be able to provide for students over the
next two years that fit within the categories identified for appropriate expenditures. With that in mind, educational partners were given the
opportunity to provide input both during the meeting and as part of a Padlet created to capture the thoughts of various educational partners
for both the LCAP and these new on-time and ongoing funds. The Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services is meeting with the
Parent Teacher Associations (PTAs) for each school site, with the staff at each school site, the District English Learner Advisory Committee
(DELAC), the LCAP Advisory Committee, California School Employees Association (CSEA) for classified staff, and Lowell Joint Education
Association (LJEA) for certificated staff. In addition, communications through the Superintendent's Office in the Healthy Families Update for
both staff and parents provided information on potential opportunities for input at meetings as well as regularly scheduled meetings with
PTAs. The surveys conducted for the LCAP also provide information from parents, staff, and students that have helped to inform services
that we may provide under the Extended Learning Opportunities Grant/Program even though the survey was specific to the LCAP process.
Discussions specific to the development of all plans were also part of both Instructional Cabinet meetings and Principal meetings. The Board

of Trustees is updated on a weekly basis through the Superintendent's Office in addition to information shared at regularly scheduled Board
meetings once a month.

A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and'federal:Elementary and Mmoosamé School
Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation.

The Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Plan (ESSER M) is being monitored for implementation in terms of identified
actions and expenditures on a regular basis. A coding system was implemented within the Purchase Request system to identify and track
various expenditures back to the appropriate plan, goal, and action item whether it is one-time dollars or within the LCAP itself with ongoing
funds. Within the seven categories for expenditure, as an example, summer school and intersession is one action item. Of the $550,000
identified for this item, $260,000 was expended in the first summer with the rest available for the summer of 2022. All expenses were coded
back to this particular item to facilitate the monitoring and reporting of the items within the plan. This has been a tremendous success in
tracking the expenditures. The greatest challenge has been the overlap in criteria for the various funding sources. This often requires the

2021-22 LCAP Supplement for Lowell Joint School District Page 2 of 6



movement of expenditures to funding that must be expended on a shorter timeline that meets the same criteria. Another serious challenge
has been in finding staffing to expend some of the funds that were targeted for before and after school programs as well as other positions to
support programs within the day. We have been able to ensure continuity of services through developing a Virtual Academy for long-term
Independent Study, academic support for those students in short-term Independent Study, increasing sub pay to cover teacher absences due
to Covid-related quarantine and isolation to be competitive with neighboring districts in the sub shortage, providing PPE for staff and
students, providing regular testing as well as at-home testing kits to facilitate safe school environments, and having access to an additional
school nurse to support the increased demands related to health and safety within the district.

A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the mom‘_lmm mo:oo_ <mmw _: a manner that.is consistent with the
applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021-22 LCAP and Annual Update.

For each of the required plans for both one-time doilars and on-going funding in addition to the LCAP, a coding system has been developed
in fiscal to identify the plans connection where appropriate to the goals and actions within the LCAP. This allows for the tracking of
expenditures related to the individual plan as well as the connection to related expenditures within the LCAP to ensure alignment. These are
reviewed on a regular basis by the Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services and the Director of Fiscal Services as Purchase
Requests are submitted for various funding sources and plan items.

2021-22 LCAP Supplement for Lowell Joint School District Page 3 of 6



Instructions for the Supplement to ”:m Annual c_unmﬁm *o.. the mom‘_lmm Local Control and
Accountability Plan Year

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021-22 Local
Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s
(CDE’s) Local Agency Systems m:bbon Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at leff@cde.ca.gov.

_3:‘8_:2_05

California’s 2021-22 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. Section 124(e) of Assembly Bill 130 requires LEAs
to present an update on the Annual Update to the 2021-22 LCAP and Budget Overview for Parents on or before February 28, 2022, at a
regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board or body of the LEA. At this meeting, the LEA must include all of the following:

e The Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021-22 LCAP (2021-22 Supplement);

« All available mid-year outcome data related to metrics identified in the 2021-22 LCAP; and

« Mid-year expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the 2021-22 LCAP.
When reporting available mid-year outcome, expenditure, and implementation data, LEAs have flexibility to provide this information as best
suits the local context, provided that it is succinct and contains a level of detail that is meaningful and accessible for the LEA's educational
partners.
The 2021-22 Supplement is considered part of the 2022-23 LCAP for the purposes of adoption, review, and approval, and must be included
with the LCAP as follows:

« The 2022-23 Budget Overview for Parents

» The 2021-22 Supplement

s The 2022-23 LCAP

e The Action Tables for the 2022-23 LCAP

¢ The Instructions for the LCAP Template

As such, the 2021-22 Supplement will be submitted for review and approval as part of the LEA's 2022-23 LCAP.

Instructions

Respond to the following prompts, as required. In responding to these prompts, LEAs must, to the greatest extent practicable, provide succinct
responses that contain a level of detail that will be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s educational partners and the broader public and
must, to the greatest extent practicable, use language that is understandable and accessible to parents.

In responding to these prompts, the LEA has flexibility to reference information provided in other planning documents. An LEA that chooses to
2021-22 LCAP Supplement for Lowell Joint School District Page 4 of 6



reference information provided in other planning documents must identify the plan(s) being referenced, where the plan(s) are located (such as
a link to a web page), and where in the plan the information being referenced may be found.

Prompt 1: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or plans to engage, its educational partners on the use of funds provided
through the Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2020-21 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP)."

In general, LEAs have flexibility in deciding what funds are included in the LCAP and to what extent those funds are included. If the LEA
received funding through the Budget Act of 2021 that it would have typically included within its LCAP, identify the funds provided in the Budget
Act of 2021 that were not included in the LCAP and provide a description of how the LEA has engaged its educational partners on the use of
funds. If an LEA included the applicable funds in its adopted 2021-22 LCAP, provide this explanation.

Prompt 2: “A description of how LEA used, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funding it received to increase the number of staff
who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enrollment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent.” \

If LEA does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on, provide this explanation.

Describe how the LEA is using, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funds received consistent with California Education Code
Section 42238.02, as amended, to increase the number of certificated staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide
direct services to students on school campuses with greater than 55 percent unduplicated pupil enroliment, as compared to schools with an
enroliment of unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent.

In the event that the additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase the number of staff providing direct services to students
at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, describe how the LEA is using the funds to retain staff
providing direct services to students at a school with an enroliment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent.

Prompt 3: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are
intended to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils.”

If the LEA did not receive one-time federal funding to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on
students, provide this explanation.

Describe how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds it received that are intended to support
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on students. See the COVID-19 Relief Funding Summary Sheet
web page (https://www.cde.ca.gov/falcr/relieffunds.asp) for a listing of COVID-19 relief funding and the Federal Stimulus Funding web page
(https://lwww.cde.ca.gov/fg/er/) for additional information on these funds. The LEA is not required to describe engagement that has taken place
related to state funds.

Prompt 4: “A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary

School Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation.”
2021-22 LCAP Supplement for Lowell Joint School District Page 5 of 6



If an LEA does not receive ESSER Il funding, provide this explanation.

Describe the LEA’s implementation of its efforts to maintain the health and safety of students, educators, and other staff and ensure the
continuity of services, as required by the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and its implementation of the federal Elementary and
Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) expenditure plan to date, including successes and challenges.

Prompt 5: “A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021-22 school year in a manner that is consistent with
the applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021-22 LCAP and Annual Update.”

Summarize how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021-22 school year to implement the requirements of applicable plans
in a manner that is aligned with the LEA’s 2021-22 LCAP. For purposes of responding to this prompt, “applicable plans” include the Safe
Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services Plan and the ESSER Il Expenditure Plan.

California Department of Education
November 2021

2021-22 LCAP Supplement for Lowell Joint School District Page 6 of 6



Lowell Joint
School District

A Tradition of Excellence Since 1906

2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone _

Lowell Joint School District Jim Coombs jcoombs@ljsd.org
Superintendent 1562.902.4203

Goal 1

All students of the Lowell Joint School District will have appropriate conditions for successful learning outcomes.

Rationale

This goal addresses the basic conditions necessary to open the doors of our schools and support the successful learning of our students. Staffing and basic operations
are accounted for here to address the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) State Priority #1, which is Basic (Conditions for Learning). In addition, evidence for the
sufficiency of materials to address the LCFF State Priority #2 Implementation of State Standards (Conditions for Learning) is also included. Beyond just having materials,
staff are surveyed each year to determine their level of comfort with implementing state standards. Additionally, given the need for proficiency in technology, digital
resources as part of core programs, and the changes in instructional practice due to the recent school closures, access to devices and the internet have become a part of
ensuring that students have access to the resources they need to be successful with state standards. Partnering with parents is a critical component to ensuring success _
for our students, whichis LCFF Priority #3 Family Engagement. Parents are actively involved in the school community through School Site Council, PTAs, volunteer [
opportunities, and parent training. This also addresses all five Board Goals: Fiscal Excellence, Academic Excellence, High quality staff providing high quality service, and A
| Safe, orderly, positive, respectful learning environments, and School/Family/Community Partnerships and Communication.

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 1

Priority Metric Baseline Year 1 Mid-Year Progress Desired Outcome for 2023-24
Credential Audit and data from |One teacher has an Internship | The internship teacher has All teachers will be fully
CBEDS Credential working on a full completed their credential while |credentialed and appropriately
credential with another on a the teacher in the short-term assigned.
__ short-term Staffing Permit staffing permit is now on a
_ working toward an Internship single year, credential waiver _
2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 1 of 48

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report



| Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Credential and then a full
credential. All remaining
teachers were fully credentialed
and appropriately assigned in
the 2020-2021 school year.

with an anticipated credential
completion date of June 2022.

Board minutes for William's
sufficiency

Every student has standards-

aligned materials as measured

by Williams compliance

documentation.

Documentation for William's
compliance was submitted to
the Board at the October 4th
Board meeting. Each Principal
verified that ali students have
appropriate textbooks.

All students will continue to
have standards-aligned
materials.

Certificated staff survey on
implementation of standards

94% of certificated staff

members who teach core
content areas said they Agree
or Strongly Agree with the
statement "l am comfortable in

my understanding and

implementation of California
State Standards" as measured

by the annual teacher survey.

The staff survey will be
administered in February-March
of 2022.

95% of certificated staff
members who teach core
content areas will Agree or
Strongly Agree with the
statement "l am comfortable in
my understanding and
implementation of California
State Standards".

Distribution of devices and hot
spots (as needed) to ensure
access to instructional
resources to support the
development of proficiency in
state standards.

All students were provided a
device in the 2020-2021 school

year due to distance learning.

When students are back on
campus, a system has been
created to assign devices for
those in heed while continuing
to provide devices within each
classroom for student use.
Qualifying families will also be
able to check out a hot spot
and/or be connected with low-
cost internet providers.

All students were provided with
devices at the beginning of the
school year. For those needing

'a device in the home for
elementary, additional

Chromebooks are on each site

for check out as necessary. The
district continues to provide hot
spots as needed.

All students will have access to
devices and internet to support
progress on state standards
and proficiency in 21st century
skills.

Documentation of training for
SSC and DELAC members
including the minutes, sign ins,
and presentation materials

SSC and DELAC training was

conducted in the year prior to
‘COVID. Training will be

scheduled for the fall of 2021 for

All Principals were trained in
Title1 Crate this year in order to
facilitate the collection of this
type of documentation. SSC

SSC and DELAC training is
conducted every other year to
ensure parent participation in

the decision-making process.

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 2 of 48



Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Qutcome for 2023-24 _

Parent involvement in the LCAP
process as documented through
sign-in sheets to ensure
representation of parents of
UDPs along with regularly
scheduled meetings for parent
input in "Coffee with Coombs"
at each site.

Attendance at PTA meetings by
district staff to connect with
parents and support efforts to
involve the parents of UDPs .

each site as part of parental
input into the decision-making
process for the development of
SPSAs and the LCAP.

Virtual meetings were
calendared in the 2020-2021
school year with limited
participation. Digital sign in
sheets were maintained to
document participation.

Sign in sheets document the
participation of district staff at
regularly scheduled PTA
meetings along with the PTA
Council meetings for La Habra.

trainings and meeting agendas
are being uploaded there
regularly. We have started the

LCAP process in terms of

parent input with attending PTA
meetings. The PAC meetings
are scheduled for February and
March of 2022.

Meetings will be calendared
each school year including the
potential for reaching a wider
audience by continuing with
virtual options. Sign in sheets
will be maintained to document
participation.

Sign in sheets will document the
participation of district staff at
regularly scheduled PTA
meetings along with the PTA
Council meetings for La Habra

.m5<m< Results

95% of the parent respondents
marked “Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the statement, “I
feel welcome at my student's
school”.

97% of the parent respondents
marked “Agree” or “Strongly

|Agree” with the statement, “|

receive information about my
student’s academic
performance through report
cards, progress reports, email,
parent-notification letters,
and/or parent
conferences/phone calls”.

93% of the parent respondents
marked “Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the statement, "Our

The parent survey will be
administered in February-March
of 2022,

95% or more of parent
respondents marking “Agree” or
“Strongly Agree” with the
statement, “l feel welcome at
my student’s school”.

97% or more of parent
respondents marking “Agree”
or “Strongly Agree” with the
statement, “l receive information
about my student’s academic
performance through report
cards, progress reports, email,
parent-notification letters,
and/or parent
conferences/phone calls”.

93% or more of parent
respondents marking “Agree” or
“Strongly Agree” with the

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell loint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 3 of 48



Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

school is safe, orderly, and well
disciplined".

88% or more of students will
“Agree” or “Strongly Agree” with
the statement “| feel safe at
school” and "l have
opportunities to connect with my
school”.

statement, "Our school is safe,
orderly, and well disciplined".

92% or more of students will
“Agree” or “Strongly Agree” with
the statement “| feel safe at
school” and "l have
opportunities to connect with my
school”.

Sign Ins

Survey Results

94% of parents responded
Agree or Strongly Agree 1o the
statement "I am aware of parent
involvement opportunities such
as School Site Council, English
Learner Advisory Committee
(ELAC), Parent Teacher
Association (PTA), Back-to-
School Night and Open House,
and | have multiple
opportunities to be involved in
my child’s education".

Monitor sign ins and
participation for SELPA
involvement, meeting
attendance, and the percentage
of families of UPPs engaged in
activities and decision-making
committees.

The parent survey will be
administered in February-March
of 2022.

95% or more of parent
respondents marking Agree of
Strongly Agree with the
statement "l am aware of
parent involvement
opportunities such as School
Site Council, English Learner
Advisory Committee (ELAC),
Parent Teacher Association |
(PTA), Back-to-School Night
and Open House, and | have
multiple opportunities to be
involved in my child's
education”.

Once a baseline is established |
(since the data is not currently
aggregated across multiple
meetings), there will be a 5%
increase in the number of
families actively involved in
activities and committees
across the district.

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 4 of 48




Actions and Services

Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

11

Certificated Staffing-
Teachers

Fully credentialed teachers
will be employed and
appropriately assigned.
This includes some
teachers that support
unduplicated pupils;
however, those services
are documented elsewhere
within the Local Control
Accountability Pian (LCAP).
Where the documentation
of services is provided, the
expense is identified as a
repeated expenditure.

Ongoing

No

LCFF 15,524,501
Other State 0
Local 0

Federal 83,862

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0

0

Federal

$15,608,363.00

$4,769,763.00

1.2

Certificated Staffing-
Administration and other
Support Staff

This includes certificated
personnel working at the
district office, Principals,
the Assistant Principal at
Rancho Starbuck, School
Psychologists, and SLPs
(Speech and Language
Pathologists).

Ongoing

No

LCFF 2,582,333
Other State 0
Local 0

Federal 113,605

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0

0

Federal

$2,695,938.00

$912,749.00

1.3

Classified Staffing-
Technology Department
The Technology
Department, consisting of
three full-time and one part-
time employee, will oversee
the District's technology
needs. This includes
monitoring the networks
and infrastructure for
access to the internet and
online testing for the state.

Ongoing

No

LCFF 407,997
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0

0

Federal

$407,997.00

$39,408.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 5 0of 48



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

With the Chromehook
Initiative, maintenance and
support of devices is an
ongoing need. Go

‘Guardian was implemented
‘as well across the district to

allow teachers the ability to
monitar students on their
Chromebooks for added
safety. Communication
tools such as websites,
phone, and email systems
will also be maintained by
the Tech Department as
will safety and security
measures such as Raptor
which was purchased for
implementation in the
2018-19 school year.
Raptor is an electronic
check in system for all
people visiting a campus
that alerts staff to potential
issues with a visitor.
Catapult is an emergency
management system for
communication during
emergenacy situations such
as a lock down, which is
also managed by the Tech
Department. It allows for
better coordination with
outside emergency
personnel such as police
and fire as well as internally
for teachers to account for
students. Tech staff also
work with students in
specialized opportunities to
learn about technology
such as drones,
programming, and robotics.

2122-22 Locai Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 6 of 48



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

" Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year

Report

1.4

Classified Staffing-
Custodial, Maintenance,
and Grounds

Provide basic custodial,
maintenance, and grounds
services.

Ongoing

No

LCFF 1,773,857
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0

0

Federal

$1,773,857.00

$203,701.00

1.5

Basic Utilities
Basic utilities including
electrical and water.

Ongoing

No

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

LCFF 830,328
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

$830,328.00

$378,364.00

1.6

Instructional Materials-
Textbooks and Software
In order to ensure that all
students have standards-
aligned instructional
materials, the district has a
Textbook Adoption timeline
to plan for the expenditure
of funds to stay in
alignment with the release
of new frameworks under
the state adoption cycle.
This also includes the
purchase of any necessary
supplemental materials and
software programs that are
part of the overall
instructional program
designed to support
progress on mastery of
state standards. For the
2021-2022 school year, we
anticipate the purchase of
new science materials
since the pilot was
interrupted in the 2020
school year. Software items
included here are those
purchased by the district
that directly impact student

Ongoing

No

LCFF 313,567

$3183,567.00

$12,373.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 7 of 48



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan .,

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

¢ Non-Personnel

Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

progress on standards
and/or tools teachers use
for instructional purposes
within the classroom
including Lexia, ST Math,
SeeSaw, Kami, and
Google Enterprise.

1.7

Site Technology
Allocation

Each school is provided
with a technology allocation
to update and expand
equipment inventory with a
priority placed on any
teacher computer that is
five or more years old. After
those replacements have
been made, the sites work
with their site leadership
teams to determine how
best to use the funds in
alignment with their
identified needs and goals
in their School Plan for
Student Achievement
(SPSA).

Ongoing

No

LCFF

0

Other State 0

Local

Federal

0
0

LCFF 45,000
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

$45,000.00

$1,943.00

1.8

Instructional Supplies-
Per Pupil Site Allocation
Each school was provided
with a per pupil allocation
for the purchase of
instructional supplies. This
allocation is based on
overall enroliment at the
site as calculated from
CBEDS data in October. It
is adjusted each year in
alignment with the
Consumer Price Index
(CPI).

Ongoing

No

LCFF

0

Other State 0

Local

Federal

0
0

LCFF 271,180
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

$271,180.00

$81,012.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 8 of 48



Goal/ Action Title/
Action Description

Personnel Non-Personnel Total

Timespan, | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds

Mid-Year Report

1.9 Maintenance of Ongoing No LCFF 0 LCFF 0 $0.00
_,o\_”ﬂm”wﬂm_ﬁwﬁam: Other State 0 Other State 0
devices from the first cycle Local 0 Local 0
of purchasing in 2015-16.
As new Chromebooks are Federal 0 Federal 0
purchased, we have been
able to expand the 1-1
Chromebook initiative for
grades 3-8 to include the
TK-2nd grade classrooms.
With sending home devices
during the pandemic, there
is a greater need for
replacement of devices in
the coming year in addition
to the anticipated need to
refresh the older devices.

1.10 | Classified Staffing-Data | Ongoing No LCFF 51,916 LCFF 0 $51,916.00 |%$4,943.00
Systems Analyst

With the increase in state- Other State 0 Other State 0

required reporting through Local 0 Local 0

CalPads in addition to the
need for the management Federal 0 Federal 0

of the Student Information
System (Aeries), it is
necessary to maintain a
classified position for the
data input and monitoring.
As a small district, this
position also supports the
monitoring of our
unduplicated pupils in
running queries and reports
for English learners, Foster
Youth, McKinney-Vento
Youth, and low income
families. That portion of the
salary is accounted for
under Goal 4, Action 14.

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 9 of 48
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report



_ Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

* '+ Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

1.11

Single Plan for Student
Achievement (SPSA)
SPSA goals will be shared
at a regularly scheduled
Board meeting including
conclusions drawn from
data analysis to highlight
the unique needs of each
individual school site. Each
school will provide
opportunities for parents to
engage with the school
community, attend trainings
or parent nights designed
to support the Home
Scheol Connection. These
are outlined in the site's
Single School Plan for
Student Achievement
(SPSA). As part of
managing and tracking the
action items and
expenditures in the SPSA,
we are looking to purchase
Title 1 Crate from 806
Technologies to support
the monitoring of services
for our Unduplicated Pupils
who drive the development
of goals in the SPSA.

Ongoing

No

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

LCFF 5,000
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

$5,000.00

$0.00

School Site Council and
DELAC

Continue to provide annual
training and/or refreshers
for School Site Council
members on their roles and
responsibilities. Each Title |
school will hold a Title |
meeting to inform parents
of opportunities for advisory

Ongoing

No

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

$0.00

$0.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 10 of 48




Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan :| Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

groups and volunteerism.
Schools will continue to
implement an English
Language Advisary Council
(ELAC) or transfer the
responsibilities to the
School Site Council. The
ELAC representative from
the site along with other
parents of English learners
attend District English
Language Advisory
Committee (DELAC)
meetings to provide input
on services for English
learners at the district level.
This is a vital part of
involving parents in the
decision-making process.

1.13

Parent Teacher
Associations (PTA)

Each school will continue to
form a Parent Teacher
Association (PTA) with
district support to reach out
to the parents of UDPs.
Meetings are scheduled
both in the morning and in
the evening to allow for
greater attendance. PTAs
strive to include parents in
meaningful ways from
event planning to roles
within the PTA. At least
once a year, district
personnel attend meetings
to discuss the LCAP in
addition to parent meetings
held by the Superintendent
known as "Coffee with
Coombs". Site Principals
regularly attend meetings
to provide information and

Ongoing No

LCFF

0

Other State 0

Local

Federal

0
0

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

$0.00

$0.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 11 of 48



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan-

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

ey Non-Personnel

Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

receive feedback for
planning purposes. The
District will support the
efforts of the La Habra PTA
Council and each school
will send a representative
to the council meetings.

1.14

Family Engagement

Fund tools to support
parent outreach: phone
outreach system and
websites for the district,
sites, and teachers. The
District will continue to offer
trainings and/or institutes
designed to partner with
parents in supporting
student success. An annual
parent survey will be
administered to provide
parents with an opportunity
for feedback and ideas for
enhancing educational
programs. The Director of
Special Education will
continue to support families
in accessing resources and
training through the SELPA
to ensure our students with
special needs are being
supported.

Ongoing

No

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

LCFF

34,647

Other State 0

lLocal

Federal

0
0

$34,647.00

$72,279.00

1.15

Classified Staff-
Administration and other
Support

The costs associated with
Office Managers, Fiscal
Services, Attendance
Clerks, and other classified
support staff necessary for
the basic operations at the

Ongoing

No

LCFF 2,552,183
Other State 26,609
Local 81,807
Federal 35,404

LCFF

0

Other State 0

Local

Federal

0
0

$2,696,003.00

$98,294.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 12 of 48



Goal/ Action Title/ 2 L Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
Action Description TimespaniGontiibuting Expenses Expenses Funds e canRepoNt
district office and sites are
included here. [
Goal 2

Early Literacy

Rationale

As the community needs have shifted over the last few years, it has become evident that Lowell Joint needs to provide more opportunities to develop school readiness
skills for incoming students. Over the last few years, Transitional Kindergarten classes have been opened at each elementary site. The district also runs a preschool to
service students with special needs. Prior to the school closures in March of 2020, the district had applied for and received a fundable score for a state-funded preschool
program. With two preschools in the area closing even before the pandemic, this was identified as a need from our families. With the freezing of funding to new programs
in March of 2020, we were unable to move forward with a preschool at that time. We became involved with the First Five Orange County: Children and Families
Commission when asked to administer the Early Developmental Index (EDI) to Kindergarten students in order to provide comprehensive data for the city of La Habra.
This led to discussions about using the information for our district with the need to include our Los Angeles county schools as well. First Five LA and First Five OC were
able to work together to fund this for our district prior to the pandemic. First Five OC provided consultants to support the writing of our application for a state-funded
preschool, and ultimately, First Five OC included us in their last round of funding so that we received an Early Childhood grant to-develop programs and services to better
support early literacy. So while the district is still on hold with state-funding for a preschool, we have continued to move forward with planning to better meet the early
literacy needs of our community. A Teacher on Special Assignment (TOSA) was hired to support the deliverables for the grant and provide professional development
around early literacy needs within the district. During the school closures, our primary grades were the most impacted in terms of attendance and engagement. Our
Kindergarten student had a chronic absentee rate of over 9% with both 1st and 2nd grades above 6%. This is significantly higher than the other grade levels that ran
between 2-4% for a district average of 4.34%. Given that we may have additional students that postponed entry into schooling due to the pandemic along with the
disrupted schooling for many of our local preschools, we are anticipating this will be an area of greater focus through the cycle of this LCAP at minimum. This goal helps
to address the LCFF State Priority #2 Implementation of State Standards (Conditions for Learning) as well as State Priority #4 Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes). This
also addresses the Board Goals of Academic Excellence and School/Family/Community Partnerships and Communication.

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 2

Metric

Early Childhood Accountability
Plan and quarterly updates on

Priority Baseline

The Early Childhood Leadership

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress Desired Outcome for 2023-24

The plan is in development as | The three-year plan will have

progress.

Team has met to develop the
beginnings of the Early
Childhood Accountability Plan.
Quarterly updates were
provided during the 2020-2021
school year; however, progress
on some goals was delayed due
to school closures including the

part of the deliverables for the
funding we receive under First
Five. The scope of the plan is
being broadened with the new
requirements under Universal
Pre-Kindergarten (UPK). This
plan will be submitted to the
Board in June for approval and

been developed and
implemented including quarterly
updates to the plan.

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 13 of 48



Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

opening of a state-funded

preschool. The hope is to

complete the plan in the coming

'year with programs and

services beginning in the 2021-
2022 school year.

will encompass much of what
had already been started as a
plan for First Five.

Agendas and Minutes from the
Early Childhood Leadership
Team.

The agendas and minutes from
the 2020-2021 school year
reflect the initial planning of this
group for reaching out to
engage stakeholders to help
develop the vision and plan for

early literacy within Lowell Joint.
The committee includes primary

teachers, a principal, the district
nurse, various other district
personnel, parents, and
community members to support

outreach to families with
children ages 0-5 that are not
‘enrolled within our school

system.

The committee has continued to
provide input to help develop
the overall plan for early
learners. With the new
requirements under Universal
Pre-Kindergarten funding, we
are working to develop a
cohesive plan to align our
practices from Learning Link to
preschool to school-age
children. Our Kindergarten
teachers were trained in the
Early Developmental Index to
be able to assess our
Kindergarteners this year. This
assessment is done every other
year as part of our work with
First Five, and it will result in a
wealth of data to help inform our
community partners about the
needs of our families with
children aged 0-5.

The Early Childhood Leadership |
Team will continue to assess |
data around the needs of our |
early learners and their families
to develop programs and
connect families with resources
to support school readiness.

Data from Constant Contact for
Newsletters and Brochures with
Early Literacy Information;
Participation with Ready4K

The Early Literacy Teacher on
Special Assignment (TOSA)
has begun sending out
newsletters through Constant
Contact and is developing a
brochure to support parents
with understanding
developmental milestones for
early learners. There are 58

We have shared 5 issues of the
Young Essential Scholars
Newsletter to 70 families.

Based on one of the surveys we
are collaborating with Help Me
Grow to provide parent forums
around topics related to the
domains outlined in the Early
Developmental Index (EDI)

Data from Constant Contact
and Ready4K will show an
increase in the number of
families subscribed to these
resources.

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 14 of 48



m Priority Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

participants signed up to
receive monthly newsletters
after initial emails to staff and
parents. Ready4K licenses
have been purchased with 47
people currently signed up to
receive weekly texts with
activities and information for
parents targeting the specific
ages of their children.

data. We developed a brochure
based on the EDI data around
our most vuinerable areas
(Gross and Fine Motor Skills)
that has information, activities
and resources. This brochure
has been shared on our
Learning Link webpage, at PTA
meetings, the Learning Link and
with community providers.
Ready4K has 52 families that
have received 2970 messages
via text aligned with skills based
on their child's age.

Sign-ins to document parent
involvement in the Learning
Link.

The Learning Link has not
opened yet, so we have no
data.

We have been able to open the
Learning Link two days a week
serving over 20 families. The
response has been
overwhelmingly positive with
regular requests to open for
more days. We have been able
to add another two days starting
in February.

Parents will regularly make use
of the Learning Link to build
school readiness skills in
children ages 0-5. i

Enrollment in the preschool
program.

The preschool program has not
opened yet. A for-fee option is
being developed for the
beginning of the 2022 year with

|the potential for a state-funded
/| preschool should funding

become available.

We have completed the
licensing process for our
preschool and are beginning the
process of adding an additional
site for when Jordan is no
longer at Maybrook.

All slots within a for-fee and/or
state-funded preschool will be
filled to provide support for our
earliest learners.

Attendance at and
implementation of professional
development around language
acquisition as measured by
sign-in sheets, classroom
observation and ongoing
coaching.

While many of the teachers
attended training in OCDE
Project GLAD in 2013-14 and
2014-15, there has not been
any follow up. Additionally with
many new staff in the district
over the last 6 years, a number

We have an additional 8
teachers completing the 2-Day
training in February of 2022.
With sub issues related to
Covid, we have had to postpone
the 4-day Demo that was
originally scheduled for march.

All teachers will have attended
both the initial 2-day training
and the 4-day demonstration for
OCDE Project GLAD. In
addition, regularly scheduled
follow up sessions will be
provided along with in-class

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 15 of 48



Metric

Baseline

Priority

of people need to attend the
initial 2-day training and the 4-
day demo. Eight teachers
attended the 2-day in June of
2021.

A google site was started to
provide resources across grade
levels that is specific to the
implementation of OCDE
Project GLAD within Lowell
Joint

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

The plan is to offer if in the
summer and then again next fall
to continue to move forward.,

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

modeling and coaching by the
Early Literacy TOSA who is also
a trainer for OCDE Project
GLAD. Implementation by
teachers is clearly evident
through artifacts within the room
and shared resources
developed by teachers in on the
google site.

Actions and Services

Goal/ Action Title/ . M Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
._ Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses _ Expenses Funds Mid-Year Report |
[ 24 Early Literacy Teacher on | 2021-2024 Yes LCFF 0 LCFF 10,000 $135,906.00 |$47,746.00
Ama_wm_\m_ Assignment Other State 0 Other State 0
The Early Literacy Teacher Local 53,398 Local 0
on Special Assignment
Federal 72,508 Federal 0

(TOSA) is responsible for
coordinating the
development of the Early
Childhood Accountability
Plan and its deliverables
while also supporting
teachers with strategies for
the development of literacy.
This includes the actions
specifically identified within
the LCAP as well as those
in the Early Childhood
Accountability Plan that is
required by the grant
funding from First Five
Orange County. The Early
Literacy TOSA will work
with teachers on identifying
areas of need through the

data gathered in the Early

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 16 of 48



Goal/ Action Title/
Action Description

Developmental Index and
district-wide benchmarks.
This is especially important
in returning from disrupted
schooling to ensure that
the foundational skills
developed in the primary
grades are addressed in
suppaorting students with
proficiency in reading and
writing.

Personnel Non-Personnel Total

Timespan . Expenses Expenses __Funds

Contributing Mid-Year Report

22 Early Literacy Committee | 2021-2024 No LCFF 0 LCFF 0 $1,000.00 {$0.00
m%ﬁ“mmw%mmﬂw%mzn Other State 0 Other State 0
Team that will develop an Local 0 Local 1,000
Early Childhood
Accountability Plan (ECAP) Federal 0 Federal 0
with evidence of
implementation and
support.

2.3 Early Literacy- 2021-2024 No LCFF 0 LCFF 0 $30,002.00

Community Engagement
The following include Other State 0 Other State 0

strategies identified for Local 0 Local 30,002
engaging with community
providers, parent groups Federal 0 Federal 0
and individuals to support
early learners with a
primary focus on our
families needing support
with community resources
and navigating school
readiness:

o [Establish
relationships
with neighboring
community

_ providers,
[ parent groups
[ and individuals

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 17 of 48
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report



Goal/ Action Title/
Action Description

in the LJSD
district
boundaries.

¢ Develop
ongoing
communication
with existing
providers,
parent groups
and individuals
to work
collaboratively in
supporting early
learning.

« Utilize YES
(Young
Essential
Scholars)
Newsietter to
showcase
community
providers,
parent groups
and individuals
that support
early learners.

¢ Provide a
Learning Link for
families to
engage in
meaningful
activities linked
to early learning.

. * Provide access
to Ready4K to
target resources
to existing
families and
those with
children ages 0-
5 within our
community.

= Utilize quarterly
informational
brochure

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint Schoal District Page 18 of 48
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Personnel Non-Personnel Total

Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds

Mid-Year Report




Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

| Contributing

Personne!
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

documenting
early childhood
milestones for
familes
supporting
children ages 0-
5.

24

Early Literacy-Preschool
Program and Learning
Link

With approximately 40% of
our families within Lowell
Joint meeting the
requirements for free and
reduced lunch, there is a
tremendous need to
support our community with
access to quality preschool
at no charge. As the
discussion began around
opening a state-funded
preschool, many additional
families expressed an
interest in having a fee-
based program as well
since we would be able to
offer a program at less
expensive rates than some
of the local alternatives. We
are in the process of
applying for a preschool
license so that we are able
to move forward with a
state-funded preschool as
funds become available
and explore the fee-based
options. Until we are able
to open a preschool
program, we are preparing
to open a Learning Link: a
space where parents come
with their children ages 0-5

2021-2022

Yes

Local

30,000

LCFF 1,000
Other State 25,000

$56,000.00

$4,039.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountabhility Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 19 of 48



Goal/ Action Title/ L e Personnel Non-Personnel Total
Action Description TimespansliGontributing Expenses Expenses Funds

to engage in activities
designed to develop and
support school readiness
skills. The goal would be to
have the space open for 10
hours a week.

Mid-Year Report

2.5 Transitional Kindergarten [ Ongoing Yes LCFF 632,359 LCFF 0 $632,359.00 |$221,092.00

Transitional Kindergarten is
not currently compulsory, Other State 0 Other State 0

however, those students Local 0 Local 0
who would not otherwise
be enrolled in preschool or Federal 0 Federal 0
other school readiness
programs prior to entry into
Kindergarten are ata
serious disadvantage
without the opportunity to
participate in activities
designed to nurture and
develop foundational skills.

Goal 3

Modernization and Maintenance of Faci

Rationale

The schools in Lowell Joint were built in the 1950s and 60s and are in desperate need of major maintenance and modernization. The District continues to prioritize facility
needs, and with the passing of a bond in 2018 (Measure LL), there will be additional monies available to begin the modernization and upgrading of all sites over the next
few years. The primary focus of the bond is related to roofing and HVAC with the assaciated electrical and plumbing. These additional dollars will allow District funds for
maintenance to be used on other needs in the prioritized list. Facilities projects were identified beginning with the Olita Major Maintenance project that began in 2020.
There was an unexpected vacancy at the Maybrook site within the district that had been leased to a private school. This allowed for the consideration of using that site as
temporary housing for the six schools as the repairs to roofing and HVAC systems are completed. No students present on site allows for a faster construction timeline,
which decreases the overall cost of the project. It also means students will not be disrupted during the day by construction. Olita was technically moved to the Maybrook
campus at the beginning of the 2020 school year while we were still in distance learning. Because we were not able to return to in-person instruction until March of 2021,
there was little disruption for students who were meeting virtually. Construction was completed on the Olita site and Macy was moved to Maybrook mid-year. With the
work at El Portal being done over the summer, three of the six schools were able to complete major construction and modernization within about a year. This allowed the
district to complete the issuance of the bonds, which ultimately saved the tax payers approximately five million dollars in addition to some construction savings. Jordan is
being moved to the Maybrook site for the 2021-2022 school year. Meadow Green and Rancho Starbuck will follow after construction is completed at Jordan. Given that

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 20 of 48
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report




the primary purpose of the bond was to upgrade basic necessities (roofing, HVAC, electrical and plumbing), there is still much work to be done. The district will continue
to address major areas for improvement in conjunction with the projects identified in the scope of work for the bond. This goal helps to address the Local Control Funding
| Formula (LCFF) State Priority #1, which is Basic (Conditions for Learning).

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 3

Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year1 imn_k.mmq Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

Board agendas and minutes
Bond Oversight Committee
agendas and minutes

The Facilities Master Plan will
be Board approved and
implementation will begin with
regular updates to the Board of
Trustees on progress.

Regular updates are provided to

{the Board both in open Board
meetings and the Weekly

(email).

Identified timelines for priorities
within the Facilities Master Plan
will be met including projects
completed under the bond.

SARCs and FIT Reports

All school sites were inspected
using the Facilities Inspection
Tool (FIT) to ensure that
facilities are in “Good Repair" or
higher.

All school sites were inspected
using the Facilities Inspection
Tool (FIT) to ensure that
facilities are in “Good Repair" or
higher. The information was
provided on the School
Accountability Report Cards
and posted to the district
website by Feb. 1st, 2022.

All school sites will continue to
receive a "Good Repair" or
higher marking on the annual
FIT reports that are then
reported in the School
Accountability Report Cards
(SARCs)

Board agendas and minutes
Bond Oversight Committee
agendas and minutes

Three of the sites have
completed the scope of work
identified in the bond with some
additional district-funded work
being completed in the summer
of 2021 (marques, painting).

In addition to the three
completed sites, Jordan is
currently housed at Maybrook
while work is completed. New
modular buildings have been
placed along with HVAC and
other work on existing buildings.
The painting was completed
with some touch ups still
needed. The marques have not
been installed but they are
ready and should be completed
within the 2021-2022 school
year.

All schools will have completed
the work identified in Measure
LL including new roofing, HVAC
systems, and the associated
electrical and plumbing. Some
sites also required updated
piping for sewer lines.
Additional district-funded
projects will be completed
including marques, painting,
and water bottle filling stations.

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 21 of 48



Actions and Services

Goal/
. Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

3.1

Facilities Master Plan
Given the scope of work
necessary to support the
aging facilities within the
district, a Facilities Master
Plan needs to be approved
to prioritize the major
maintenance projects in
conjunction with the work
being done through
Measure LL. The primary
focus of the bond is related
to roofing and HVAC with
the associated electrical
and plumbing. These
additional bond dollars will
allow District funds for
maintenance to be used on
other needs on the
prioritized list within the
Facilities Master Plan. The
plan will set the vision for
the next 20 plus years as
"Caretakers of a Legacy".
The plan was developed
over the last few years and
is ready to be submitted for
Board approval. Once
approved, there will be
regular updates to the
Board. There are
$2,056,000 dollars
budgeted for non-
personnel expenses out of
Fund 14, 25, and 40.
These are not included in
the general fund budget.

Ongoing

No

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

LCFF
Other

0
State 0

Federal 0

$0.00

$0.00

3.2

FIT Reports
Continue to inspect all
school sites to ensure that

Ongoing

No

LCFF 0
Qther State 0
Local 0

LCFF
Other

Local

0
State 0
0

$0.00

$0.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 22 of 48



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

facilities are in "Good
Repair."

Federal 0

Federal 0

3.3

Measure LL-Bond

In November of 2018 the
community passed a bond
to support the much
needed facilities work at
each of the six sites. The
scope of work is outlined in
the Master Plan and the
expenditures are
documented here to
support the ongoing work
in meeting this goal beyond
the use of general fund
monies. There is
$13,267,359 budgeted in
non-personnel for major
maintenance and
modernization for the 2021-
2022 schoal year with an
additional $115, 392 in
personnel. These costs are
not included in the general
fund budget since they are
a reflection of the bond
monies,

Ongoing

ey

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

$0.00

Goal 4

In order to meet the unique mnmam_.:_..o. behavioral, and social emotional needs of all students, a Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS) will continue to be

expanded and refined.

Rationale

In order to meet the unique needs of all students within the Lowell Joint School District, there has been a focus on developing clear levels of support for students in
academics, behavior, and social emotional learning over the last few years under the larger umbrella of a Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS). The work began with
identifying district-wide initiatives to support first, best instruction in the classroom that would meet the needs of the majority of students. This is also known as Tier 1.
Then additional supports (Tier 2 and Tier 3) were developed and layered in to address smaller, more targeted groups of students based on need. As those systems were
Lput In place, we began to tackle the supperts for Behavior and now Social Emotional/Mental Health needs. The overall system is constantly being refined based on data

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 23 of 48



and the ever-changing needs of our student population. All stakeholders have expressed concern for student's growth and well-being as we return to campuses full time
in the 2021-2022 school year. Specific, more targeted goals have been identified for the Social Emotional and Mental Health needs of students and for Early Literacy.
While these fall within the Multi-Tiered System of Support, it was important to spotlight these areas given the current context for our students and the increased need in
these areas. Just as important is the attention to potential changes in that first, best instruction that may need to take place to provide opportunities for learning around
skill sets that may not have been fully developed due to interrupted schooling, changes in instructional practice in distance learning, and other barriers making learning
difficult. So represented in this goal are some of the ongoing practices that have been successfully supporting students prior to the pandemic as well as additional actions
designed to address both the greater number of students needing intervention and the varied challenges facing students in the coming years.

Refining our overall Multi-Tiered System of Support continues to be an ongoing means of addressing the needs of students at all levels. We are developing additional

| services and interventions for our English Learners and Students with Disabilities. While we maintained the supports from the prior year, there is clearly a need to provide
additional intervention for students to close the achievement gap as opposed to maintaining growth. We are adding some additional counseling and psychological
supports for our UDPs, which will allow for more targeted support and monitoring for these student groups that are below the overall average for the district. This is
especially true for our English learners and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students, We want to continue to monitor both the academic and socio-emotional needs of
our Foster Youth as well. We are currently evaluating the data from the LAS Links assessment to determine the focus for our English learners next year. We had hoped
to have the data in February for planning purposes, however, delays due to COVID and school closures did not allow for the this. With the close out of the year, we will
look at the data as baseline information to plan with over the summer for beginning the 2021-2022 schoal year with any necessary adjustments to our English learner
supports. This will also allow us to analyze current SBAC data and ELPAC Summative data, which is becoming available now, to make decisions for the coming year.

This addresses the LCFF State Priorities 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning), Pricrity 5: Student Engagement (Engagement), Priority 6: School Climate
(Engagement), Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning), and Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes). On a local level, this goal is designed to meet
Board expectations around Academic Excellence, School/Family/Community Partnerships and Communication, High quality staff providing high quality service, and Safe,
orderly, positive, respectful learning environments.

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 4

Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

|
|

California School Dashboard
English Learner Progress
Indicator (ELPI)

ELPAC Data

Las Links

Roughly 48% of English learner
students were making progress
towards English Language
proficiency in 2019 on the
English Learner Progress
Indicator. In the 2018-2019
year, we had 19% scoring well-
developed (4) on the ELPAC
and another 44% at moderately
developed (3). We have current
data for our 3rd-8th grade
students with 19% still at the
well-developed (4) on the
ELPAC and another 36% at
moderately developed (3) for
2021. We do not have the TK-

With the addition of scores for
TK-2nd grade, we are at 18%
for well-developed (4) and 41%
for moderately developed (3)
based on ELPAC data in the
Spring of 2021.

60% of English Learners will be
making progress towards
English language proficiency
with 25% scoring well-
developed and 50% at
moderately developed. For the
summative ELPAC, we would
like to increase the number of
students scoring at the well-
developed range by 5% while
also increasing those in the
moderate range by 5%

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 24 of 48



Priority

Metric

..Baseline

Year1 Mid-Year Progress

Deslred Outcome for 2023-24

2nd grade scores for 2021 from
the state as of yet.

SBAC Data

For ELA, 23% of English
learners met or exceeded the
standard with only 16% in
mathematics. This is in
comparison to English only
students with 64% meeting or
exceeding the standard for ELA
and 56% for mathematics.

We did have students
participate in CAASPP testing in
the 2020-2021 school year.
About 19% met or exceeded the
standard with 14% for
mathematics. This is in
comparison to 54% for English
Only in ELA and 36% in
mathematics. Given the context
of Covid, it's interesting to note
that our English learners only
dropped 4% in ELA compared
to our English only that dropped
10% with both declining 2% in
mathematics.

To close the achievement gap
while still raising achievement
levels for all students, English
learners will need to gain 5%
each year with English only
students gaining at least 2% in
both ELA and mathematics.

Dataquest-Reclassification
Rates

19% of students were
reclassified in the 2020-2021
school year, which is well above
LA county at 8.1% and the state
at m.mﬁxu.

The reclassification process will
begin once the Summative
ELPAC is completed.

Reclassification rates will
remain above both county and
state rates.

iReady Data

An initial diagnostic will be
administered by September of
2021 since this is a new
assessment system. From this,
both goals and stretch goals will
be determined for each student.

IReady data will allow us to
track Spanish proficiency for our
Dual Language students, which
we have not done in the first 2
years of the program with a
formal assessment tool.

The initial diagnostic was
completed along with training
for teachers on analyzing the
results. The second diagnostic
was just completed in January
of 2022 along with another
professional development
opportunity for teachers in
looking at results to plan for
instructional practice.

80% of students will meet their
goals with 30% completing
stretch goals. These numbers
will be re-evaluated upon
training within the system and
monitoring growth over the first
year of implementation.

60% of Spanish learners will be
making progress towards
Spanish Language proficiency
in alignment with our goal for
developing English proficiency
with our English learners. This
may be adjusted after baseline

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 25 of 48



_ Priority

|

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

data is gathered in the fall of
2021.

Professional Development
records
Classroom Observations

All teachers hired before the
pandemic have been trained in
Thinking Maps with 2 additional
days in Write from the
Beginning.

8 teachers hired after 2015
were trained in the 2-day
Research portion of Project
‘GLAD with the 4-day
Demonstration scheduled for
the fall since all elementary
teachers were trained in 2013-
3015.

All teachers hired before the
school closures were trained in
Explicit, Direct Instruction (EDI).

We have had to postpone a lot
of professional development
that had been planned for the
year. However, we have had
one day of Write from the
Beginning and Beyond training
with a second scheduled for
March. We have another group
of teachers that will be trained
in the 2-day Project GLAD in
the month of February. We
continue to provide support for
iReady as a new benchmark
system this year as well as
GATE certification. We will work
on catching up teachers with
other initiatives when the
substitute situation is a little
more stable.

All teachers will be trained in
both Thinking Maps and Write
from the Beginning.

All teachers will have been _
through both the 2-day and 4-
day portions of Project GLAD
training and a system of
ongoing follow-up and coaching
will be in place to support
implementation.

All teachers will be trained in
Explicit, Direct Instruction (EDI).

Absentee letters

SARB packets

Monthly Chronic Absentee lists
Attendance rates

Chronic absenteeism

Middle school drop out rate

Letters are automatically
generated in Aeries on the 3rd,
5th, 7th, 9th, and 13th absence
to notify parents for both
truancy and chronic
absenteeism.

One student was taken through
the SARB process prior to
school closures.

Principals are given monthly
Chronic Absentee lists to follow
up with students. This is
monitored along with the

L etters continue to be

:generated for truancy and

chronic absenteeism. There
have been some adjustments
due to the overwhelming
number of students with
increased absences due to
quarantine.

Principals are receiving Chronic
Absentee lists to follow up on
and we are monitoring
absences although meaningful
rates are difficult to calculate

Continue to generate letters and
monitor student attendance.

All students who are severely
chronically absent (more than
25% of days enrolled) will begin
the SARB process.

Principals will continue to
receive monthly lists of
chronically absent students as
well as those in danger of
becoming chronically absent to
engage in preventative
measures. |

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Jaint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 26 of 48



_
Priority Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

percentage of students
chronically absent, the overall
attendance rate, and the middle
school drop out rate to measure
student engagement.

With the change in attendance
protocols for the 2019-2020
school year, no P2 data was
available, However, prior to the
school closures in March we
were on target in month 7 with
about 96% attendance based
on a query of within Aeries.

Because of the school closures
in March of 2019, there is not a
direct comparison point for
Chronic Absenteeism on the CA
Dashboard. However, SARB
documentation for the county
shows a rate of 4.34%. This is
an average across all grade
levels.

We had no drop outs in the
2019-2020 school year.

with all of the quarantine and
isolation requirements.

Attendance rates will continue
to be at 96% or higher.

The Chronic Absentee rate will
be less than 3% overall with
significant student groups being
no more than 5%.

Maintain the drop out rate at
less than 1% for middle school
students.

CREW logs

Nurse Documentation of
supports

EL Goal Sheets (Intervention
Coordinators)

To focus on the specific needs
of our Foster Youth, low income
(specifically Homeless), and our
English learners, support
personnel check-in regularly
with these students and
document contacts and any
necessary supports to ensure
both student engagement and
success. Quarterly reports are

Support staff are meeting
regularly with Foster Youth, low
income (specifically Homeless),
and English learners to monitor
progress academically,
behaviorally, and socially to
make any necessary
adjustments to supports.

Support staff will continue to
meet regularly with Foster
Youth, low income (specifically
Homeless), and English
learners to monitor progress
academically, behaviorally, and
socially to make any necessary
adjustments to supports.

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 27 of 48




Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired OQutcome for 2023-24

generated to summarize the
meetings held and review any
identified needs.

Suspension and Expulsion

Rates

Due to schoal closures in March
of 2019, there is not a direct
comparison point on the CA
Dashboard for suspensions and
expulsion rates. However, we
had no expulsions and a 1.6%
Suspension Rate reported on
Dataquest for the 2019-2020
school year.

There have been no expulsions
in the current year nor in the
2020-2021 school year. For
suspensions, the district rate for
2020-2021 was .18 which is
slightly lower than the state
average of .20.

The overall suspension rate for
the district will be less than 3%
with no significant student group
being higher than 6%. The
district will continue to maintain
less than 1% in expulsions.

Actions and Services

Development (District-
wide)

Provide non-student work
days for professional
development opportunities
beyond early-release
Mondays. These days are
focused on intensive
professional development
to close the achievement

The focus prior to the
pandemic was on Thinking
Maps as a foundation to
the Write from the
Beginning program since
writing is an identified need
for Unduplicated Pupils
across the district. Having
the ability to use
nonlinguistic
representations of complex
thinking to remove
language barriers is a
critical component in

gap for unduplicated pupils.

Goal/ Action Title/ . v . Personnel Non-Personnel Total ;
Action Description LimespanghCainibutog Expenses Expenses Funds HligsreaniRepont
4.1 Professional 2021-2024 Yes LCFF 420,000 $420,000.00 [$0.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 28 of 48



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

:Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
.Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

supporting our English
learners. Another training
component will be the new
iReady assessment system
to support the identification
of student needs for both
intervention support and
enrichment opportunities.
Woven within these days
will also be training for the
social emotional side of our
most vulnerable students in
reconnecting after the
pandemic. This includes
our students from low
income households along
with our English learners
who were especially
impacted by the school
closures. Early-release
Mondays will also be used
for training in social
emotional learning, iReady,
and Thinking Maps, along
with collaborative planning
time.

4.2

Professional
Development- English
Learners

Continue to provide ELD
training so that EL students
will be provided appropriate
access to the California
Content Standards based
on data analysis of ongoing
needs for our students in
alignment with best
practices. This includes
support for the district-wide
initiative in implementing
OCDE Project GLAD
(Guided Language
Acquisition Design).

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF

Federal

20,000
10,000

Federal 5,000

$35,000.00

$0.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint Schoo! District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 29 of 48



_ Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

Training will also include
support for teachers in
understanding the ELD
Standards along with
strategies for both
Designated and Integrated
ELD.

4.3

Progress Monitoring and
Support of English
Learners

In addition to teachers who
provide Designated English
Language Development
(ELD) and Integrated ELD

‘on a daily basis as part of
‘Tier 1 instruction, four

Bilingual Aides provide
additional support to both
students and parents. All 3-
8 grade English learners
track their own academic
and language progress
with goal sheets, and
teachers will monitor the
progress of English
learners every trimester
and/or quarter with
interventions implemented
as appropriate. Our
Bilingual Aides work
directly with students under
the supervision of
certificated staff in addition
to supporting teachers with
pulling the data from Aeries
for monitoring and tracking
student progress. Teachers
meet with students and
parents during conference
time to discuss English
learner progress. The aides
complete the basic data
portion (assessment

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF

136,491

Other State 54,356

Local

Federal

0
23,122

LCFF
Other

Local

0
State 0
0

Federal 20,000

$233,969.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

|
Page 30 of 48



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

% . Non-Personnel

Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

scores, enrollment, etc.)
Intervention Coordinators
at each site meet one-on-
one with English learners to
support the development of
their goals after discussing
progress data on local
measures and/or state
assessment data. All
English learners (including
those reclassified that are
still being monitored for
progress), are given a
language assessment to
track language proficiency
and provide additional
supports as needed. This
has been done through Las
Links as an additional
assessment specific to our
English learners.

4.4

Dual Immersion Program
The district developed a
Dual Immersion Program
two years ago both to
support our English
learners and provide the
opportunity for English only
students to develop a
second language. There
are currently 4 grades
available (TK-3rd grade).
iReady also includes
assessments in Spanish
that will allow us to better
track students on their
Spanish language
proficiency.

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF

300,216

Other State 75,566

Local

Federal

0
79,807

LCFF

0

Other State 0

Local

Federal

0
0

$455,589.00

$175,838.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 31 of 48




Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
- Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

4.5

ELD, Reading
Intervention, and Spanish
Elective at Rancho

In addition to a double
‘block of English for all
students, Engiish learners
at Rancho Starbuck are
included in an English
Language Development
elective to increase
language proficiency

| before entering high

| school. We typically have

_ less than 15 long-term
English learners across the
entire district, but the
added support helps to
prepare students for the
increased language
demands at both the
intermediate and high
school levels. A Spanish
elective allows for a
cognitive break in the day
for English learners who
are also in need of
developing Spanish
language proficiency.
Some English only
students are also in the
class to develop beginning
Spanish, which also allows
native Spanish speakers
the opportunity to support
their English only peers.

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF 53,584
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0

Federal 0

$53,584.00

'$13,312.00

4.6

Before and After School
Intervention

Continue to hire staff to
provide for extended day
intervention classes
principally directed towards
the needs of our UDPs. We
are looking at ways to

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF 80,000

$80,000.00

$5,270.00

2122-22 Loca

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

| Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 32 of 48



Goall Action Title/
Action Description

increase the number of
staff available and/or to
partner with outside
agencies to provide
targeted support for our
students needing tutoring.

Personnel . - Non-Personnel Total

Timespan | Contributing Expenses :  Expenses Eunds

Mid-Year Report

47 Intervention Coordinators | Ongoing Yes LCFF 9,092 $21,821.00 |%$4,566.00
Continue to fund stipends
for each school ta hire an Otner State 9,092

intervention coach. Local 0
Coaches meet throughout
the year with district Federal 3,637

personnel to discuss MTSS
and needed adjustments to
support our Unduplicated
Pupil needs. They have
been trained in Hlluminate
to run reports to facilitate
the anelysis of data in
monitoring our subgroup
populations to determine
groupings for intervention
and to identify gaps in
supports with a primary
focus on our English
learners, Foster Youth,
Homeless, and low income
students,

4.8 Intervention Support 2021-2022 No Other State 160,000 $160,000.00 |%$0.00
During the Day

The district is using
Expanded Learning
Opportunities funds to
support the addition of
personnel to provide
intervention during the day.
-:Some sites have used Title
| funds to target their most
struggling students with an
Intervention Aide, but given

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 33 of 48
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

the greater need for
targeted supports and
small group instruction, the
district will fund a support
person for each site.

4.9

Teacher Planning/Choir
Teacher
Teachers will collaborate

regularly to monitor student

progress, dialogue about
best practices, and design
intervention programs. This
includes an additional FTE .
for a music teacher, which
allows for additional
collaboration time at the
elementary level while also
increasing student access
to the Arts.

Ongoing

No

LCFF

98,437

$98,437.00

$36,708.00

410

Classified Staff-
Instructional Assistants
& Special Ed Support
Aides

These assistants and aides
provide direct support to
our students with special
needs. This can include
one-on-one instruction or
guided practice, small
group support, support for
a specific student while
mainstreamed, and work
within a self-contained
classroom.

Ongoing

No

LCFF

130,494

Other State 307,698

Local

Federal

0
700,952

LCFF 0

Other State 0

Local 0
Federal 0

$1,139,144.00

$12,086.00

411

Math Intervention-
Rancho Starbuck
Maintain Math intervention
sections at the intermediate

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF

37,535

$37,535.00

$8,006.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 34 of 48




Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel . :
Expenses ..

Non-Personnel
_Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

school for targeted

students (one seventh
grade section and one
eighth grade section).

4.12

Hluminate

Continue to fund a
technology program/system
to assist teachers in
monitoring student
progress and analyzing
data to close achievement
gaps for UDPs (illuminate).
We are in the process of
evaluating the need for this
with the addition of iReady.
Aeries is our student
information system, so
llluminate is an additional
resource.

2021-2022

Yes

LCFF

25,000

$25,000.00

40.00

4.13

Reading Intervention-
Rancho Starbuck
Maintain sections to the
Rancho Starbuck master
schedule for reading
intervention (one for grade
7 and one for grade 8).

Yes

LCFF

40,000

$40,000.00

$0.00

4.14

Coordination of Services
Coordination and
administration of all
programs funded through
Supplemental Grant
dollars. This includes
monitoring the progress of
Unduplicated Pupils
(UDPs) by certificated
personnel at the District
Office. With the growing
supports and services from

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF

243,769

$243,769.00

$75,871.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 35 of 48



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

= Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

the inception of LCFF for
our Unduplicated Pupils
(from just over $230,000 to
over $2 million), there is a
need to add an additional
classified person in fiscal
services related to the
administration of program
actions and expenditures.
This also includes half of
the classified salary for our
Data Systems Analyst
position to provide
aggregated and
disaggregated data for the
LCAP, reports to principals
each month on attendance,
chronic absenteeism, and
suspensions, and support
for monitoring each of the
unduplicated pupil groups
so that students are
receiving appropriate
services. The remainder of
that salary is in Goal 1,
Action 10.

4.15

ABA Class and Program
Specialist Position

Bath a Program Specialist
and an ABA Teacher are
funded to increase overall
services and opportunities
for students struggling with
behavior. The primary goal
is to re-engage students in
meaningful learning
opportunities by providing
intervention for behavior,
mental health, and other
nonacademic barriers to
learning.

Ongoing

No

LCFF

0

Other State 275,349

Local

Federal

0
0

LCFF 0
Other State 0
Local 0
Federal 0

$275,349.00

$105,302.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 36 of 48



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

4.16

Learning Hubs-Libraries
School libraries will
continue to be open
additional hours to provide
homework and tutoring
help. This is in addition to
their regular duties as
Library Media Techs to
support our students
needing a place to do
homework, get help with
tutoring, and/or access to
technology they may not
have at home. This also
allows for before and after
school intervention to be
housed in the school library
so that students are able o
receive the targeted
support they need in
flexible groupings.

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF 86,731
Other State 150,669
Local 0
Federal 0

LCFF
Other

Local

0
State 0
0

Federal 0

$237,400.00

$3,865.00

4.17

MTSS Coordination and
Monitoring of UDPs
District personnel will
coordinate, revise and
update the LJSD district-
wide Multi-Tiered System
of Support (MTSS) for
intervention and
remediation with
Intervention Coordinators.
Additional funds are used
to target struggling and/or
advanced students. As part
of MTSS, our
Homeless/Foster Youth
Liaison supports the overall
monitoring of support for
and achievement of our
Homeless students in
coordination with sites and
the counselor at Rancho
Starbuck. The Director of

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF 165,220
Other State 0

Local 0
Federal 41,305

LCFF

20,000

$226,525.00

$101,126.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 37 of 48



Goall
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

-Non-Personnel
= Expenses -

Total
Funds

2

Mid-Year Report

Educational Services is the
Homeless and Foster
Youth Liaison as well as
the Attendance Supervisor
for the district.

4.18

Assessment System

In order to assess
unduplicated pupils and
provide appropriate
suppotts, the district needs
to invest in a more
comprehensive system that
will allow for benchmarks,
fanguage proficiency
assessments and
intervention content
targeted to student need. A
group of teachers were
brought together to
evaluate the iReady
program along with district
personnel and Principals.
We will be introducing the
new system in the 2021-
2022 school year, which
will necessitate new
baseline data for
benchmarks as well as
training for staff. The data
provided from the system
will better allow us to
assess and monitor our
unduplicated students
although it will benefit all.
The Dashboard will allow
for filtering based on high
need student groups so
that English learners,
Foster Youth and low
income students can be
readily identified in terms of
both need and targeted
supports. This Is funding for

2021-2024

No

Other State 40,000

Other State 120,000

$160,000.00

$0.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 38 of 48



Goal/ Action Title/ ” . Personnel Non-Personnel Total
Action Description Timespan | Contributing Expenses. . Expenses - Funds

a two-year implementation
along with some one-time
professional development
costs.

Mid-Year Report

4.19 | Classified Staff-Custodial | Ongoing : Yes LCFF 232,018 $232,018.00 |$47,938.00
Support

Continue to fund additional
night custodians beyond Federal 0
base needs to provide daily
cleaning of classrooms.
This allows for a safe and
positive school
environment when
increasing the demands on
existing custodial staff due
to before and after school
interventions, parent
engagement activities,
extended professional
development, collaboration
meetings, and other events
funded by supplemental
monies.

Local 0

4,20 Attendance Monitoring Ongoing No LCFF 12,000 $12,000.00 |[$0.00
Student absences will be
monitored regularly and
attendance letters sent out
for students with signs of
chronic absenteeism. The
district will continue with

the attendance incentive
program to encourage sites
to explore unique ways to
promote attendance. The
Director of Educational
Services is also the
Attendance Supervisor for
the district and will continue:
to work through the SARB
process with principals as

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 39 of 48
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report



|

Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan.

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report |

needed. Attendance rates
are monitored as well as
the middle school drop out
rate as indicators of overall
student engagement.

4.21

Creative Response to
Emotional and
Educational Wellness
The Creative Response to
Emotional and Educational
Wellness or C.R.E.W. has
been an overwhelming
success. During the
pandemic, counseling and
psych interns were able to
check in and connect with
students, provide social
emotional lessons during
class sessions, and support
the overall mental health of
students during the
pandemic. The counselor
and interns monitor the
social emotional needs of
our UDPs along with a
Program Specialist funded
through the SELPA and
four school psychologists to
ensure that both

counseling and
psychological needs are
being met. These services
are especially critical in the
coming year to meet the
social emotional needs of
those students
experiencing the effects of
trauma from the pandemic.
Contacts with Foster Youth,
ELs, and low income
students (primarily
Homeless) are documented

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF

545,129

Other State 206,040

Local

Federal

0
0

Other State 20,000

$771,169.00

$224,950.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 40 of 48



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

-Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

weekly to ensure timely
supports.

This year, we have added
services through Care
Solace, a third-party vendor
who operates as a
resource for connecting
students, families, and staff
with mental health
resources. This includes
finding the right support,
navigating insurance, and
checking in to determine if
the issues are being

addressed. We continue to -

hire counseling interns to
expand support services to
our students with only one
counselor for the district.
Having interns allows every
site to provide much
needed services. These
services are in addition to
the existing partnership
with the Gary Center (no
cost) and a partnership with
Supervisor Hahn's Office
for limited counseling
support.

4.22

Nurse and Nursing
Assistant

Collaborate with key staff at
the county child welfare
agency, mental health
agency, and other entities
providing care and services
to foster youth and other
UDPs (partial funding for
the District Nurse).
Offsetting the cost for
support to these students

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF

18,833

Other State 63,917

Local

Federal

0
95,304

LCFF
Other

Local

0
State 0
0

Federal 0

$178,054.00

$29,1000.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 41 of 48



|  Goall - Action Title/

| Action +Deaseription: <t ¥,
along with other local funds
has allowed us to hire a
nursing assistant who
checks in with Foster Youth
specifically each week.
There is a focus on
monitoring the specific
needs of our low income
families who may need
assistance with no or low
cost healthcare, screeners,
immunizations, or othet
healthcare supports.

Personnel Non-Personnel Total

Timespan | Contributing Expenses Expenses Funds

Mid-Year Report

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 42 of 48
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report




Goal 5

Enrichment and 21st Century Skill Development

Rationale

With more than 40% of our students coming from low income homes, it became very evident during the pandemic that not all students have equal access to opportunities
outside of school to experience and develop 21st century skills which often require access to pathways that some families are able to provide and some are not. As a
district, Lowell Joint has continued to add programs to support enrichment and talent development without a formalized GATE program. Both staff and parents have
provided feedback that we need to develop more opportunities and a more cohesive program while not limiting access to just formally identified GATE students. With this
in mind, the district is developing a comprehensive identification system that includes multiple measures and local norms for GATE identification, training all teachers in
best practices for working with GATE students to impact instruction within the day, and creating enrichment opportunities that do not require GATE identification for
participation. We continue to believe that all students should have access to music and the arts, coding and STEAM, leadership opportunities and outlets to showcase
their unigue talents and abilities.

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives for Goal 5

Priority

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Mid-Year Progress

Desired Outcome for 2023-24

Completion of GATE
Certification

Three staff members have
currently completed GATE
certification (meeting the
requirements outlined by the
OCC GATE consortium). There
are an additional 30 plus
teachers scheduled to be
trained in the 2021-2022 school
year.

More than 45 teachers have
been or will complete GATE
certification before the end of
this year. We are beginning the
4th cohort of training in the
Spring of 2022.

All teachers within the district
will be GATE certified.

GATE Assessments and Local
Norms

We are in the process of
purchasing assessments and
developing local norms.

We have might to solidify the
universal screener and battery

of assessments to place orders.

Appropriate staff will be trained
on administering assessments
and evaluating criteria for GATE
identification using local norms.

TOSA Calendar

Supports in the 2020-2021
school year focused on the
elements necessary for
distance learning with a heavy
emphasis on technology
support, software resources,
‘and blended learning models.
With the first GATE training this
summer, the TOSA will be able

The STEAM/GATE TOSA has
been able to model the
introduction of Depth and
Complexity prompts in the
classroom with teachers in
addition to supporting teachers
within the GATE Certification
trainings in planning and
developing instruction.

The TOSA's calendar will reflect
in-class support of teachers in
implementing strategies,
facilitation of the identification
process with the GATE
Advisory Committee, and equal
time developing and supporting
the STEAM program.

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 43 of 48




Priority

Metric

Baseline

e <mm1,;M_s_n.<mm1 Progress

Deslred OQutcome for 2023-24

to schedule time to support
teachers with implementation of
strategies within the classroom
in the 2021-2022 school year.

STEAM lab purchases and
activity logs

Professional Development
records

3 of the 5 elementary sites have
access to a STEAM lab with
varying levels of usage that is
not really tracked to determine
equal access from all students.

Purchases have been made for
the other two sites to complete
their STEAM lab set up. One
has been set up and the other is
ready to go once the space is
available. The site is temporarily
housed at the Maybrook
campus while renovations are

|taking place.

All sites will have a STEAM lab
built out with resources on hand
for STEAM activities. Teachers
will have toured the labs and
received professional
development on how to
integrate the lab into their core
curriculum.

STEAM Participation- Students
have multiple opportunities to
participate in STEAM activities:
Within their classrooms,
Computer Science club, AP
Computer Science and/or
Robotics during the school day
and as part of after school

Activity logs for the elementary
STEAM labs reflect some
teacher participation in bringing
students to the lab for activities
(about 20%).

Sign in sheets/Attendance show
300 students participated in the
Computer Science club, AP

We have not begun tracking
usage in a formal manner. With
the issues connected to Covid
still very present in the 2021-
2022 school year, teachers
have focused more on STEAM
activities within their classroom
or outdoors to avoid mixing

Activity logs will reflect all
students having multiple
opportunities to access the lab
and participate in enrichment
activities during the school day
in addition to after school
enrichment opportunities.

enrichment. . groups. Participation in Computer
Computer Science, and/or Science club, AP Computer
Robotics during the 20/21 year. Science and/or Robotics will
increase by 5%.
Actions and Services
f
| Goall Action Title/ : A e Personnel Non-Personnel Total -
Action Description Timespan .003:05_:@ Expenses Expenses Funds M EaEaREport
5.1 Professional 2021-2024 No LCFF 60,000 LCFF 5,000 $108,000.00 |$0.00

Development-GATE
Certification

Training teachers in depth
and complexity to support
critical thinking and high
levels of rigor in the
classroom benefits all
students. As a small district

Other State 20,000

Other State 23,000

Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 44 of 48



Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel

Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

with typically two teachers
at a grade level per site, it
is important to train all
teachers. This ensures that
all students will have
access to a highly qualified
teacher who understands
the unigue needs of gifted
and talented learners and
can differentiate instruction
accordingly. A portion of
the Teacher on Special
Assignment who will
coordinate trainings and
provide coaching support
to teachers around
implementation of
strategies is included here
along with the costs for
training and resources.

5.2

GATE Identification

The primary goal of
developing comprehensive
identification criteria is to
ensure that typically under-
represented student groups
(including English learners,
low income, and Foster
Youth) are afforded access
to GATE services.
Measures of leadership
and creativity along with a
non-verbal assessment will
be included along with
more traditional measures.
A primary goal in training
all teachers in the
characteristics of gifted and
talented students is to
ensure teachers are not
just identifying students
who are doing well in
school.

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF

15,000

$15,000.00

$0.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 45 of 48



| Goall Action Title/

. . o ] Personnel Non-Personnel Total .
Action Description Timespan. | ,Contributing Expenses Lo Expenses Funds Mid=YieayiRepgrt
5.3 STEAM Enrichment Ongoing No LCFF 0 Other State 45,000 $169,919.00 |[$49,626.00

Continue to expand access

to STEAM programs at the Other State 0

elementary level above Local 0
offerings within the
classroom as part of Federal ~ 124,919

traditional science. This
becomes increasingly
important as we develop
College and Career
Pathways for our
elementary sites to feed
into Rancho Starbuck
programs such as the AP
Computer Science course
or the Conservatory of the
Fine Arts (CoFA). This is
especially true for our
unduplicated pupils who
lack access to technology
and STEAM experiences
outside of the school
system. In evaluating
STEAM labs at each of the
sites, there are some costs
for resources such as
equipment and tables at a
few sites with some
additional costs for
materials at all sites. This
also includes an ongoing
partnership with Fullerton
Joint Union High School
District to develop
pathways that feed into
high school programs.
Included here is a portion
of the cost for the Teacher
on Special Assignment who
is developing the STEAM
program along with
overseeing GATE. During
the pandemic, the STEAM
2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 46 of 48
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report




Goal/
Action

Action Title/
Description

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report

and Tech TOSAs started a
Computer Science club to
help engage students in
some enrichment activities
outside of classroom
instruction. Almost 300
students attended the initial
meeting with more than
200 continuing to meet
throughout the end of the
year.

|

5.4

Technology Integration-
21st Century Skills
Continue to fund a Teacher
on Special Assignment
(TOSA) to assist staff in the
integration of technology
with the content standards
to provide access to
specialized support
programs and resources for
differentiating instruction for
UDPs. The TOSA also
provides support for
Nluminate and training
teachers on reports for data
analysis to monitor
progress for English
learners, students from low
income families, and Foster
Youth. This often means
supporting parents of these
students as well who need
training in navigating digital
resources for use in the
home. With the completion
of the Chromebook
initiative, we are developing
training for interactive
displays that will allow for
more student interaction to
support the use of visuals
as well as anchoring

Ongoing

Yes

LCFF
Other St
Local

Federal

155,306
ate 0

0

0

Other State 100,000

$255,306.00

$35,917.00

2122-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 47 of 48



Goal/
Action

~ Action Title/
‘Description:

Timespan

Contributing

Personnel
Expenses

Non-Personnel
Expenses

Total
Funds

Mid-Year Report |

academic vocabulary within
the room through the use
of sentence stems, concept
maps, and Thinking Maps
for example in support of
our English learners.
Includes stipend for work
outside contracted days.

2122-22 Local Control Accountability-Plan for Lowell Joint School District
Actions & Services Mid-Year Report

Page 48 of p,m



96:€0:71 1OWIL], JUSLIND <€0L0Z0 TOA> 0100d :a1 voday
7T0T/9T/10 :97e(] WRLIND [ :oN98eqd AANVNYEHA :dlesn
fonuoy) 1534 0LSS 110000010 00591 00°SS6°1 dI'ldaond  8L004664
sorjddng pue sjeuagey 00€1 8600000010  99°L
so1jddng pue s[eLaye]y 00€¥ ¥600000010  6L°68
soijddng pue sjeLaje]y 00£¥ 2600000010  8L°S6
sa1[ddng pue sjeLaIe]y 00€¥ 1600000010  62°0Z€
soriddng pue s[eLayey 00€H 6800000010  OL'LEV'T TLY6T LATLNO ATVSTTIOHM ONIFINNTd  LL00266Y
sor[ddng pue s[eusrey 00E¥ £000001S81  0L'6SLT
saijddng pue s[eLaley 00€F 6000015810  9£9¢1
sa1jddng pue sjeLvIR|y 00EY 8000015810 6Z'16L°1 SE'L8YY ATddNS ADNVNALNIVIA AGSVID  9L004664
sariddng pue s[eusye 00€Y £0100000T0  16'1€T
$asBYT 29 S[RIUY 0195 Z010000010 b€ bEl
sor[ddng pue s[eLoyey 00€¥ 8600000010  65+TT
sarjddng pue s[euore]y 00€F 9600000010  0€¥E
sarjddng pue s[euaIey 00£Y ¥600000010  98°LS0°T
sorjddng pue sjena)e]y 00€Y 2600000010  TE'6€
sar[ddng pue s[enaeN 00€¥ 1600000010  S¥'€0T LL'ST6T NOLLALLLSNI Odd LOJAd FNOH AHL  SL004664
sorjddng pue s[eLaje]y 00E 8600000010  SP'H9 Sh'v9 ANVJINOD SLIVd ASVD  +L00466Y
dxg 19dQwaregBumynsuo)goid 008S 6110000010  00°0ST°1 00°0SZ°T JIOONA  €L00466Y
sa1jddng pue s[eLdeN 00EF £010000010  S6'1HL‘T S6'IVLY TAAVID % ANVS TTIGdINVD AD0¥d  7L00466Y
sarpddng pue s[euey 00Ey 8010000010  TE'SES‘T TE'SEST ATddNS YADINIIAS TVIIAdINT 1004664
sarjddng pue s[eLIeN 00€¥ 7600000010  6L°0Z1 6L°071 WAS % STTVS HOLOW DIYLDATA VVV  0L00466Y
so[oIya A /siredoy 1£9¢ 8600000010  99°6¥C°1 99671 *ONI ADIAYAS FULL STAINVA 6900466
$I[O1Ya A /s1reday] 1£95 8600000010  €1°1€S €T'IES "ONI ADIAVAS AHIL STAINVA 8900466
dxq IedQ2pAareg8uninsuo)/Joi1d 008S 600000001  00°000°8H 00°000°8Y d0-0D "A¥AS TALLVILSININAY  S£009664
SO[qRSINQUIIIY/$39,] 10NYDTY 0129 1100000012  00°STH'T9S 00°STH*T9S SLOALIHDYV NONNVE AAOVLVHD  $£00966Y
$90USIRJUO) PUE [dARI], 0075 $900000010  00°00L 00°00L V TOOHDS "AI'TVD A0 NOLLVIOOSSY  1100V66Y
NOILLdTdOSAd 1DATd0 TAGINAN INOOIWV TVIOL YOANAA TIATGINNN
INNODDV INIODDV od od

1207/1€/210L  1707/10/21 WO

T207/L0/T0 ONILIAN STALSNYL 40 AavOod

LJIOdTA TIVLAd ¥3dd0 dSYHOUNd
ds INIOf TTHMO'T



19w, JUsLIND)

<€0L0TO TPA>

0100d :qJ 1oday

:a1R(] JUaLIN) 7 ON98eq JANVNIAHA :dIl#sn
$0USIAJUOD) PUB [dARI]L, 00ZS $900000010  ¥€€9S pE'€9S SSAUIXT NVOTHAWY 011066
A30]0uyos ] /598U201'] 018S 1,00000010  00°000°C 00°000°T SSAUIXT NVOIIANY 601066
SO0UDIOJUO)) PUB [9ABL], 00ZS 1L00000010  00°ST8 00°ST8 SSTAIXA NVOIHAINY 801066
S90USIQJUOD) PUB [9ABI], 00ZS 9500STHLI0 ¥ VIS‘T P8 YIST SSTUIXA NVOIIANY  LOLON66YU
$I0USIJUOD) PUE [SABI]L, 00TS 6000000010 05298 05°798 SSAUIXA NVOIIANY  90T0IN66d
sdiysIoquiay| pue san(g 00£S 6000000010  00°00€ 00°00€ SSTAIXA NVORIAINY  SOT0N66Y
sarddng pue s[eusjey 00€Y 8€00888010  LT'€T
saiddng pue sfeusjey 00€ 0200888010  86'TH1 ST'991 SSTUIXA NVOIIANY  ¥O10N66d
sorjddng pue s[euayejy 00€F 6000€1ZE10  LS96T
sorjddng pue sfeusie|y 00€F 8000ETZET0  SS96T
soniddng pue sjensiey 00€Y LOOOSTIZEIO  SS96T
sa1iddng pue sjeuolEN 00€¥ 9000€1ZET0  SS96T
saiiddng pue s[eHolE 00€Y SO00ETTEI0  £5796T SL'T8H'L SSTUAXA NVOIIANY  €01066
soiddng pue s[eusle 00Ey ¥0011SO10  0€7986 0£'986 SSTAIXT NVORIAY 701066
sanddng pue sfeualeN 00EY £€000¥9ST0  S9°61€ S9°61€ SSTAIXA NVOIIAWY 101066
sa1iddng pue sjeusIRN 00€Y £E000¥9ST0  $9°TSE $9°7S€ SSTAIXA NVOTIAWY 001066
saiiddng pue s[eLoleN 00€Y ¥00850010  6L°9vC 6L SSAUIXA NVOTIANY 6600166
sayddng pue sjeusiEy 00€ L1£0000010  61°15T 61°152 SSAUIXT NVOTIANY 180066
[onuo) 159 0LSS TF10000010 007061
[onuo) 1594 0LSS 1710000010  00°S61
[o1uo)) 1594 0LSS 8€10000010  00°S6€
lo1uo)) 1534 0LSS LET0000010  00°S91
Jonuo) 153 0LSS 1210000010  00°089
[onuo) 1894 0LSS L110000010  00°S91
sxx MANNLLNOD % 8L00466U
NOILATdOSAd LDArd0 JAGANON INOOIWV AVIOL JOANTA UAdINNN

INAODDV INNODDV 0d Od

1202/1€/2Y0OL  12707/10/21 WOUA TT07/L0/20 ONILAAN STALSNAL A0 AAVOd

LIOdTA TIVLAd JHAHO ASYHOUNd
ds INIOI TTHMO'L



‘WY, JULLIRY)

<€0L0T0 TPA>

0100d :dl Hoday

1207/1€/210L  1207/10/21 WOdA

2207/L0/70 ONILTTI STALSNAL 40 AAVOd
LIOdHd 'TIVLEd d3ddO ASYHOUNd

ds LNIOSf TTIMO'T

:91R(] JueLIn) £ ON ofeqd HANVNYAHA I s)

sorjddng pue sjeuoey 00€¥ ¥P00115010  19°06% 19°06¥ ATHAAAVE  LIT0¥66d
sdiysioquis pue sanQq 00€S L1€0000010  00°091 007091 NOLLVANNOA AYVLOY VIAVH V1 9170866
satjddng pue s[eusjejy 00€t LOOOIS00I0  SL'9L6'T SL'9L6'T ADINON LIMIAS  ST70d66Yd
sarjddng pue s[earey 00£¥ L1€0000010 #9079 ¥9°079 AHJOYL ® ANOVId MAVA VNANd  vIZ066
sanddng pue sjetrajey 00€ T1000¥9S10  SO'S9 S0°S9 SHIDOTONHOAL INIUdI  €1708664
sa1jddng pue sjeujejy 00€¥ L1€0000010  TL'1S wis AHdOYL ® ANOVId MAVd VNANA  Z170466d
soyjddng pue sjeLoje 00€¥ L1€0000010  06'S6 06'S6 AHJOUL ® ANOVId MAVd VNANd 11709664
sor[ddng pue sjeiorey 00£¥ SY00888010  S8°9LE S8'9LE VTI-SSATAAIM NOZIIIA 012066
sa1ddng pue sjeLiajejy 00€Y £€000¥9ST10  TT'S96 7TS96 VTI-SSTTAIIM NOZIIIA 60704664
sa1ddng pue sjeLaje]y 00€¥ €£000¥9ST10  S9°61¢€ S9°61€ SSHUIXA NVORIAWY 8070866
sor[ddng pue sjeLaye 00€¥ €££000¥9S10  08°181 08'181 SHAOTO TVOIQAN HSVA  L0Z0W66Y
sar[ddng pue sjeLareN 00€Y 7100005910 €7°86S £7°86S SLHOISNI AAISYIAIY 90708664
soiddng pue sjeuajey 00€¥ TO009S00T0  LO'LIS LO'LIS *ONI LNAINYIAOD MAD 07066
$29UAIRJUO)) PUE [oALL], 00TS 6200SE0¥10  00°0SH 00°0S¥ SSTAIXA NVORMAWY 6110660
$20URIRJUOY) PUE [oARL], 00T$ 0£00SE0FI0  00°9LS‘T 00°9LS‘T SSHUIXA NVOIMANY  STI0IN66d
SIOUAIOJUOD) PUE [SABI], 002S 6200SE0F10  SLOEE SL'0EE SSHTALXH NVORIAINV  LITOIN66d
SOOUIISJUO)) PUE [9ARI], 00ZS 6200SE0¥10 T8 6¥F 86 SSHALXA NVORIAINY  9TT0N66d
sorjddng pue sjeLoey 00€¥ €/00115010  €1°86 £1'86 SSHUIXA NVOIMANY  STTON66YH
SOOUAIJUOD) PUB [9ABIL], 002S TTOOOY9ST0  18°LET I8°LET SSHAIXA NVORANY  PIT0ING66T
so1jddng pue sjeLIaje]y 00€+ 9000020610  SO€E SO°€E SSTAIXA NVOIIANY  €1T10N66d
sa1ddng pue sjeLaje ]y 00€b TI000¥9S10  90'¥EE 90'bEE ONI A1ddV  ZITON66Yd

sa1ddng pue sjeLae|y 00€¥ £€000¥9ST0  9L0F
sa1ddng pue sjeLaje|y 00€¥ TI000¥9S10  +1°4C 06'%9 SSHAIXA NVOIIANY  ITI10IN66d
NOILATIDSTd IDdrdo TJIGNAN INNOWV TVIOL JOANIA  JIGIWNN
INQODOV INNODDV od od



6€:L0:T1 PPWILY JULIND 1 1038182y 399y parepijosuo)) :5p0edd :3d0day
TT02/92/10 :P1eQIUBND adeg zopuewio dudlE( - ZAANYNYAHA 4981
00'859°C SI M 1202/L0/TT HO 12021001 d00V1 STTEL066A 89900000 66
SeeL SI MIN 1207/L0/71 HO Y1970LE9¢E ONI NOS ® dddddd’'M'f  ¥600066A L9900000 66
817596 SI M 1207/L0/21 HO P8LTI1 dO-00 "'AMdS HAILVILSININAV 8000066 A 99900000 66
LL9TS SI M 1202/90/C1 HO JAINTOdd OTTIILLVd 4001d9 20000664 $9900000 66
¥8'9CS SI M 1207/90/C1 HO dd9NdD0dd YA VIN AdTTdHS 21000664 9900000 66
06'66L1 SI M 1202/90/C1 HO TIVLILOLN SANIZVOVIN DILSVIOHDS  $TTE066A £9900000 66
05619 SI MIA 1207/90/C1 HO JAGNGOdAd HdTOANVY ATVNOd 11000664 79900000 66
69°961°1 SI MIN 1202/90/21 HO AIINID3d NOFHOYIAVIAN ANNAd 0100066Y 19900000 66
L6'STS SI M 1207/90/C1 HO $000-dsf1 NOILLVAOdIOD AN  ZTE10066A 09900000 66
69°961°1 SI M 1207/90/C1 HO J4dNdDHd HIIHM ADNVN 6000066 65900000 66
89S SI M 1207/90/C1 HO dH9NDAd HLOY d110[ 8¥Ce066d 86900000 66
ST8¢T SI MIN 1202/90/21 HO ATdNGDFd SYIDO0Y HTIAVD L000066d LS900000 66
¥8'9C¢ SI M 1207/90/C1 HO JFGNFDHA ATV ATINA 9000066d 95900000 66
91'066 SI MIA 1202/90/c1 HO dHINGOdAd OYIHSANVI H1d9VZI'Td §0000664 §€900000 66
¥8°9T¢ SI MIN 1207/90/C1 HO JHGNIDdd THYANVV NAVA 0000668 5900000 66
¥8°9CS SI MIA 1202/90/C1 HO JAdNIDAA NITHOTVHOS vidNVvID £000066d £5900000 66
699611 SI M 1202/90/C1 HO AAIWHOdAd ANV NATOIVDO L¥Te066d 75900000 66
00°6TC SI M 1207/90/C1 HO PSSSLY dI'1d DNd 71000664 16900000 66
LL'9TS SI M 1207/90/C1 HO dIdNdOodd NVINSTITV LNIJd4 10000661 05900000 66
00°801 SI  MIN 1207/20/CT HO 170790V ZANOD LASTT  69TL066A 6¥900000 66
05°C61 SI M 120¢/20/CT  HO 6£1116S0d VTINVININO THINVA ~ 89TE066A 8¥900000 66
00°808 SI M 1202/20/C1 HO IZAON dTIdON-L 800006601 L¥900000 66
$0°L91°¢ SI M 1207/20/Z1 HO YELSTOL00181 SINHLSAS dd1LVMA NVEINANS 900006601 9%900000 66
S¥'0L6 SI MIN 1207/20/T1 HO SVD AON-1D0 00 SVD VINIOAITVD NYHHLNOS 00006611 S¥900000 66
16'7EEYT SI M 12027/20/71 HO  10dH1d 100-d4S NOSIAA VINJOII'TVD NMdHLINOS  ¥000066() ¥$900000 66
96'GL81 SI MIN 1202/20/C1 HO SSHe00-601¢C 12Na0dd NOILLDNYLSNOD LSVHHINOS LS000664 £¥900000 66
S6'CEY SI M 1202/20/21 HO €L6ST91 SIHOISNI HAISYIATd  6ST10066A 900000 66
61°98L SI  MIN 1202/20/C1 HO 1L688¢ "ONI NOILLdO 1Sdd £5000664 1900000 66
L1'L8S SI M 1207/20/C1 HO 90985¢ ANVINOD TIVM@IVH SHAVI 0000664 0¥900000 66
LL 065 SI M 1202/20/21 HO 6LLLIYEIE DONI NOS % dddddd' M’ T ¥#600066A 6£900000 66
8¢ 1Tr SI M 1202/20/C1 HO V-5000166d SNDISFd LD 11000661 8£900000 66
00°¥9¢ SI MIA 1207/20/C1 HO €I10IdCT LOMAISIA TOOHDS NOLYdTINd  LLOO066A L£€900000 66
YLD SI  MIN 1207/20/C1 HO IZAON YAILNOYA 700006601 9£900000 66
96'9C1 SI  MIN 1202/20/21 HO  120Z/61/11-SI1/11 ZATVZNOD VNVIA  +9TE066A SE900000 66
junowy 39y smue)g 2dAL 3jeq FouUEB) e YYD Sqng 20UI3JIY awreN ke g (1 32Leg YD

120Z/1€/T1 03 120T/1/71 Woly
J9)SI33Y Y9Iy pajeprosuo)
ds LNIOIr TTHMO'T



6€:L0-C1

WY, JUIIIN))

10381807 09y pasEpIosSuo)) 600ENg  :3fodoy

TT0T/9T/10 :d¥e( IWd1IN) aded zopuewoy owdpe( - ZAANVNIAHA :19s0
0T°091°1 SI M 1202/60/Z1 HO 1°0C111201 HIId0ONW-1 80000661 20L00000 66
00°09 SI M 1202/60/C1 HO NVOSHAIT dTVYNOUDW TAYHHS 68100664 10L00000 66
8¢'L SI M 1202/60/21 HO TZ/ST/TT-TIVIN NVI VIANVS 6L10066d 00L00000 66
¥L'09 SI MIN 1202/60/C1 HO 91£99060% ANVANOD NOZIdIA VIO £0000661 66900000 66
88'1S SI  MIN 1202/60/c1 HO 120T JHEINHAON VT11NddVZ NHO! L8000664 86900000 66
TESES T SI  MIN 1202/60/¢1 HO SIressy ATddNS ITIANIELS TYIIddNI 6£000664 L6900000 66
00°201 SI M 1202/60/C1 HO NVIS HAI'l JHANVIG ATIOH ¥L000664 96900000 66
123453 SI MIN 1202/60/C1 HO 698LANI ONI SIdANIA SSHNILIA  €L00066A $6900000 66
9¢°9C1 SI  MIN 1202/60/C1 HO 120T/¢/T1-6T/11 ZATVZNOD VNVIA  #97€066A 6900000 66
6L°08L° SI  MIN 1207/60/C1 HO 16LT010%1 "ONI 3DIAYAES HdIL STHINVA £2000664 £6900000 66
00°¢cy SI M 1202/60/C1 HO 1CI0TT SLNV.LTOSNOD ALHAVS V% D S8TE066A 26900000 66
00°6LT SI  MIN 1202/60/¢1 HO 1208505 HOYVASTY % NOLLVDNAA 40 NVAINT  06TL066A 16900000 66
0s°C19 SI MIN 120¢/60/C1 HO 18¥9¢9 % ANNY VAOTNOSTAANY NOSNIZILY  0T00066A 06900000 66
00°0SL SI MIN 1202/60/C1  HO SOLTTANI V TOOHDS "dI'TVD 40 NOLLVIDOSSY  9000066A 68900000 66
00°570°1 SI MIN 1202/60/C1 HO P1181C ZAIA YOI TIV  SSTE066A 88900000 66
6L°0Cl1 SI  MIN 1202/60/C1 HO w816 JdS % SHTVS YOLONW DIALDHTH VVV 20000664 L8900000 66
00°00S°LE SI MIN 120¢/80/C1 HO (44 ANVJINOD 441 VH £1006664d 98900000 66
0S¥L9°T1 SI M 1202/80/C1 HO LYOLL dOOYOD VINAd  0910066A $8900000 66
LE'6T6°08% S M 1202/80/21 HO L#ddV AVd NOILLOMALSNOD TIVH-NOSMOIYd 01006664 ¥8900000 66
00°0¥L‘1 SI  MIN 1202/80/C1 HO STT8EE1T6 JIODINH 62000664 £8900000 66
00°SP1 SI  MIN 1202/80/21 HO 966¢S dTHHIXH1L  98T¢066A 78900000 66
LLLST SI MIN 1207/80/C1 HO  ITITIT6L8VELS] SLIATMAVAS  0810066A 18900000 66
0T6£5°C1 SI  MIN 1202/80/21 HO 818¥-170C ONI ‘DNINYVAT MVSHES  vLI0066A 08900000 66
£9°98v SI M 1202/80/¢1 HO 8PT1120-1¢TS $A0049d1LvVd TOOHDS  6910066A 6L900000 66
00008 SI  MIN 120T/80/c1 HO 90811¢C 4 40 01340 ALNNOD NINOVOSL NVS  9910066A 8L900000 66
[4: X144 SI  MIN 1207/80/C1 HO 0ce6v 16N "ONI VSN ONISVAT LNFIAVNO  6¥10066A LL900000 66
19°€T6°1 SI M 12027/80/C1 HO | {4434 DNINOLLIANOD ¥V SVINOHL WA 1£000664 9L900000 66
00°00¥°1 SI MIN 1202/80/C1 HO ¥20 SHAT vdddd L0000661 $L900000 66
6L 66V SI MIN 1202/80/c1 HO NI-969L1 SNOISSHIINI VILVA  £S00066A ¥L900000 66
00°020°1 SI M 1202/80/C1 HO  120€01TTAMOT NOSYALLVd NHITI10D 0000661 £L900000 66
1L0LTT SI MIN 1202/80/C1 HO 6EL8OIN ONI INHINNEFAOD MAD  9€00066A CL900000 66
LESIl SI AN 120Z/80/21 HO  HDUNd WASTO NATALIVD  SOECEL066A 1L900000 66
00°00S*y S M 1202/L0/CT  HO SEVSI OYUHIN % OYDIN 1€T0066A 0L900000 66
000186 SI  MIN 1202/L0/Z1 _HO 14343 OYDIN % OUDIN  1£T10066A 69900000 66
junowry y33y)H smye)§ oa—hh. e [2dUe) e d JIdY) sqn§ NUAINY dweN oo%ﬂh al oo%«m YD

1T0T/1€/T1 03 1T20T/1/C1 oy

J9)SI39Y YI9yD pajepIjosuo))

ds LNIOf TTHMO'T



6C:L0°Z] :PuiL] judaIn) € 1218139y 00yD) parepIjosuo)) :Go0eNyg  )a0day
¢T07/97/10 :dre( udLaIny) adeq ZOPUBUIOH OUd[e( - ZAANVNIIHA :4980)
0001t SI MIN 1202/1¢/21 HO SE68¢€9 ¥ NN VAOTNOSTAANY NOSNIYLLY  0T00066A 9€L00000 66
00051 SI M 1202/12/21 HO LL9TTANI V TOOHOS "dI'TVO 40 NOILVIDOSSV 9000066A S$€LO0000 66
75°808 SI. M 1202/17/71  HO SAI'1ddNS 19V STAVZVDI VNVIIV 22000664 ¥€L00000 66
06'58¢ SI M 1202/12/C1  HO ‘sdanlL OVIN NVIV 0000664 £€L00000 66
€0°9¥T°6 SI M 1202/12/71 HO 06¥Cl1 dO-0D "AY¥ES JAILVILSININAY 8000066 A 2¢L00000 66
68 7L8°0L0°T SI M 1202/02/¢1  HO I #ddV AVd SHIMLSNANI AHTID JHATIS SLTE066A 1€L00000 66
00°919°L SI MIN 1202/02/21 HO oSLL dNOAD VINE  0910066A 0£L00000 66
80°L1T°91 SI  MIN 1202/L1/Z1  HO 12601181CI H19VO JAHNIVM HNLL  £L00006601 6CL00000 66
16'78Y°C SI  MIN 1202/L1/21 HO TATTI0CT JddO0D 04 STOOHOS A0 HONVITIV ~ 0100066A 82L00000 66
9¢°9CI1 SI  MIN 1202/91/Z1 HO 12/01/21-9/21 ZAIVZNOD VNVIA  $9TE£066A LTLO0000 66
00°00Z°1 SI M 1202/S1/21 HO 9000-dsI1 NOILVIOJLEOD AN TEI0066A 97L00000 66
06'9T¢ SI  MIN 1202/S1/21  HO 66955dD SHOIAYAS ¥HAVAT  $#010066A §TLO0000 66
007091 SI  MIN 1202/S1/21 HO 80¥ NOILVANNOA AYVLOY VIAVH VT TOT0066A ¥7L00000 66
0€°SSH1 SI MIN 1202/S1/C1 HO 0C-1¢11 NOILVIOddOD YOTAVL [ TLTE066A £2L00000 66
07°¢91 SI MIN 120T/S1/21 HO P695¥8 SHIDOTONHDH.L LNTJd! £0EE066A ¢CL00000 66
99° 1611 SI M 1¢0T/S1/21 HO 99¢6 dVYdHL OIILVIAdd JHHDOVTIVD 2000666S 12L00000 66
LL890°SL SI  MIN 120T/S1/21 HO ASAITIOTT JHdO0D 404 STOOHDS 40 HONVITIV ~ 0100066A 02L00000 66
¥1°950°91 AL MIN 120T/¥1/21 HO 0CTZ6STILOOST SINALSAS JHLVM NVEINdNS 900006601 61,L00000 66
YO 1LTT Ad M 1202/v1/21 HO 120€118CI1 0D SVD VINYOAI'TVD NIddHLNOS $00006601 81.L00000 66
05" EvS 8T AL MIN 120T/v1/71 HO - TC6ITTITII NOSIAHd VINJOAI'TVO NddHLNOS  +00006611 L1L00000 66
89°1L SI  MIN 1202/v1/21  HO [f448 0! SNAATIM VSSITdN 10€€066A 91L00000 66
L 681 SI  MIN 1¢0T/v1/21 HO 120111 o™IND MAHLLVIA V100664 S1,00000 66
89181°6 Al MIN 1202/¥1/21  HO €011¥001 WLIVdHA YHLVM VI9VH VT 40 ALID 100006611 ¥1L00000 66
08°5T5°E SI  MIN 120z/€1/21  HO IZ0CAON ANVJINOD A'1ddNNS ¥ddVdd® d  6000066N £1L00000 66
$8CT SI MIN 120Z/€1/21 HO LLOTT9#S0Od 19SSBIN BUMBINL  LOEE066A ¢1L00000 66
£9°61¢ SI  MIN 1202/€1/21  HO TL6CEH OTIAIDVNS OL HAOT  8TTLO66A 11,L00000 66
00°ss SI  MIN 1202/€1/21 HO 11ESPI# LINYAL TVINHANOYIANG SONF AAVT $¥000664 01L00000 66
0Lyl SI  MIN 1202/¢1/21 HO L88ITI/L¥1ZI1SOd DOIZNIM 91V 80€£E066A 60L00000 66
06°8T1°8 SI  MIN 1202/¢1/7T  HO 170TAON AdIVA AOOMILATIA  $000066N 80L00000 66
vIELY'Y SI  MIN 1202/€1/21 HO 1T0TAON S9[eS [eauaunuo)  ST00066N LOLO000O 66
£8°9¢ SI M 120T/€1/21  HO 990C18/8¢€116S0d NVIAVZ AVSV 60€££066A 90L00000 66
68°558°CI SI  MIN 120Z/€1/21 HO WO0Z SSHIAIXH NVOIIdINV  £T100066A S0L00000 66
YL P0'E SI M 1202/60/21 HO LS6£98 TVSOdSId FdvM 01000661 $0L00000 66
eV ErTl SI  MIN 1202/60/21 _HO S101667686 VT SSHTHIIM NOZTIHA 600006611 £0L00000 66
junowry YY) snjelsg o&h,—.. dje [PRPuUe) e MY sqng IUAIYIY WeN ooh«m a1 oo%&m NPRYD

1T0T/1€/21 03 1T0T/1/TT woay

19)SI33Y Y9y pIjeprjosuo)

ds LNIOf TTAMOT



6€:L0°T1 WL, JUIIIND ¥ 1915139y 09y pajeplosuo)) :s00edd  doday
TT07/9T/10 :2¥e( JUdLIND ageg ZopuelloH Qudlle( - ZAANVNIIHA :49s)
67°€S6°C1EE :panssy
LLST6' SI M 1202/LT/T1  HO EEEOELYSO NOILLNLILSNI O¥d 1Oddd HNOH FHL 65000664 L9L00000 66
L0°820°8 SI M 1202/L2/C1 HO £'866809150081 SINHLSAS J41VM NVEINANS 900006611 99L00000 66
[ARS % SI MIN 1202/L2/71 HO C120E118C11 0D SVD VINYOAI'TVD NHHLNOS $000066/1 $9L00000 66
SLILTYY SI  MIN 1202/L¢/C1  HO CIC61111CI1 NOSIAd VINYOAI'TVD NYdHINOS  ¥00006611 ¥9L00000 66
TTLY6'1 SI M 1202/LT/T1  HO 100°0¥¥SHS001S LATLNO HTVSHTOHM DNIFINNTd 75000664 £9L00000 66
SELYYY SI M 120T/LT/21 HO VLrS0ce ATddNS HONVNHLNIVIN AdSVTD £€000664 79L00000 66
yeT6sy SI  MIN 1202/LZ/71  HO Te011¥001 WIYVdAd Y9LVM VIgVH VT 40 ALID 100006601 19L00000 66
$8'668°¢ SI  MIN 1202/LT/T1 HO £82¥796140 NOILDALOYd d¥Id SVINID 81000664 09L00000 66
0001 €l SI M 1202/¢¢/c1 HO 1344 ANVINOD d44NVH £1006664 65L00000 66
00°9S+°LEE SI M 1202/7¢/CT1 HO 029y SLOHIIHOYEV NONNVH HdOV.LVHD 11006664 85L00000 66
76'6L0°1 SI MIN 120T/12/¢1 HO 9808270C SYANIVINOD dOVIOLS AVMVTIIVH 6T7e0664d LSL0O0000 66
00°00€p1 SI  MIN 1207/12/T1 HO €8LT1 dO-0D "A¥HS HAILVILSININAY  8000066A 96L00000 66
0S9LT9 ST MIN 1202/17/¢1 - HO I1Z0CAON VZZId VINYOAI'TVD NYIHLNOS €100066N $6L00000 66
98 11¢°81 SI M 1202/17/21  HO 1Z0ZAON SAO04d dviS AT0D  LO00066N ¥SLO0000 66
66°890°1 SI  MIN 120T/17/71 HO 006L1¢2d ONI LNHANJIAOD MAD  9€00066A €5L00000 66
00081 SI MW 1202/17/21 HO 1Z0TAON dI'ld HNd 71000664 ¢SL00000 66
eLThS SI MIN 1¢0T/17/C1  HO 881091014 ANVJINOD HONVINSNI HAI'T IWANAO  0020066A 1SL00000 66
86°LLY9 SI. M 1202/1¢7/21  HO €Tse ONILILNTYd 7% SNDIS AYLNAS SLTI0066A 0SL00000 66
L9LT SI. M 120Z/17/71 HO SVNITVS-HONOT SEINOOD NI 78000664 61L00000 66
90°S06°L SI M 1202/17/71 HO eT8LYITL ONI NOILOANNODAOD  T8TLO66A 8rL00000 66
00°6C1 SI M 120¢/12/¢1 HO (3341 RESZY) SOINAD NOILVIINID TSTEO66A L¥L00000 66
00008 SI  MIN 1202/12/T1  HO 90T1120¢ DTISHIMVALOV-VAA  96T£066A 9%L00000 66
68°08L°1 SI MmN 1202/17/71  HO eLETTLYP00dd VINIOAITVD 40 TVINId V.LTdd 9500066 A S¥L00000 66
80°5L9°E SI MIN 1202/17/21  HO S8LLI SNOISSHIdNI VIVA €S00066A ¥¥L00000 66
08181 SI  MIN 1202/1¢/C1 HO 68C15C1 SHAOTO TVOIAdW HSVA  TS00066A €VL00000 66
¥Tes SI M 120¢/17/c1 HO AON NVADO4d NVILSTED PrZe066d ¢PLO0000 66
00007 SI  MIN 1202/12/21  HO $0880C0SI 1do 9700066 A 1+L00000 66
el'v9 SI M 1202/17/T1  HO 00%9L6C ANVJINOD S1dVd HSVD TTE€E066A 0L00000 66
9T'89L SI  MIN 1202/12/21 HO £9861 AHdOYL % ANOV1d MUVd VNANE  8TO0066A 6£L00000 66
S6TPL T SI MIN 1202/17/21 HO eL-T1120T TAAVYED % ANVS TTd9dNVO HONAL £1000664 8¢L00000 66
¥r'6e SI  MIN 1202/12/z1_HO 8L1TS8E HTIIAANVE ~ €200066A LEL00000 66
yunowry Ya9y)H snje)§ o&%,ﬁ aje(J [dUL)) e YY) sqn§ ERLIERE) BN | ure N oohﬂm ax oo%«n— NYD

120T/1€/TT 03 170T/1/T1 woay

19)SI39Y YI9Y)) PajepIjosuo))

ds LNIOf TTIMO'T



6£:L0:C1 WL JusLING S 15132y 309yD) parepliosuo)) :s00edd :1dodey

TT0T/9T/10 3B IualIny adeq ZOpUBWH JUOIE(] - ZHANVNIAHA :19s(1
$9°800°69€°¢ [ejo], pusiy
$9'800°69€°¢ ‘[ero L jueq 66
9¢'650°SS - PISIAY
junowry Yi0uy) snye)s o&h,ﬁ e [POUe) Ijed YYD sqng NUAIJY dweN Q?ﬂ«m al oo%nm b pilllg]

1207/T€/TT 0 1207/1/21 Woay
I9)SI39Y Y99y pPIjepIjosuo))
ds LNIOL TTIMO'1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS/PERSONNEL REPORT 2021-22 #7

February 7, 2022
I.  CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES

A. CONTRACTS
NAME EFFECTIVE END SITE COMMENT
DATE DATE
Sober, Jessica 01/03/2022 06/03/2022 DO Virtual Academy/ Home School
Teacher. Temporary Contract
B. CHANGE OF STATUS
NAME EFFECTIVE END DATE SITE COMMENT
DATE
Fonti, Allison 01/24/2022 03/26/2022 MA (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave
Irving, Tamara 01/18/2022 05/01/2022 RS (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave
Perumean, Stacy 02/07/2022 06/03/2022 MG Unpaid leave of absence
Peloquin, Karen 01/03/2022 01/14/2022 OL (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave
Castillo, Barbara 01/18/2022 01/25/2022 EP (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave
Galli, Jessica 01/31/2022 02/26/2022 RS (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave
Kosareff, Breauna 03/07/2022 03/18/2022 JO (AB375) FMLA Baby Bonding
Leave

Allsman, Kathryn 02/03/2022 02/21/2022 OL (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave

C. STIPENDS/EXTRA DUTY

NAME EFFECTIVE END DATE SITE COMMENT
DATE
Oke, Melissa 01/03/2022 05/30/2022 RS To be paid a total of $700.00

monthly, not to exceed $700.00 for
the 2021/22 school year, for
Coaching After-School Sports —
Girls’ Soccer. Monies to be paid
from the LJEF donation in the
General Fund

Langer, Garrick 02/01/2022 03/30/2022 RS To be paid a total of $750.00
monthly, not to exceed $1500.00
for the 2021/22 school year, for
Esports Program Monies to be paid
from the Rancho Site Budget

Galli, David 02/01/2022 03/30/2022 RS To be paid a total of $750.00
monthly, not to exceed $1500.00
for the 2021/22 school year, for
Esports Program Monies to be paid
from the Rancho Site Budget

X-B1-2



II.

* It is further recommended that these individuals be approved for substitute teaching at the rate of
$200.00 per day and/or $35.00 an hour rate (not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include:
Professional Development, Saturday School, Site Support Duties and Intervention

**1t is further recommended that the individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2021-2022 is approved
to instruct in the Intervention Programs. The rate of pay is $35.00/hour and will be paid from Title I or
LCFF Supplemental Grant Funds.
**It is further recommended that individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2021-2022 serve as home
school teachers, if needed, for the 2021-2022 school year at a rate of $35.00/hour, not to exceed five
hours per week, per student. Mileage will be paid at the IRS Standard Mileage Rate for the 2021-2022

school year.

D

Employment of substitutes effective 08/16/2021 for the 2021-2022 school year @ 200 per day and
$100.00 per half day rate and $35.00 per hour* (not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include:
professional development, Saturday school, and site support duties, and $250.00 long term sub rate.

Kevin Kjer
1 SUBSTITUTE CHANGE OF PAY
NAME EFFECTIVE END
DATE DATE

Bradshaw, Casey 01/18/2022 05/01/2022
Scarsciotti, Alyssa 01/31/2022 02/01/2022
Brooks, Edward 02/02/2022 02/25/2022
Mgrdichian, Jennifer 01/18/2022 01/25/2022
Quinlan, Dyana 01/03/2022 01/14/2022
McCoy, Stacey 02/07/2022 06/03/2022
Larsen, Danica 01/24/2022 03/26/2022
Petersen, Kaycee 03/08/2022 03/18/2022
Haworth, Acacia 02/03/2022 02/21/2022

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES February 7, 2022

A. MONTHLY — GENERAL FUND

X-B1-3

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

SIE

COMMENT

To be paid a rate of $200.00 (special
long term rate $250.00 beginning
2/1/22) for Rancho Starbuck English
teaching position

To be paid a rate of $200.00 for
Rancho Starbuck Science teaching
position

To be paid a rate of $200.00 for
Rancho Starbuck Science teaching
position

To be paid a rate of $200.00 for El
Portal 3™ grade teaching position

To be paid a rate of $200.00 Olita 5
grade teaching position

To be paid special long term rate of
$250.00 for Meadow Green 5/6
combo teaching position

To be paid special long term rate of
$250.00 for Macy 3™ grade teaching
position

To be paid a rate of $200.00 for
Jordan 4" grade teaching position
To be paid a rate of $100.00 for
Olita 1* grade teaching position



X-Bl1-4

NAME/ EFFECTIVE END RANGE/
EMPLOYEE ID# DATE DATE STEP SITE
Jan, Sandy 12/03/21 R21/S8 DO
B. HOURLY — GENERAL FUND
NAME/ EFFECTIVE END RANGE/
EMPLOYEE ID# DATE DATE STEP SITE

Aguayo, Leo 12/4/2021 12/7/2021 R18/85 EP
Aguayo, Leo 12/8/2021 12/12/2021 R18/S5 EP
Aguayo, Leo 12/13/2021  12/17/2021 R18/S5 EP
Aguayo, Leo 01/6/2022 01/10/2022 R18/S5 EP
Abbond, Karey 01/18/2022 R14/S1 DO
Alcantara, Marissa 12/20/2021 2/14/2022 R1/S1 MG
Anderson, Adriana 1/19/2022 R1/81 DO
Armijo, Jessica 8/7/2021 R21/S6 DO
Barahona, Krystina 8/3/2021 R18/S6 MA
Barber, Alexandria 2/2/2022 R14/S1 DO
Barber, Alexandria 2/2/2022 R1/81 DO
Benson, Robynn 1/27/2022 R1/81 DO
Brown, Matthew 12/20/2021 2/6/2022 R14/S1 DO
Cacioppo, Sherrie 2/1/2022 3/4/2022 R7/S6 RS
Estrada, Elizabeth 12/02/2021 R14/S6 OL
Evanoff, Mary Jo 2/13/2022 RN/S8 DO
Francis, Annalisa 1/10/2022 1/22/2022 R20/87 DO
Garcia, Gabriella 01/27/2022 R14/S1 DO
Garcia, Gabriella 01/27/2022 R1/S1 DO
Jan, Sandy 06/17/2022 R21/S8 DO
Jan, Sandy 06/17/2022 R21/S8 DO
McGill, Lorie 1/24/2022 R20/S1 EP
a3, Am et 01/1622  06/03/22  $1,200Mo DO
Obezo, Brittney 01/27/2022 R14/S1 DO
Obezo, Brittney 01/27/2022 R1/81 DO
Pascual, Kelly 1/13/21 R14/S1 DO
Preciado, Rosana 01/01/2022 01/01/22 R15/S3 MG
Romero, Adriana 2/2/2022 R1/S1 DO

COMMENTS

Increase of hours from 7 to 8
hours. Updated range.

COMMENTS

Night Custodian- FMLA/Medical
Leave
Night Custodian- FMLA/Medical
Leave
Night Custodian- FMLA/Medical
Leave
Night Custodian- FMLA/Medical
Leave
Instructional Assistant/Substitute

Noon Duty Aide- FMLA/Medical
Leave

Noon Duty Substitute

Day Custodian Step Increase

Night Custodian Step Increase
Instructional Assistant/Substitute

Noon Duty Substitute

Noon Duty Substitute

Day Custodian-FMLA/Medical Leave
Cafeteria Worker-FMLA/Medical
Leave

Bilingual Aide Step Increase
Executive Assistant/Superintendent
Step Increase

Nurse Assistant-FMLA/Medical Leave

Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Noon Duty Substitute

Secretary SPED Retirement
Secretary SPED Substitute
Library Media Tech

School Counselor/Intern
CORRECTION TO 2022
Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Noon Duty Substitute
Resignation of IA, ND, and
HT/Substitute-never worked for LISD
Resignation of Instructional Aide-
Preschool

Noon Duty Substitute



Cz HOURLY —~ CAFETERIJIA FUND

EFFECTIVE END RANGE/

NAME/

EMPLOYEE ID# DATE DATE STEP SITE COMMENTS
SUCOon. fdriang L 0e2 RO7/84 DO Cafeteria Worker/Substitute
Benson, Robynn leietes RO7/S4 DO  Cafeteria Worker/Substitute
Romero, Adriana 2/2/2022

RO7/S4 DO Cafeteria Worker/Substitute

X-B1-5



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approve Agreement and Proposal with True North, ACTION

Inc., to Assist in the Possible Issuance of General
Obligation Bonds and Other Debt Instruments

The Board of Trustees desires to investigate the possibility of calling for a general obligation
bond election in the near future. The services of a consultant with expertise in this area are
necessary. Government Code Section 53060 allows for contracting with persons specially
trained and experienced and competent to perform special services. True North, Inc.,
possesses such expertise.

It is recommended that the agreement and proposal with True North, Inc., to assist in the
possible issuance of general obligation bonds and other debt instruments be approved, and
that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

V-Al-1



VoTER OPINION SURVEY
ProrosaL FOR RESEARCH & CONSULTING

PREPARED FOR
LoweLL JoINT ScHooL DISTRICT

e

TRUE NORTH 1592 N Coast Hichway 101

Encinitas CA 92024

/‘1?‘\ R E S < 760.632.9900 WwW.TN-RESEARCILCOM

Fegruary 14, 2022




RESEARCH PROPOSAL

True North Research, Inc. (True North) is pleased to present this proposal to provide voter opin-
ion research and bond measure planning services to the Lowell Joint School District (District).
Our recent conversations about the District’s interest in a potential November 2022 bond (and
our experience assisting the District with Measure LL) have been quite helpful to our understand-
ing of the District’s objectives and needs with respect to the proposed research, and we have
crafted this summary description of the proposed work scope and associated costs accordingly.
However, if we missed an important detail—or if other issues have arisen that should be factored
into the study—please feel free to contact us (760.632.9900) and we'll be happy to revise this
estimate.

{ , Creating revenue mea-
sures that are ultimately approved by the necessary percentage of voters is difficult, especially in
the State of California. Successful measures require insightful research and sound, strategic
advice. The overriding objective of the survey is thus to produce an unbiased, statistically reli-
able evaluation of voters' interest in supporting a local bond measure, as well as identify how
best to align the measure with community priorities and position it for voter approval.

If the ultimate goal of this study is to enable the District to make sound, strategic decisions
based upon the data that is collected, it is critical that the data be collected according to rigor-
ous methodological standards. Indeed, although it may be easy to conduct a 'survey', it is quite

challenging to design and implement a survey that A) produces valid' and reliable’ measures of

the opinions and behaviors of interest, and B) produces data that is representative3 of the popu-
lation of individuals that is the focus of a study. Only by satisfying each of these conditions will
the proposed study produce data that is trustworthy and thus a sound basis for making deci-
sions.

Meeting the aforementioned conditions has become more difficult in recent years. Much has
changed in terms of how the public receives information, the accessibility of residents through
traditional recruiting methods, and their willingness to participate in community surveys. Caller-
ID, SPAM filters, habitual call-screening, and busy lifestyles have made it more difficult to reach
respondents in general, leading to lower response rates and greater response bias when relying
on just one or two recruiting methods. In order to continue producing statistically reliable mea-
sures of their voters' opinions, priorities and behaviors, the research methodologies that public
agencies employ for surveys must adapt to these new challenges.

1. Validity refers to the degree to which a question actually measures the underlying attitude or construct that
it was designed to measure. For example, asking people whether they own “stock” to measure their financial
savings behavior is sufficiently ambiguous such that it has low validity. Research has shown that people in
farming communities are more likely to interpret “stock” to mean livestock—not financial stocks.

2. Reliability refers to the degree to which the observed results for a survey question are free of measurement
errors and thus accurately measure the true value among the survey participants.

3. In this context, representative refers to the degree to which the results found among the survey participants
match what would have been found if all likely November 2022 voters participated in the survey. A probabil-
ity-based sample free from the many possible sources of selection bias is the key to obtaining representative
results.

Lowell Joint School District True North Research, Inc. © 2022




The methodology that we propose is designed to do just that—adapt to these challenges by
employing innovative techniques that will ensure statistically reliable results. We propose to use
a stratified and clustered random sampling methodology that ensures a representative sam-
ple of likely November 2022 voters within the district regardless of whether they use mobile
phones, land lines, email, or all of the above. We also recommend using three recruiting meth-
ods (email invitations, text invitations, and telephone calls) to recruit participation in the survey
and a mixed-method data collection methodology that allows sampled respondents the flexi-
bility of participating online at a password protected web site, or by telephone if preferred.
Designed, tested and refined by True North over the past 10 years, our recommended survey
approach has proven to increase participation rates, reduce response bias, better engage tradi-
tionally hard-to-reach subgroups, and increase the overall accuracy and reliability of voter survey
results when compared to using fewer recruiting methods.

The scope of services that we propose to perform for the District includes
all tasks associated with designing, conducting and analyzing the survey, as well as presenting
the results. Briefly, the scope of services includes:

Meet with the District to thoroughly discuss the research objectives and methodology for
the study, as well as discuss potential challenges, concerns, and issues that may surround
the study.

Develop a stratified and clustered random sample of voters who—based on their voting his-
tory and registration status—are likely to participate in the election of interest (November
2022) on the natural or through targeted outreach efforts.

Develop a draft questionnaire for the District’s review and make revisions as needed until all
parties approve of the instrument.

Pre-test the survey instrument to ensure its integrity.

Professionally translate the survey and invitations into Spanish to allow for data collection in
English and Spanish.

Web program the finalized survey instrument to allow respondents to participate online at a
secure, password-protected survey site.

CATI (Computer Assisted Telephone Interviewing) program the same survey instrument to
ensure accurate and reliable data collection for respondents who prefer to participate by

telephone.?

Recruit voters to participate in the survey using a combination of email invitations, text invi-
tations, and telephone calls.

Collect at least 400 quality interviews according to the sampling plan and a strict interview-
ing protocol. A sample of this size will produce results with a statistical margin of error due
to sampling of +/-4.8% at the 95% confidence level. If productivity exceeds our conservative
estimate, any additional interviews beyond 400 will be provided to the District at not addi-
tional cost. It is expected that the average interview will last between 15 to 17 minutes.

Process the data, which includes conducting validity checks, cleaning, recoding, coding
open-end responses, and adjusting for strategic oversampling (if used) through a statistical
procedure known as ‘weighting’.

Prepare an initial topline report which presents the overall findings of the survey.

4. All recruiting and data collection conducted by telephone is performed by live, professional interviewers. We
do not use robocalls.

Lowell Joint School District True North Research, Inc. © 2022




Prepare a thorough report on the findings, including a detailed question-by-question analy-
sis, description of the methodology, an executive summary of the key findings and conclu-
sions/recommendations, as well as a comprehensive set of crosstabulations showing how
the answers varied by subgroups of voters. The report will include extensive full-color
graphics displaying the findings, as well as insightful narrative discussion of the results and
their implications.

Prepare an electronic copy of the final report to allow the District to reproduce the report as
needed.

. Prepare a PowerPoint presentation of the results and present the results to the District.
Be available to assist and provide advice to the District after the survey is complete.

True North's fixed-fee cost estimate to design and conduct the survey as described in
this proposal is $26,650. This cost is inclusive—there will be no additional charges associated
with the study. Although we guarantee at least 400 completed interviews, we will very likely
exceed that amount. Any additional interviews beyond 400 will be provided to the District at no
additional cost.

True North will work with the Lowell Joint School District to establish a
project schedule that meets the District’s needs. Below is a recommended schedule that shows
the stages of the survey project, the number of days that we anticipate devoting to each stage,
as well as the key research tasks that are completed in each stage. We have the flexibility and
resources to adjust this time line if the District desires, and can accelerate this time line if
needed.

FIGURE 1 PROPOSED TIME LINE

. Ongoing
Data Analysis & Strategic
Collection Reporting Consulting
Project Prepare to Data & ~ |
Initi;tion Fpield Processing n,'klf @) | Presentations | "f];‘ |
= \o = L -
y - -.L;-‘.«\‘ W y . &
4y " s = i
(%) |
i T ,f"' §l !
N !
i |
.P I |
! | |
o EIEETEN o & s dayar TY 10 days I Orgoing X8
« Kickoff « Questionnaire + Language » Email, Text + Data + Statistical « Staff
Meeting Design, Review  Translation & Phone Processing Analysis Presentation
» Background & Approve « CATI Recruiting » Coding + Modeling & . Board
Research + Pre-Test Program/Test  + Online + Weighting Targeting Presentation
« SharePlans <« Sample * Web Surveys * Crosstabs Tool + Strategic Advice
& Documents Program/Test  + Telephone + Topline + Full Report for Measure
= Interviewer Interviews Summary + Powerpoint
Training « Monitoring Summary
» Invitations

Lowell Joint School District True North Research, Inc. © 2022




For the past 20 years, True North has specialized in providing school dis-
tricts and other public agencies with statistically accurate research and insightful strategic
advice. To date, our team has designed and conducted over 1,200 survey research studies for
public agencies in California, including more than 400 revenue measure feasibility studies that
captured the pieces of information needed for estimating the feasibility of a measure and—if fea-
sible—identifying how best to package the measure for success. We have the highest verifiable
success rate in the industry for bonds and tax measures over the past decade (95%), including
100% success in five of the past six election cycles including November 2020. In total, the
research that True North has conducted has led to over $34 billion in successful local revenue
measures.

True North's President (Timothy Mclarney, Ph.D.) will serve as the
Project Manager for the proposed survey. He will be the District's day-to-day contact for all mat-
ters related to the study and will lead all design, analysis, reporting, and presentation tasks.
Approximately 75% of the research tasks will be performed directly by Dr. McLarney.

Dr. McLarney has more than 25 years of experience in survey methodology, statistics, public
opinion analysis, and providing data-driven strategic advice to public agencies. During his
career, he has occupied a lead role in over 1,200 research studies, more than 400 of which had
research objectives similar to those of the Lowell Joint School District.

Dr. Mclarney is a nationally recognized expert in survey research methodology, sampling theory,
weighting, and the use of statistical methods to generalize survey results. His research has been
published in academic journals and has earned him honors including the title of Visiting Scholar
at the Institute of Governmental Studies at UC Berkeley. He has also served as an independent
expert witness in survey research methodology for California legal cases. Dr. Mclarney earned
his Ph.D. and M.A. in Government from Cornell University with an emphasis in survey methodol-
ogy, sampling theory and public opinion analysis, as well as a Bachelor's degree in Politics from
the University of California, Santa Cruz.

Lowell Joint School District True North Research, Inc. © 2022




LETTER OF AGREEMENT

This proposal and the standard business terms (see below) will serve as a letter of agreement
between True North Research and the Lowell Joint School District for the services described pre-
viously. In fulfillment of this agreement, True North will perform the services described in the
Scope of Work on page 2. True North will invoice the full amount of the contract upon delivery of
the report, with full payment due within 30 days of receiving the invoice.

Sincerely, Agreed to and accepted by:
Timothy MclLarney, Ph.D. Jim Coombs

President Superintendent

True North Research Lowell Joint School District
1592 N Coast Highway 101 11019 Valley Home Ave.
Encinitas CA 92024 Whittier CA 90603

Contracts and agreements between True North Research and its clients
include the following general terms and conditions unless otherwise specified in a contract or
agreement.

Flat Fees Unless otherwise specified, True North Research charges a flat fee for all
or a portion of its services to a client in lieu of hourly charges.

Notices Any and all notices, demands, or other communications required or
desired to be given hereunder by any party shall be documented in writ-
ing.

Confidentiality True North Research acknowledges that during the engagement it will

have access to and possibly become acquainted with trade secrets,
inventions, innovations, processes, information, records, and specifica-
tions owned or licensed by the Client in connection with the operation of
its business including, business and product processes, methods, cus-
tomer lists, accounts, and procedures. True North Research agrees that
it will not disclose any of the aforesaid, directly or indirectly, or use any
of them in any manner, either during the term of this Agreement or at
any time thereafter, except as required in the course of this engagement
with the client, or without written consent from the client.

Acting as Agent In compliance with California sales tax regulation, True North Research
is designated as an Agent for the acquisition of tangible personal prop-
erty and services as they apply to its clients' marketing activities.

Lowell Joint School District True North Research, Inc. © 2022




Merger

Ownership of Materials

Independent Contractor

Amendment Provision

Successors

Termination

Attorneys' Fees

Coverning Law

Lowell Joint School District True North Research, Inc. © 2022

The merger or consolidation of the client into or with any other entity
shall not terminate or otherwise modify this Agreement.

In producing finished products, it is expressly understood that owner-
ship of all materials purchased by True North Research to complete the
materials to be produced passes to its clients at the time of purchase
and prior to any use by True North Research.

This Agreement shall not render True North Research an employee, part-
ner, agent of, or joint venturer for the client for federal, state or local tax
purposes, or for any other purpose.

This contract contains the entire agreement between the parties, and is
subject to and will be construed under the laws of the State of California,
and may be amended only in writing signed by both parties.

Any agreement between the agency and a client shall be binding upon,
the heirs, successors and assignors of the parties.

The contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties, or by
10 days notice by either party. If the agreement is terminated, True
North Research will bill the client for all work completed to date (includ-
ing subcontractors' work).

Should any action be brought by one party against the other party to
enforce any agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover
from the other party its reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and expenses.

Any agreement between True North and a client shall be governed by
California law and any action arising out of it shall be instituted and
prosecuted in the Municipal or Superior Court of the County of San
Diego.




LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salins and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Adoption of the 2022/23 Student Attendance ACTION
Calendar

The 2022/23 student attendance calendar to allow time for the District to complete report
cards, conduct parent conferences in a timely and efficient manner, and coincides with
Fullerton Joint Union High School District student attendance calendar.

It is recommended that the 2022/23 student attendance calendar be approved, and that the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

V-B1-1



Lowell Joint School District

STUDENT ATTENDANCE CALENDAR FOR 2022/2023

First Day of Student Attendance 7th Grade Students (Minimum Day)....... Tuesday, August 16, 2022

First Day of School..........ccoooiiiiiiiiiii Wednesday, August 17, 2022
Staff Development Day a.m. (students do not attend).................. Tuesday, November 1, 2022
Staff Development Day (students do not attend) ...........c.ccccevevevcvevcenennnn Friday, April 7, 2023
Last Day for 7" Grade Students..........ccouverrnerinernneriiennneerineneenn Thursday, June 1, 2023
Last Day for Students (Last Day Schedule) (8" Grade Promotion)...........Friday, June 2, 2023
HOLIDAYS
Labor Day....coiveeieeiieiiriniieinininieneeiesieesas e sneses e snssns s Monday, September 5, 2022
Veterans’ DAY csussssssvisssss s smssmiaasssossssianerion sesessseessnsssassnssans Friday, November 11, 2022
Thanksgiving Holiday................. Monday, November 21 through Friday, November 25, 2022
Winter Recess .......cccoeviiniiiinnnnns Monday, December 26, 2022 through Friday, January 6, 2023
Martin Luther King Day;ausssassiisaasmmsnvinssnsaia. Monday, January 16, 2023
Lincoln Day.........oveeww i idenssoresms s seiss s i asiapasasgbies cosroneaesss Monday, February 13, 2023
Washington Day ............osmereceriscmsionssss s ansao s s asyas et -« Monday, February 20, 2023
Spring Recess............cc.oeevevimrcenerennenn... Monday, March 20 through Friday, March 24, 2023
Memorial DAY ......cooveveiiiiieniiieiesiiris s st s enae Monday May 29, 2023

DAYS SCHOOL WILL BE IN SESSION

Calendar Student Days
Months Attended
August 11
September 21
October 21
November 15
December 17

January 16
February 18

March 18

April 19

May 22

June 2

Total Instructional Days 180

Adopted by the Board of Trustees 03/07/2022



Distrito Escolar Lowell Joint

CALENDARIO DE ASISTENCIA ESCOLAR 2022/2023

Primer Dia de Clases para estudiantes de 7°.grado (Dia Minimo) martes 16 de agosto, 2022
Primer Dia de Clases miércoles 17 de agosto, 2022
Dia de Desarrollo a Personal Escolar (No hay clases) lunes 1°. de noviembre, 2022
Dia de Desarrollo a Personal Escolar (No hay clases) viernes 7 de abril, 2023
Ultimo dia para estudiantes de 7°.grado jueves 1 de junio, 2023
Ultimo Dia para Estudiantes (ultimo dia programado) viernes 2 de junio, 2023

(Promocion de 8° grados)

DIAS FESTIVOS

Dia del Trabajo lunes 5 de septiembre, 2022
Dia de los Veteranos jueves 11 de noviembre, 2022
Festividades por Accién de Gracias del lunes noviembre 21 al viernes noviembre 25, 2022
Vacaciones de Navidad del lunes 26 de diciembre al viernes 6 de enero, 2022
Dia Conmemorativo Martin Luther King junes 16 de enero, 2023
Dia Conmemorativo Lincoln lunes 13 de febrero, 2023
Dia Conmemorativo Washington lunes 20 de febrero, 2023
Vacaciones de Primavera del lunes 20 de marzo al viernes 24 de marzo, 2023
Dia Conmemorativo lunes 29 de mayo, 2023

DIAS EN QUE LAS ESCUELAS ESTAN EN CLASE

Calendario en meses Dias de asistencia
Agosto 11
Septiembre 21
Octubre 21
Noviembre 15
Diciembre 17
Enero 16
Febrero 18
Marzo 18
Abril 19
Mayo 22
Junio 2
Total Dias de Instruccion: 180

Rectificado por el Consejo Educativo: 03/03/2022



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
March 7, 2022

To: President Salins and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Adoption of the 2023/24 Student Attendance ACTION
Calendar

The 2023/24 student attendance calendar to allow time for the District to complete report
cards, conduct parent conferences in a timely and efficient manner, and coincides with
Fullerton Joint Union High School District student attendance calendar.

It is recommended that the 2023/24 student attendance calendar be approved, and that the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

V-Cl-1



Lowell Joint School District

STUDENT ATTENDANCE CALENDAR FOR 2023/2024

First Day of Student Attendance 7th Grade Students (Minimum Day)....... Tuesday, August 15, 2023

First Day of School...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiii Wednesday, August 16, 2023
Staff Development Day a.m. (students do not attend)................Wednesday, November 1, 2023
Staff Development Day (students do not attend) ............ccovceeecveriveerenens Friday, March 29, 2024
Last Day for 7" Grade Students...........ccocvevniieirienernesneineeinieenn, Thursday, May 30, 2024

Last Day for Students (Last Day Schedule) (8" Grade Promotion)..........Friday, May 31, 2024

HOLIDAYS
Labor Day....ucciviiiiieiinieseeirieecrinesseanesssesiessinesnsssssesosssssasssssesssnrnas Monday, September 4, 2023
Veterans’ DAY ...ccveeieerireerieesrnesiresiesssesneiesiesssessesssssessressesesessosaes Friday, November 10, 2023
Thanksgiving Holiday................. Monday, November 20 through Friday, November 24, 2023
Winter Recess swivammsnssoms Monday, December 25, 2023 through Friday, January 5, 2024
Martin Luther King Day........ccccoevvviiviininniiiiiiciice e, Monday, January 15, 2024
LINCOIN DY iuussusensuiniinsiisis s s s it siisiac s sbsdaisssnss snvons Monday, February 12, 2024
WaShington Day .cic.isisseiioiiiiesaineeeesessressrosnssessrnssresassess Monday, February 19, 2024
Spring Recess.............ccvveviriiiieniennnne.. Monday, March 18 through Friday, March 22, 2024
Memorial DAY ......c.ceeercoe vee ippsmenspmmisnen i s mes KA A T H TRV B o VSR H SRR o0 Monday May 27, 2024

DAYS SCHOOL WILL BE IN SESSION

Calendar Student Days
Months Attended
August 12
September 20
October 22
November 15
December 16

January 17
February 19

March 15

April 22

May 22

June 0

Total Instructional Days 180

Adopted by the Board of Trustees 03/07/2022



Distrito Escolar Lowell Joint

CALENDARIO DE ASISTENCIA ESCOLAR 2023/2024

Primer Dia de Clases para estudiantes de 7°.grado (Dia Minimo) martes 15 de agosto, 2023
Primer Dia de Clases miércoles 16 de agosto, 2023
Dia de Desarrollo a Personal Escolar (No hay clases) lunes 1°. de noviembre, 2023
Dia de Desarrollo a Personal Escolar (No hay clases) viernes 29 de marzo, 2024
Uitimo dia para estudiantes de 7°.grado jueves 30 de mayo, 2024
Uitimo Dia para Estudiantes (ultimo dia programado) viernes 31 de mayo, 2024

(Promocion de 8° grados)

DIAS FESTIVOS

Dia del Trabajo lunes 4 de septiembre, 2023
Dia de los Veteranos jueves 10 de noviembre, 2023
Festividades por Accion de Gracias del lunes noviembre 20 al viernes noviembre 24, 2023
Vacaciones de Navidad del lunes 25 de diciembre, 2023 al viernes 5 de enero, 2024
Dia Conmemorativo Martin Luther King lunes 15 de enero, 2024
Dia Conmemorativo Lincoln lunes 12 de febrero, 2024
Dia Conmemorativo Washington lunes 19 de febrero, 2024
Vacaciones de Primavera del lunes 18 de marzo al viernes 22 de marzo, 2024
Dia Conmemorativo lunes 27 de mayo, 2024

DIAS EN QUE LAS ESCUELAS ESTAN EN CLASE

Calendario en meses Dias de asistencia
Agosto 12
Septiembre 20
Octubre 22
Noviembre 15
Diciembre 16
Enero 17
Febrero 19
Marzo 15
Abril 22
Mayo 22
Junio 0
Total Dias de Instruccion: 180

Rectificado por el Consejo Educativo: 03/07/2022



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Resolution 2021/2022 No. 853 Order of Biennial ACTION/
Trustee Election and Specifications of the Election (RESOLUTION)

Order for Los Angeles County

Pursuant to Education Code Section 5300, elections will be held on Tuesday, November 8,
2022, to elect members to the governing boards in Los Angeles County. A blanket “Order of
Election,” will cover all governing board elections held on this date. Governing boards of
school districts scheduled to hold elections on this date are required to take action to initiate
the regular biennial governing board election by adopting the attached resolution.

It is recommended that Resolution 2021/2022 No. 853 Order of Biennial Trustee Election
and Specifications of the Election Order for Los Angeles County be approved, and that the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
ADOPTION BY MAJORITY ROLL CALL VOTE.

V-D1-1



RESOLUTION NO. 853

RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF THE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT,
LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
FOR THE BIENNIAL TRUSTEE ELECTION AND
SPECIFICATIONS OF THE ELECTION ORDER FOR
LOS ANGELES COUNTY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code Section 5000-5030, the Los Angeles
County Superintendent of Schools is hereby ordered to call an election for the purpose,

and in accordance with the designations contained in the following specifications of the
Election Order made under the authority of EC §5302, §5304, and §5322.

WHEREAS, the election of the governing board members is ordered by law
pursuant to §5000 of the Education Code to fill the office of members whose terms expire
on November 30, 2022, next succeeding the election.

WHEREAS, for district elections the filing of Candidate Statements will be no
more than 200 words allowed and that the payment of the estimated cost must be made
by the candidate at time of filing.

WHEREAS, the Los Angeles County Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk will
perform all the duties incident to the preparation for and holding of the above-mention
election. The Lowell Joint School District will pay the costs of the election. If any
agency holds an election on Tuesday, November 8, 2022, the Lowell Joint School District
shall pay its pro rata share pertaining to the conduct of this election and shall be under the
provisions of the appropriate section of the Education and Election Codes.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Clerk of the district is hereby directed to
furnish two copies of this order to the County Superintendent not less than 130 days prior
to the date set for the election.

NOW BE IT RESOLVED the foregoing Resolution and Order was adopted and
affirmed by the Governing Board of Lowell Joint School District of Los Angeles County,
being that the Board authorized by law to make the designations contained therein.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School
District, Los Angeles and Orange Counties on March 7, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:



I, Anastasia Shackelford, Clerk to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School
District of Los Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above
and foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 7" day of March, 2022, and passed by a unanimous vote of
those present:

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 7 day of March
2022.

Anastasia Shackelford, Lowell Joint School District
Clerk to the Board of Trustees



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Resolution 2021/2022 No. 854 Order of Biennial ACTION/
Trustee Election and Specifications of the Election (RESOLUTION)
Order for Orange County

Pursuant to Education Code Section 5300, elections will be held on Tuesday, November 8,
2022, to elect members to the governing boards in Orange County. A blanket “Order of
Election,” will cover all governing board elections held on this date. Governing boards of
school districts scheduled to hold elections on this date are required to take action to initiate
the regular biennial governing board election by adopting the attached resolution.

It is recommended that Resolution 2022/2023 No. 854 Order of Biennial Trustee Election
and Specifications of the Election Order for Orange County be approved, and that the Acting
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
ADOPTION BY MAJORITY ROLL CALL VOTE.

V-El-1



RESOLUTION NO. 854

RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF THE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT,
LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
FOR THE BIENNIAL TRUSTEE ELECTION AND
SPECIFICATIONS OF THE ELECTION ORDER FOR
ORANGE COUNTY

WHEREAS, the election of the governing board members is ordered by law
pursuant to §5000 of the Education Code to fill the office of members whose terms expire
on November 30, 2022, next succeeding the election.

WHEREAS, for district elections the filing of Candidate Statements will be no
more than 200 words allowed and that the payment of the estimated cost must be made
by the candidate at time of filing.

NOW BE IT RESOLVED that pursuant to the authority of Education Code
Sections 5304 and 5322, the County Superintendent of Schools, Orange County, is
hereby informed of the specifications of the election order for the forthcoming Biennial
Governing Board Election to be held on Tuesday, November 8, 2022.

The County Superintendent is further ordered to consolidate this election in
accordance with Education Code Sections 5340 and 5342.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School
District, Los Angeles and Orange Counties on March 7, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

I, Anastasia Shackelford, Clerk to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School
District of Los Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above
and foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular

meeting thereof held on the 7™ day of March, 2022, and passed by a unanimous vote of
those present:

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 7" day of March
2022.

Anastasia Shackelford, Lowell Joint School District
Clerk to the Board of Trustees



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of a Positive Certification of the 2021/2022 INFORMATION/
Second Interim Report, and Concurrent Approval of ACTION
Corresponding Budget Adjustments From the First
Interim Report

Education Code Sections 35035(g), 42130, and 42131 require Board approval of the
District’s Second Interim Report 2021/22 and certification by the Board as to whether or not
the District certifies they are able to maintain positive cash and fund balances for the current
and subsequent two fiscal years. The Board can certify they are certain (positive
certification), uncertain (qualified certification), or negative (negative certification) they can
meet their current and subsequent two years positive cash and fund balances. The Board
approved interim report is due to the Orange County Department of Education by
March 15, 2022.

The 2021/22 Second Interim Report, and corresponding positive certification, is based upon
the current 2021/2022 State budget and proposed 2021/22 State budget assumptions defined
by the Orange County Department of Education.

It is recommended the Board of Trustees approve a Positive Certification of the 2021/2022
Second Interim and concurrent approval of corresponding budget adjustments from the first
interim report, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
VI-Al-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject: Presentation of Audit Report for 2020/2021 INFORMATION

Education Code 41020 requires school districts to annually obtain an independent audit
report of its financial statements. The firm of Nigro and Nigro performed the 2020/2021
financial audit of Lowell Joint School District financial statements.

A member of the audit firm will present the report to the Board.

AR:sb

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VI-B1-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022
To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Public Hearing: Lowell Joint Education Association INFORMATION/
Initial Proposal for a Successor Agreement PUBLIC HEARING

Pursuant to the Rodda Act, the Lowell Joint Education Association initial proposal for a
successor agreement will be presented to the Board.

A public hearing is required following the presentation of the initial proposal.

Superintendent’s Comment:
PUBLIC HEARING /INFORMATION

VII-Al-1



LOWELL JOINT
EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

LJEA/CTA/NEA

March 7, 2022

Mr. Jim Coombs, Superintendent
1019 Valley Home Ave.
Whittier, CA 90603

RE: UEA Sunshine Notice

Dear Mr. Coombs,

In accordance with the Educational Employment Relations Act (EERA) and the operable provisions of
our Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA), the following represents LIEA’s public notice and “sunshine
proposals” on negotiations for a successor agreement. Since the parties will be negotiating their
successor agreement, all articles are subject to negotiations. At this time UEA intends to address:
Article 1: Agreement: LJEA seeks to negotiate changes to Agreement.

Article 7: Association Rights: LIEA seeks to negotiate changes to Association Rights.

Article 9: Grievance Procedures: LIEA seeks to negotiate changes to Grievance Procedures.

Article 13: Working Environment: LIEA seeks to negotiate changes to Working Envoronment.

Article 14: Class Size Policy: LIEA seeks to negotiate changes to Class Size Policy.

Article 15: Teaching Hours and Adjunct Duties: LIEA seeks to negotiate changes to Teaching Hours and
Adjunct Duties.

Article 17: Peer Assistance and Review (PAR): LJEA seeks to negotiate changes to PAR

Article 18: Academic Freedom: LIEA seeks to negotiate changes to Academic Freedom.



LOWELL JOINT
EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

LJEA/CTA/NEA

Article 19: Certificated Evaluation Procedures: LIEA seeks to negotiate changes to Certificated
Evaluation Procedures.

Article 20: Personnel Files: LIEA seeks to negotiate changes to Personnel Files.
Article 22: Leaves: LJEA seeks to negotiate changes to Leaves.

Article 23: Salary: LIEA seeks to negotiate changes to Salary for the 2023-2024, 2024-2025, and 2025-
2026 school years.

Article 28: Matters Not Covered/Savings Provisions: LIEA seeks to negotiate changes to Matters Not
Covered/Savings Provisions.

Article 29: Miscellaneous Provisions: LUEA seeks to negotiate changes to Miscellaneous Provisions.
Article 30: Support of Agreement: LUEA seeks to negotiate changes to Support of Agreement.
Article 31: Effect of Agreement: LIEA seeks to negotiate Effect of Agreement.

LJEA also seeks to review any related appendices.

Please submit this notice to the Board of Trustees for inclusion on their next meeting agenda.

Respectfully,

Leslie Mangold, LIEA Bargaining Chair

Cc: Allison Fonti, UEA President
Angel Maldonado, CTA Regional Uniserv Staff



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Lowell Joint School District will hold a Public Hearing to hear
the Initial Proposal from the Lowell Joint Education Association
for a Successor Agreement. The District is required to hold a
public hearing to encourage participation by parents, teachers,
members of the community interested in the affairs of the School
District, and bargaining unit leaders.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint
School District at its regular meeting to be held on March 7, 2022, will hold a public
hearing at which the Board of Trustees shall hear the initial proposal from the Lowell
Joint Education Association for a successor agreement to the 2023-2026 contract.

The March 7, 2022, Board meeting of the District will begin at 7:30 p.m. in the
District’s Board Room located at 11019 Valley Home, Whittier, California, 90603.

Questions and/or comments should be directed to Jim Coombs, Superintendent,
(562) 943-0211.



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Public Hearing: Initial Proposal for public comment INFORMATION/
from the Lowell Joint School District regarding the PUBLIC HEARING

California School Employees Association Agreement
sections to be negotiated.

Pursuant to Rodda Act, the Lowell Joint School District presents to the Board of Trustees the
following contract sections to negotiate:

A public hearing to solicit public input is required following the presentation of this initial
proposal.

Article 8: Summer School Employment: The district is interested in negotiating this section
due to the impact of the new Expanded Learning Opportunities Program it is required to
implement.

Article 18: Transfers and Vacancies: The district is interested in negotiating this section due

to the impact of the new state law requiring layoffs according to certificated timelines, which
is once per year by March 15.

AR/sb

Superintendent’s Comment:
INFORMATION ONLY.

VII-B1-1



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Lowell Joint School District will hold a Public Hearing to hear
the Initial Proposal from the District regarding the California
School Employees Association Agreement sections they intend to
negotiate. Two contract items are allowed as “re-openers” for
the current year. The District is required to hold a public
hearing to encourage participation by parents, teachers,
members of the community interested in the affairs of the School
District, and bargaining unit leaders.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint
School District at its regular meeting to be held on March 7, 2022, will hold a public
hearing at which the Board of Trustees shall hear the initial proposal from the School
District for two contract sections to be negotiated in the CSEA agreement in the 2019-
2022 contract.

The March 7, 2022, Board meeting at the District will begin at 7:30 p.m. in the
District’s Board Room located at 11019 Valley Home, Whittier, California, 90603.

Questions and/or comments should be directed to Jim Coombs, Superintendent,
(562) 943-0211.

AR/sb



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Resolution 2021/22 No. 855, to Release and Non-Reelect ACTION/
Temporary Certificated Employees (RESOLUTION)

The District has recommended that due to the potential loss of revenue funding and possible return
of leave of absences, the release of temporary certificated employees from their temporary
assignments is required.

It is recommended that Resolution 2021/22 No. 855, to Release and Non-Reelect Temporary
Certificated Employees, be adopted, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to
execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
ADOPTION BY MAJORITY ROLL CALL VOTE.

VII-C1-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

RESOLUTION 2021-22 NO. 855

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT OF
LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
TO RELEASE AND NONREELECT
TEMPORARY CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES
(Education Code Section 44954)

A. General Recitals

L. WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees employs temporary certificated employees pursuant to
Sections 44909, 44918, and 44920 of the Education Code; and

% WHEREAS, Education Code section 44916 requires a temporary certificated employee to
receive notice, prior to the first day of paid service, of the temporary nature of the
employment and the anticipated length of service; and

3 WHEREAS, each employee classified as a temporary certificated employee pursuant to
Sections of 44909, 44918, and 44920 of the Education Code received notice, prior to their
first day of paid service, of the temporary nature of the employment and anticipated length
of their service; and

4, WHEREAS, Education Code section 44954 provides that the Board of Trustees shall
notify temporary employees in a position requiring certification qualification of the
District’s decision to release the employees from such a position prior to the next
succeeding school year; and

e WHEREAS, through this resolution, it is the intent of the Board of Trustees to release
each temporary certificated employee employed for the 2021/22 school year effective no
later than the last school day of the school year.

B. Employment of Temporary Employees as Leave Replacements
Pursuant to Education Code Section 44920

1. WHEREAS, Education Code section 44920 permits the Board of Trustees to “employ as
a teacher ... any person holding appropriate certification documents, and may classify such
person as a temporary employee” “based upon the need for additional certificated
employees during a particular semester or year because a certificated employee has been
granted leave for a semester or year, or is experiencing long-term illness™; and

005632.00081
15123838.1



2.

005632.00081
15123838.1

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees employed the following certificated employees under
temporary contracts pursuant to Education Code section 44920 during the 2021/22 school

o 9900000480 9900000588 9900000455 20000520
9900000174 9900000587 9900000312 9900000591
9900000013 9900000370 9900000660 9900000006
9900000592 9900000593 9900000118 9900000220
9900000490 9900000638 9900000311 9900000479
9900000431 9900000250 9900000595

. WHEREAS, the above-listed employees may be released pursuant to Education Code

section 44918 and 44954 regardless of any expiration of a contract or a specially funded
project; and

. WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District has determined to

release the above-listed employees at the conclusion of the current 2021/22 school year
and not to re-elect the following employee for the 2022/23 school year:

Employment of Temporary Employees in Categorically Funded Programs
Pursuant to Education Code Section 44909

WHEREAS, Education Code section 44909 permits the Board of Trustees to “employ
persons possessing an appropriate credential as certificated employees in programs and
projects to perform services conducted under contract with public or private agencies, or
categorically funded projects which are not required by federal or state statutes;” and

. WHEREAS, Education Code section 44909 provides, “Such persons may be employed

for periods which are less than a full school year and may be terminated at the expiration
of the contract or specially funded project without regard to other requirements of this code
respecting the termination of probationary or permanent employees other than Section
44918”; and

. WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees employed no certificated employee under a temporary

contract in a categorically funded position pursuant to Education Code section 44909
during the 2021/22 school year.

. WHEREAS, Education Code section 44909 requires the “terms and conditions under

which such persons are employed shall be mutually agreed upon by the employee and the
Board of Trustees and such agreement shall be reduced in writing;” and

. WHEREAS, the above-listed individual was employed pursuant to a mutually agreed-

upon contract between the employee and the Board of Trustees and for the term of the
contract or project; and



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

WHEREAS, the employee was hired to perform services conducted under contract with
public or private agencies or categorically funded projects which are not required by federal
or state statutes; and

WHEREAS, the employee’s contract specifically identified the particular contract or
project under which their services were to be performed; and

WHEREAS, the term for each specifically fund project or contract has expired, or will
expire by the termination date of the employee’s contract; and

WHEREAS, all categorical funds used to justify the above-listed employee classification
as temporary under Education Code section 44909 will be expended and therefore will
expire at the end of the 2021/22 school year; and

WHEREAS, no categorical funding used to justify certain the above-listed employee
classification as temporary under Education Code section 44909 has a duration beyond the
2021/22 school year; and

WHEREAS, accordingly, the above-listed employee designated as temporary by the
District under Education Code section 44909 may be released at the end of the 2021/22
school year without the procedural requirements applicable to probationary and permanent
employees; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has determined to release the above-listed employee,

whether their lawful status is considered to be temporary or probationary, at the end of the current
2021/22 school year, and not to re-elect for the 2022/23 school year, consistent with the terms of
Education Code sections 44909, and 44954.

and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the above recitals are true and correct;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School

District hereby directs that notice be provided to each of the above employees of his or her release
effective upon the close of the 2021/22 school year or the expiration of any applicable temporary
contract (whichever occurs first), that his or her employment with the Lowell Joint School District
is thereby ended accordingly, that the employee is not re-elected to employment for the next
succeeding school year, and that the notification be provided on or before March 15, 2022.

AYES:

NOES:

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 7 day of March, 2022, by the following vote:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

005632.00081
15123838.1



005632.00081
15123838.1

I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of Los
Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution
was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held on the 7% day
of March, 2022, and passed by a unanimous vote of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 7 day of March, 2022.

Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Resolution 2021/22 No. 856, to Release Probationary ACTION/
Certificated Employees (RESOLUTION)

Education Code section 44929.21 permits a governing board to notify an employee serving the
District in a position requiring certification qualifications, on or before June 30 of the employee’s
first complete consecutive school year of employment, of the decision to non-reelect the employee
to such a position for the next succeeding school year.

It is recommended that Resolution 2021/22 No. 856, to Release Probationary Certificated
Employees, be adopted, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the
necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
ADOPTION BY MAJORITY ROLL CALL VOTE.

VII-C2-1



005632.00081
15123838.1

LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

RESOLUTION 2021-22 NO. 856

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT OF
LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
TO RELEASE PROBATIONARY CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES
(Education Code Section 44929.21)

General Recitals

WHEREAS, Education Code section 44929.21 permits a governing board to notify an
employee serving the District in a position requiring certification qualifications, on or
before June 30 of the employee’s first complete consecutive school year of employment,
of the decision to non-reelect the employee to such a position for the next succeeding
school year; and

WHEREAS, Education Code section 44929.21 requires a governing board to notify a
probationary certificated employee, on or before March 15 of the employee’s second
complete consecutive year of employment by the District in a position requiring
certification qualifications, of the decision to non-reelect the employee for the succeeding
school year to such a position; and

WHEREAS, Education Code section 44908 provides that a probationary employee is
deemed to have served a complete school year when he or she has served for at least 75
percent of the number of days the regular schools of the district in which he or she is
employed are maintained; and

WHEREAS, the following individuals are currently employed as probationary certificated
employees with the Lowell Joint School District and the Board desires to release from
employment and non-reelect these employees for the 2022-2023 school year in any
certificated position with the District:

9900000594

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the above-listed
employees are released from employment upon the close of the 2021-2022 school year and
are non-reelected for the 2022-2023 school year.

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Board of Trustees of the
Lowell Joint School District hereby directs the Superintendent or designee to provide
notice on or before March 15, 2022 to the above-named employees in accordance with
Education Code 44929.21, which shall be served in accordance with those provisions, and
with adherence to applicable legal timelines, that the Board has determined to release these



probationary employees from employment upon the close of the current school year and to
non-reelect these employees for the 2022-2023 school year. The Superintendent or
designee is further authorized to take other actions necessary to carry out the intent of this
Resolution.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 7% day of March, 2022, by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of Los
Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution
was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held on the 7% day

of March, 2022, and passed by a unanimous vote of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 7" day of March, 2022.

Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees

005632.00081

15123838.1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan INFORMATION/
for 2021/2022 school year. ACTION

California Education Code 35294.6 and 32282 requires each school maintain a
comprehensive school safety plan including specific elements such as emergency numbers,
ingress and egress, practice drills, evacuation procedures, campus maps, etc.’

All plans are to be reviewed and approved by the School Site Council each year before
March 1% to ensure policies and procedures are current. The Board of Trustees then approves
the signature pages to verify the plans are complete. Copies of the plan are available at each
school site.

It is recommended that the 2021-22 signature pages of the Comprehensive School Safety
Plan for each school site be approved and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized
to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VIII-Al-1



El Portal Elementary School
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Signature Page

2021-2022

The undersigned members of the El Portal Elementary School Site Council certify that the
requirements of California Education Code 32280-32282 have been met in the development of

the following Comprehensive School Safety Plan.

O

Rhohda \*&H)T,_F’_Apdl

Skl

9/95[11

2/26/21

Richel Guerrero, Teachf.r S A“ssocmllon Representative

ST

Date

Z/L’ilzozz_

LL ti McGill, School Site Council Chairperson

M\"" Fore. Reging FASS 0S

Dalte I

Blilaz

Regina Fiscus, Classified Employee Association Representative Date
Student - Optional
Fire Departments: 911

La Habra Heights Fire Department
1245 Hacienda Rd, La Habra Heights, CA 90631

LA County Fire Department Station 191
101 W La Habra Blvd, La Habra, CA 90631

LA County Fire Department Station 15
11460 Santa Gertrudes Ave, Whittier, CA 90604

Police Departments:
La Habra Police Department
150 N Euclid St, La Habra, CA 90631

Whittier Police Department
13200 Penn St, Whittier, CA 90602

LA County Sheriff/East Whittier
12440 Imperial Hwy #650, Norwalk, CA 90650

LA County Sheriff/La Habra Heights
150 North Hudson Ave.
City of Industry, CA 91744

(562) 383-4300

(562) 567-9200

(562) 863-8711

(562) 694-5923



functioning as a template for meeting the requirements for the annual Safety Plan Process

under 8B 187 and the National Incident Management System. It is designed to be a hard copy
Safety Plan.

The template is to be used as a living document to be updated as necessary to meet site, district
and community needs, forms or requirements.

Itis NOT intended to be a “grab and go” guide in an actual emergency.

This document is available for public inspection during regular business hours at 10654 Jordan
Road Whittier, CA 90603.

NOTE: Tactical information is excluded from the public inspection document. A “Public Inspection Log” will be
used to record the name, address, phone number and method used for verifying the identity of all individuals
requesting to inspect this plan. This document is not available for inspection on the intermet

Jordan Elementary
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Signature Page
2021-2022

The undersigned members of the J ordan School Site Council certify that the requirements of
California Education Code 32280-32282 have been met in the development of the following
Comprehensive School Safety Plan.

A VSR Y o ¢ h,;' -~ =
_(f.z."f-,«{f_“.f?fcf il _ﬁ;»/'.f-,'}."' Gy L ,f*’{-“ ,_—;2—.-,»?_,;;}\

JElmquist, Princi al/ Date
/ Dod ,
Azl Hebs 3-2-17

Marik

%&Fehon, Teacher’s Association R?@Iative Date
L NIaY ) 52 /
<§k L XA i 3272
QAN S‘A“l&\)\ el Z—»
a

‘EHBN&,L;H&Q{{ School Site' Council Chairperson Date

Qgﬂf‘uzm«f Q\D\M/ 2)5] 2L

Adriana Pone, Classified Ealloyec Association Representative Date

Fire Departments:
La Habra Heights Fire Department 911
1245 Hacienda Rd. La Habra Heights, CA 90631

LA County Fire Department Station 191
101 W La Habra Blvd, La Habra, CA 90631



Preface

The Comprehensive School Safety Plan is designed to be utilized as a school resource for
prevention/mitigation, preparedness, response and recovery planning and training as well as
functioning as a template for meeting the requirements for the annual Safety Plan Process
under SB 187 and the National Incident Management System. It is designed to be a hard copy

Safety Plan.

The template is to be used as a living document to be updated as necessary to meet site, district

and community needs, forms or requirements.

It is NOT intended to be a “grab and go” guide in an actual emergency.

This document is available for public inspection during regular business hours at Macy School,
2301 W. Russell Rd, La Habra, CA, 90631

NOTE: Tactical information is excluded from the public inspection document. A “Public Inspection Log” will be
used to record the name, address, phone number and method used for verifying the identity of all individuals
requesting to inspect this plan. This document is not available for inspection on the internet

MacyElementary
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Signature Page
2021-2022

The undersigned members of the Macy School Site Council certify that the requirements of

California Education Code 32280-32282 have been met in the development of the following
Comprehensive School Safety Plan.

mm 3/ | [22

PAtty Jac sen, Principal Date
A ”/"7 M 3/1/22
Cl 15[1& old, Teacher’s Association Representatlve Date

/,f 3l |22
Dalte \

iner, School Site Council Chalrperson

A?ia—A;eeg/, Classified Employee Association Representative Date




Meadow Green Elementary School
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Signature Page
2021-2022

The undersigned members of the Meadow Green School Site Council certify that the
/r‘zqu ements of California Education Code 32280-32282 have been met in the development of
e

fi llng ‘omprehensive School Safety Plan.
N0/

Mhtt Cukro, Principal Date

o]
A Q)20 )21
Krista Karr, Teacher’s Association Representative Date '
W ()/,M}%A/ lo]1 } 2)
Michelle Van der Lee, School Site Council Chairperson Date

P i
Doullepne Crlinoan [0]1]2]
Darlene Pullen, Classified Employee Association Representative Date
Fire Departments: 911

La Habra Heights Fire Department
1245 Hacienda Rd, La Habra Heights, CA 90631

LA County Fire Department Station 191
101 W La Habra Blvd, La Habra, CA 90631

LA County Fire Department Station 15
11460 Santa Gertrudes Ave, Whittier, CA 90604

Police Departments:
La Habra Police Department

150 N Euclid St, La Habra, CA 90631 (562) 383-4300
Whittier Police Department
13200 Penn St, Whittier, CA 90602 (562) 567-9200

LA County Sheriff/East Whittier
12440 Imperial Hwy #650, Norwalk, CA 90650 (562) 863-8711

LA County Sheriff/L.a Habra Heights
150 North Hudson Ave.
City of Industry, CA 91744 (562) 694-5923



Olita Elementary School

Comprehensive School Safety Plan Signature Page

2022-2022

Thg unqersigned .members of the Olita Elementary School Site Council certify that the requirements of
California Education Code 32280-32282 have been met in the development of the following

Com;:zt;emj've School Safety Plan,

Krisfa Van Hoogmoed, Principal

éL‘/ 24 / 22

L

Whittier Police Department
13200 Penn St., Whittier, CA 90602

LA County Sheriff/[East Whittier
12440 Imperial Hwy #650, Norwalk, CA 90650

LA County Sheriff/lLa Habra Heights
150 North Hudson Ave, City of Industry, CA 91744

" Date
_ -
%_ﬁm ) Joamn. L-29-27
La Reina Ayers./ Teacler's Association Representative Date
K Chaus, 02/24/2022
Karen Chévez, Schgfl Site Council G’hﬁairperson - 'pate '
57 - 2 e

Susan Scot§, Classified Employee Association Representative - .’ Date

Student - Optional

Fire Departments: . 911

La Habra Heights Fire Department . =2

1245 Hacienda Road, La Habra Heights, CA 90631

La County Fire Department Station 191 -

101 W. La Habra Blvd., La Habra, CA 90631

La County Fire Department Station 15

11460 Santa Gertrudes Ave., Whittier, CA 90604
Police Departments:

La Habra Police Department .

150 N. Euclid St., La Habra, CA 90631 (562)383-4300

(562)567-9200

(562)863-87 11

(562)694-5923



Preface

The Comprehensive School Safety Plan is designed to be utilized as a school resource for
prevention/mitigation, preparedness, response and recovery planning and training as well as functioning as a
template for meeting the requirements for the annual Safety Plan Process under SB 187 and the National
Incident Management System. It is designed to be a hard copy Safety Plan.

The template is to be used as a living document to be updated as necessary to meet site, district and

community needs, forms or requirements.

It is NOT intended to be a “grab and go” guide in an actnal emergency.

This document is available for public inspection during regular business hours at 16430 Woodbrier Dr. Whitter,
CA 90604-4099.

NOTE: Tactical information is excluded from the public inspection document. A “Public Inspection Log” will be used to record the
name, address, phone number and method used for verifying the identity of all individuals requesting to inspect this plan. This
document is not available for inspection on the internet

Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Signature Page
2021-2022

The undersigned members of the Rancho-Starbuck School Site Council certify that the requirements of
California Education Code 32280-32282 have been met in the development of the following Comprehensive

School Safety Plan.
- oo
Dr. Jenhifer/Jackson, Principal Date
Ly .
BalbaAa_ 71/

Erittany Goss, Teacher’s Association Representative ate ’

el e Qorpuga D |1/ 22
Arlene Anaya, School SiteCouncil Vice Chairperson Date
/1 LGA,Q:J%'\UJ Oa [‘Q (~R7-22
Aﬂril Bullard, Classified Employee Association Representative Date




LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of Winter Submission of the 2021/22 INFORMATION

Consolidated Application

The Consolidated Application is used by the California Department of Education to distribute
funds and collect required data for major Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) federal grant
programs for Local Education Agencies. The application is submitted online through a web-
based Consolidated Application Reporting System (CARS). The application requires two
data collections to be submitted in Spring and Winter. This year’s Winter Data Collection
must be submitted by March 11, 2022, indicating the number of current year pupil
participants and funding allocations for each program and school site. Information reporting
from previous years’ program participation and expenditure reports are also collected.
Federal guidelines allow local non-profit private schools to participate with the public school
district in federal programs. Participating eligible private school allocations are included in
the CARS Winter Data Collection although there are currently no qualifying private schools
within our boundaries.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
VIII-B1-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Resolution 2021/22 No. 857 Declaring March ACTION/
7-11, 2022 as “National School Breakfast Week” (RESOLUTION)

National School Breakfast Week takes place during the first full week in March to raise
awareness about one the school breakfast program. Experts say breakfast is the most
important meal of the day — and the federal government agrees. Ever since its inception in
1966, the School Breakfast Program has served billions of free and nutritious meals to
students from all economic backgrounds.

During this week, we celebrate our students and cafeterias, with special menus, events,
student activities and more.

It is recommended that Resolution 2021/22 No.857 supporting March 7-11, 2022 “National
School Breakfast Week” be approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized
to execute the resolution.

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:
ADOPTION BY MAJORITY ROLL CALL VOTE.

IX-Al-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2021-22 NO. 857

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT OF
LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
DECLARING NATIONAL SCHOOL BREAKFAST WEEK MARCH 7-11, 2022

WHEREAS, the School Breakfast Program has served our nation admirably for over 70
years; and

WHEREAS, the School Breakfast Program is dedicated to the health and wellbeing of our
nation’s children; and

WHEREAS, the School Breakfast Program joins and has been joined through the years by
many other excellent child nutrition programs; and

WHEREAS, there is evidence of continued need for nutrition education and awareness of
the value of school nutrition programs; and

WHEREAS, Nutrition Services is dedicated to supporting education by serving healthy
meals to the students of Lowell Joint School District; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Lowell Joint School District’s Board
of Education declares the week of March 7-11, 2021, as “NATIONAL SCHOOL BREAKFAST
WEEK?” and devote this week to the recognition of the dedicated and hardworking people who
make the School Breakfast Program a reality in their community schools, and encourage all
residents of the community to become aware of the solid foundation for learning provided by a
nutritious School Breakfast.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 7" day of March, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of Los
Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution
was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held on the 7% day

of March, 2022, and passed by a unanimous vote of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 7" day of March, 2022.

Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees

005632.00081

15123838.1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From:  Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject: Ratification of Professional Services Agreement with A-Tech ACTION/
Consulting for Hazardous Materials Testing and Assessment (RATIFICATION)

Services at Meadow Green Elementary School

Background:

On June 11, 2018, the Lowell Joint School District Board of Trustees approved Resolution 2018-19
No. 724 ordering a School Bond Election. On November 6, 2018, the voters in the Lowell Joint
School District passed measure LL. A part of Measure LL includes the repairs and upgrades to
District facilities. This expenditure is subject to the purview of the Citizens Bond Oversight
Committee.

Current Considerations:

Unlike the Public Works competitive bidding process, Professional Service providers can be selected
on the basis of their qualifications, services they provide and their value to the District.

In March 2019, the District issued an RFQ for Hazardous Materials Surveying and Testing providers.
Based on the results of the scoring, A-Tech Consulting was selected to provide the District with
environmental testing and identification services prior to the Meadow Green Elementary Roofing,
HVAC, and Fire Alarm project.

Financial Implications

Financial Impact: $9,730
Funding Source: Measure LL General Obligation Fund — Fund 21.0
Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees ratify the Professional Services Agreement with A-Tech
Consulting for Hazardous Materials Testing and Assessment Services at Meadow Green Elementary
School, effective February 23, 2022 through February 22, 2023, (2121-00000-0-6282-0000-8500-
008) Measure LL (21.0 Bond Fund), and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute
the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

IX-B1-1



9 A-Tech Consulting, Inc.

February 16, 2022

Lowell Joint School District
11019 Valley Home Avenue
Whittier, California 90603

Attn: Mr. David Bennett

Re: Meadow Green Elementary School
12025 Grovedale Drive
Whittier, California 90604

Areas/Scope of Work: Roofs, Windows and Pipe Chases of the Classroom Buildings and the
Administration Building will be tested for asbestos and lead. The Roof for the MPR will also be tested
for asbestos and lead. The concrete at the Northwest exterior of the MPR will also be tested. The
portables will have the walls tested only.

Thank you for allowing A-Tech Consulting, Inc. (A-Tech) the opportunity to provide you with a cost
proposal. This proposal is in response to your request that A-Tech conducts the Limited Asbestos &
XRF-Lead Assessment at the above referenced site.

The professional services provided by A-Tech will consist of the following;:

LIMITED ASBESTOS ASSESSMENT

e This assessment will satisfy all the requirements of a pre-renovation assessment, in accordance
with Cal-OSHA Rule Tile 8 CCR 1529 and NESHAP/SCAQMD Rule 1403, as it pertains to
this project only.

« Inspection of the areas within the project scope of work and bulk sampling of suspect asbestos-
containing materials (ACM) by a state certified asbestos consultant or certified site surveillance
technician (CAC or CSST), utilizing AHERA sampling protocols. We will need access to all
locations.

e Analysis of suspect ACM samples by a NVLAP accredited laboratory, utilizing Polarized Light
Microscopy (PLM) with dispersion staining, in accordance with current regulatory
requirements. Sample analysis is based on 24 Hour laboratory analysis.

e Review of any proposed renovation plans, if available

o Report preparation including sample locations, friability evaluations and remedial
recommendations.

LIMITED XRF-LEAD ASSESSMENT

o Inspection of within the project scope of work and X-Ray Florescence (XRF) of all painted
surfaces, ceramic and porcelain components by a CDPH Certified Inspector/Assessor, utilizing
Cal-OSHA’s and HUD sampling protocols. We will need access to all locations.

o Analysis of suspect components, which are inconclusive via XRF analysis. Samples will be
analyzed by an ATHA accredited laboratory, utilizing Flame Atomic Absorption (AAS) and/or
Total Threshold Limit Concentration (TTLC), in accordance with current regulatory
requirements.

o Review of proposed renovation plans, if available.

e Report preparation including sample locations, condition evaluations and
abatement/stabilization recommendations.

1640 N. Batavia Street, Orange, CA 92867
Phone (714) 434-6360 Fax (714) 221-6360
ATCH-22-0132 Page 1 0f2 Web Address: www.atechinc net



QV A-Tech Consulting, Inc.

PRICING

Based on the information gathered, we propose to provide the following professional consulting
services:

LIMITED ASBESTOS & XRF-LEAD ASSESSMENT - 24 Hour Laboratory Analysis

Quantity Line Total

Principal Hygienist $140.00/Hour X 4 $560.00
Environmental Project Manager $105.00/Hour X 4 $420.00
Certified Site Surveillance Technician (CSST) &
CDPH Inspector Assessor or CDPH Sampling $85.00/Hour X 32 $2,720.00
Technician
Asbestos Bulk Samples (PLM) $22.00/Sample X 200 $4,400.00
XRF Sample Analysis $450.00/Day X 2 $900.00
Senior Administrator $65.00/Hour X 2 $130.00
Clerical/Report Writing $60.00/Hour X 10 $600.00
o] $9,730.00

(Not to Exceed)

Notes:
e A-Tech will attempt to patch all roof cores but cannot guarantee the patch. A-Tech
recommends a roofing contractor patch the roof cores after sampling is completed.

SCHEDULE

A-Tech anticipates completing all fieldwork within two (2) business days. Verbal results will be
available within one (1) business day from completion of all fieldwork and deliverance of sample(s) to
laboratory. The comprehensive report will be delivered within five (5) business days from receipt of the
laboratory results.

I trust that this proposal will meet with your approval and lock forward to working with you. Should
you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (714) 434-6360 office.

Sincerely,

A-Tech Consulting, Inc.

1 577
e ,/ :
= {-ng’w/: Vit cmmm

/
./‘
Fi

Joseph A. Williams, CAC, DPH
CAC #14-5269 DPH #19524
joew(@atechinc.net

To proceed with scheduling, kindly reply to PM@atechinc.net and accounting@atechinc.net

1640 N. Batavia Street, Orange, CA 92867
Phone (714) 434-6360 Fax (714) 221-6360
ATCH-22-0132 Page 2 of 2 Web Address: www.atechinc.net



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022
To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of GigaKOM to Provide Wireless Access Points ACTION

and Computer Networking equipment for the District

It has been determined that it is necessary to select a vendor for network hardware to improve
internet access district-wide. GigaKOM has been selected to provide wireless access points
and computer networking equipment using the California Multiple Award Schedule (CMAS)
contract. This hardware will support the use of Student Chromebooks, Staff laptops, and other
wireless devices throughout each school and is 100 percent E-Rate eligible and will be paid
for out of the General Fund.

It is recommended that GigaKOM be approved, to provide wireless access points and computer
networking equipment for the District and that the Superintendent be authorized to execute the
necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-Al-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of Agreement with Orange County Department ACTION/
of Education to Provide Translation Services during the (RATIFICATION)
2021/2022 school year.

Arrangements have been made with Orange County Department of Education to Provide
Translation Services during the 2021/2022 school year. The hourly rate for oral translation is
$150.00 per hour (minimum 3 hours) and written translation is $0.27 per word. The total
cost for all translation services will not exceed $3,000.00.

It is recommended that the Agreement with Orange County Department of Education to

Provide Translation Services during the 2021/2022 school year be approved and that the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-A2-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Purchase Order Listing Report/Check Register ACTION/
2021/2022 #8 (RATIFICATION)

In accordance with the law, Purchase Order Report/Check Register 2021/2022 #8 is
recommended for approval. The report lists all purchase orders issued January 1, 2022,
through January 31, 2022.

AR:sb

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-B1-1



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 03/07/2022 FROM 01/01/2022 TO01/31/2022

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER OBJECT DESCRIPTION
R99F 0080 LOWES 6.13 6.13 0100000098 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99F0081 GREEN S SECURITY CENTERS INC. 74.14 25.76 0100000089 4300 Materials and Supplies
19.32 0100000091 4300 Materials and Supplies
12.88 0100000092 4300 Materials and Supplies
16.18 0100000098 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99F0082  CINTAS 2,069.55 2,069.55 0100000098 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99F0083  THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. 507.65 80.91 0100000092 4300 Materials and Supplies
115.26 0100000093 4300 Materials and Supplies
157.51 0100000094 4300 Materials and Supplies
153.97 0100000095 4300 Materials and Supplies
RIIF0084 NAPA AUTO PARTS 371.90 371.90 0100000108 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99F0085 BEE GONE BEE REMOVAL SERVICE 300.00 100.00 0100000103 5570 Pest Control
200.00 0100000105 5570 Pest Control
R99F0086 F.M. THOMAS AIR CONDITIONING 270.00 270.00 0100000092 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0087 DANIELS TIRE SERVICE INC. 1,533.02 889.63 0100000098 5631 Repairs/Vehicles
643.39 0100000108 5631 Repairs/Vehicles
R99F0088 GLASBY MAINTENANCE SUPPLY 8,741.26 81.53 0108880025 4300 Materials and Supplies
1,782.62 0185100006 4300 Materials and Supplies
3,000.57 0185100007 4300 Materials and Supplies
1,198.87 0185100008 4300 Materials and Supplies
1,652.36 0185100017 4300 Materials and Supplies
1,025.31 0185100022 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99F0089 HUNTINGTON HARDWARE CO. INC. 2,166.45 2,166.45 0100000098 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99F0090 RANCHO JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 17,675.28 17,675.28 0158700001 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99F0091 A-1 FENCE COMPANY 59,451.00 59,451.00 1400000005 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
RY9F0092 BEST LAWNMOWER INC. 2,638.71 1,251.10 0100000108 4300 Materials and Supplies
User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 1 Current Date: 02/17/2022
Report ID: PO010 <Ver. 020703> Current Time: 15:16:33



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 03/07/2022 FROM 01/01/2022 TO01/31/2022

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER OBJECT DESCRIPTION
R99F0092 *** CONTINUED ***
275.80 0100000108 4380 Tools/M&O
1,111.81 0100000108 5633 Repairs/Tools

R99M0120 AMERICAN EXPRESS 384.40 384.40 0105110042 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0121 AMERICAN EXPRESS 198.10 198.10 0100540005 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0122 AMERICAN EXPRESS 330.74 330.74 0156400022 5810 Licenses/Technology
R99M0123 AMERICAN EXPRESS 117.60 27.55 0100810002 4300 Materials and Supplies

77.16 0108880018 4300 Materials and Supplies

12.89 0108880020 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0124 AMERICAN EXPRESS 322.34 32234 0105110043 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0125 AMERICAN EXPRESS 2,182.59 2,182.59 0100000380 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0126 AMERICAN EXPRESS 55.10 55.10 0100510008 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0127 GENERATION ESPORTS 180.00 180.00 0109110014 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0128 AMERICAN EXPRESS 89.20 89.20 0109110011 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0129 AMERICAN EXPRESS 47.33 4733 0156400009 4300 Materials and Supplics
R99MO0130 AMERICAN EXPRESS 38.58 38.58 0100000009 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0131 AMERICAN EXPRESS 919.36 91936 0109110014 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0132 AMERICAN EXPRESS 12.55 12.55 0105110044 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0133 AMERICAN EXPRESS 121.55 121.55 0156400005 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0233  US BANK AS CUST FOR TOWER DBW 9,898.25 9,898.25 01 8048 Pnlts & Intrst from Dlgnt Tax
R99R0234 LASER PLUS IMAGING 1,563.25 1,563.25 0100000098 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0235 SCHOOL FIX 15.16 15.16 0100540008 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0236  POSITIVE ACTION INC. 601.25 601.25 0130100008 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0237 RMH DANCE & PRODUCTIONS 250.00 250.00 0100540008 4300 Materials and Supplies

User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 2 Current Date: 02/17/2022

Report ID: POO10 <Ver. 020703> Current Time: 15:16:33



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 03/07/2022 FROM 01/01/2022 TO001/31/2022

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER OBJECT DESCRIPTION
R99R0238 ACTION TROPHY 163.46 163.46 0100540008 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0239 LINKEDIN CORPORATION 2,100.00 2,100.00 0173110003 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99R0240 OCDE 661.50 661.50 0130100042 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99R0241 THE ELECTRIC COMPANY THEATRE 1,600.00 1,600.00 0105110043 5610 Rentals & Leases
R99R0242 LEARNING A-Z 678.70 678.70 0100510008 5810 Licenses/Technology
R99R0243 FULLERTON JOINT UNION HS DIST 350.00 350.00 0105110043 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0244 THINKING MAPS 7,200.00 7,200.00 0140350030 5800 Prof/ConsultingServ&Oper Exp
R99R0245 FULLERTON JOINT UNION HS DIST 280.00 280.00 0105110039 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0246 CPI 716.35 716.35 0156400013 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0247 OCDE 581.85 581.85 0142030009 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0248  AERIES SOFTWARE 199.00 199.00 0173110003 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99R0249 TARGET SPECIALTY PRODUCTS 943.10 943.10 0100000108 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0250 DASH MEDICAL GLOVES 652.46 652.46 0156400005 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0251  J.W.PEPPER & SON INC. 408.03 408.03 0105110037 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0252 NSDAR JOHN GREENLEAF 75.00 25.00 0100000065 5200 Travel and Conferences

50.00 0100000068 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99R0253 VEX ROBOTICS 89.45 89.45 0105110044 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0254  RIVERSIDE INSIGHTS 367.47 367.47 0165000012 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0255 CALIFORNIA SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOC 4,155.00 4,155.00 o_\oooooomm 5810 Licenses/Technology
R99R0256 READ NATURALLY 192.83 192.83 0156400009 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0257 DATA IMPRESSIONS 1,882.30 1,882.30 0105110044 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0258 IMPERIAL BAND INSTRUMENTS 244.68 244.68 0105110041 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0259  WPS 342.38 34238 0165000035 4300 Materials and Supplies

User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 3 Current Date: 02/17/2022

Report ID: PO010 <Ver. 020703> Current Time: 15:16:33



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 03/07/2022 FROM 01/01/2022 TO01/31/2022

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER OBJECT DESCRIPTION
RY99R0260  WPS 349.28 34928 0165000035 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0261  ADDICTION TREATMENT TECHNOLOGI 8,020.00 8,020.00 0132130020 5800 Prof/ConsultingServ&Oper Exp
R99R0262 IPRINT TECHNOLOGIES 132.30 132.30 0156400028 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0263  RIVERSIDE INSIGHTS 3,225.92 3,225.92 0156400013 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0264 THINKING MAPS 2,200.00 2,200.00 0140350030 5800 Prof/ConsultingServ&Oper Exp
RY99R0265 THINKING MAPS 2,200.00 2,200.00 0140350030 5800 Prof/ConsultingServ&Oper Exp
R99IR0266 THINKING MAPS 2,200.00 2,200.00 0140350030 5800 Prof/ConsultingServ&Oper Exp
R99R0267 SCHOOL SERVICES OF CALIFORNIA 4,080.00 4,080.00 0100000071 5300 Dues and Memberships
R99R0268 IPRINT TECHNOLOGIES 76.07 76.07 0156400017 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0269 LABEL OUTLET BY METALCRAFT 374.85 374.85 0108880020 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0270 IMPERIAL BAND INSTRUMENTS 445.99 44599 0105110041 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0271 HOGENTOGLER & CO., INC 474.08 474.08 0156400033 4300 Materials and Supplies
RI9R0272 ESGILLC 235.00 235.00 0100540008 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0273 NO EXCUSES UNIVERSITY 1,574.58 1,574.58 0130100007 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0275 RMH DANCE & PRODUCTIONS 980.00 980.00 0130100007 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0276 SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES 294.14 294.14 0130100007 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0277 STUDIES WEEKLY 29,084.08 3,632.86 0132120037 4300 Materials and Supplies

2,504.40 0132121545 4300 Materials and Supplies

1,695.45 0132121546 4300 Materials and Supplies

2,122.09 0132121547 4300 Materials and Supplies

2,742.65 0132121548 4300 Materials and Supplies

843.92 0132121549 4300 Materials and Supplies
2,221.82 0132121550 4300 Materials and Supplies
2,459.41 0132121551 4300 Materials and Supplies
User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 4 Current Date: 02/17/2022

Report ID: PO010 <Ver. 020703> Current Time: 15:16:33



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Consolidated Check Register Listing Report ACTION/
2021/2022 #7 (RATIFICATION)

The Consolidated Check Register Listing Report 2021/2022 #7 is recommended for
approval. The consolidated check register lists all warrants issued January 1, 2022, through
January 31, 2022.

AR:sb

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-B2-1



[£:L0:S1

PwL], JUIIIND)

1095130y NP9YD) PatEpYosuo) 1600ENd  :)oday

TT0Z/L1/TO 398 JUALIND aded ZopuewdH dudjre( - ZHIANVNIGHA 4950}
$$°690°C SI M 20t/€1/10 HO T6ELLOTST6 SV.LNID 91000664 10800000 66
007000y SI M 20T/€1/100 HO 19¢1 DT71addSadAd  0I€C066A 00800000 66
00°556°1 SI MW 7207/€1/10 HO ¥96SLY d1'1d4 Hn4d 1000664 66L00000 66
19°06¥ SI M T20T/€1/10 HO 0Tet98¢ JTTAANVE £200066A 86L00000 66
$S°659°1 SI M ¢20T/€1/10 HO SY69rS80HV "ONI 3'1ddV S100066A L6L0O0000 66
0T06 SI M 7207/€1/10 HO vdsO WIVIN VANVINY 60000664 96L00000 66
991 SI M TT0T/€1/10 HO (4441 AHdOYL NOILOV  LO00066A S6L00000 66
0r'181°T1 SI M 770T/01/10 HO d9WHDId-WO00Z SSHYdXd NVORIINY £100066A ¥6L00000 66
£6°¢ET SI M TT0T/L0/10 HO 01868 TVSOdSId advM 010006611 £6L00000 66
88'8LLT SI M 7T0T/L0/10 HO 98TSTTS686 VI-SSATTIIM NOZIUHA 60000660 76L00000 66
TU'8Tsl SI M 720T/L0/10 HO 120ZZ11211 ATIdON-L  8000066/1 16L00000 66
09°055°€T SI M T207/L0/10 HO 12TTTIETL NOSIQE VINIOAI'TVD NRAHLNAOS  $00006601 06L00000 66
00°00+°C SI M TT0T/L0/10 HO GLSST O¥OIN % OYDIN 1€10066A 68L00000 66
80°LyT SI M TTO0T/LO/10 HO 0£TOETANI SAVAL LNOHLIM ONINIVHT  8010066A 88L00000 66
STE9S°1 SI M TT0T/LO/10 HO 0186¢1 3wiSewy snjd 1958 8ITLO66A L8LO000O 66
TSEE0°T SI M 220T/L0/10 HO 2T601001C1 YALLNOYA 700006601 98L00000 66
96'810°€ SI M T207/L0/10 HO 12¢021¢0T1 WNINMVJIAd dHLVM VIEVH V140 ALID 100006611 $8L00000 66
€670 11 SI M 7207/90/10 HO T9LETITS0081 SIWALSAS ¥ALVM NVEINANS 900006601 ¥8L00000 66
81°€0S°T SI M 7207/90/10 HO 1gezeieell 02 SVD VINMOAI'TVD NIHH.L10S $00006601 £8L00000 66
¢T101 SI M TT07/50/10 HO 1T/L1/TI-E1/T1 ZATVZNOD VNVIA  V9TEO66A T8L00000 66
80°ZET‘E SI  MIN TT0T/¥0/10 HO 8S16L8 TYSOdSIA FIVM  0100066{1 18L00000 66
C0'LSS S MIN TT0T/E0/10 HO  EWITY TTOT NVI OTIILLVd 30N¥d 70000664 08L00000 66
8LOLS SI M 7T0T/€0/10 HO  EWIHY TTOT NV{ JAMAVIA AHTTHHS 71000664 6LL00000 66
88'v19 SI MWW 770T/€0/10 HO  dNIHY TTOT NVI HdTOANVY ATVNOd 11000669 8LL0O0000 66
96°06T°1 SI M 7T07/€0/10 HO NIHY TTOT NVI SIDAHDYIAVIN ANNAd 01000664 LLLO00QO 66
96°06C°1 SI MIN 7707/€0/10 HO dWIFY TT0T NVI ALIHM ADNVN 60000664 9LL0O0000 66
8LOLS S MIN TT0T/€0/10 HO  NIHY TTOT NVI HLOY dI'IX( 87720664 SLLOOO0O 66
¥6'CEC SI M 7T07/€0/10 HO  dWIHY TT0T NVI SYdO0d HTAVD L000066d ¥LLO0000 66
8LOLS SI MIN 7207/€0/10 HO  9INIHY T20T NVI ATaEaIvVM ATINA 9000066d €LL00000 66
TISITl SI M 720T7/€0/10 HO  dWIHY TT0T NV{ OMIHSANVI HLAGVZITH $000066d TLLO000O 66
8LOLS SI  MIN 7707/€0/10 HO GNIHY TTOT NVf THVANVV NMVA $000066d 1LLO0000 66
8LOLS SI MIN 7707/€0/10 HO GNIHY TTOT NVI NITHDTVHOS VIAOVID £000066d 0LL00000 66
95°06C°1 SI M 7207/€0/10 HO  ENIHY TT0T NVI ANV NATOUVD L¥Te066d 69L00000 66
CTO'LSS SI MIN ZTOT/E0/10 HO NI €TOT NVI NVINSTIV LNIHd 10000663 89.L00000 66
jyunouwry I9YD sme)s un._hr_k e Pdue) ANed N3y sqn§ DUIIIY uwreN wvhwh dal oohﬂn— HRYD

TLOT/TE/T 0 TTOT/L/T WOy
1315139y 93D pajepIosuo)
ds LNIOf TTIMOT



1€:L0:S1

oun ), JURAIND

15180 094D PABPIOSUOD) :$00E :jodoy

E ow«n— Novcqum QEOTNQ b Nm—QZ< Z.MNID P EL ]

05°L6S sI M 7207/81/10 HO TT0es "ONI NOLLOV JAILISOd  LETEO66A S€£800000 66
90°6L SI MKW 7707/81/10 HO LTV AAD0  PE10066A $€300000 66
00°SL S1 M Z707/81/10 HO  S@EIVMVIVA Jeouoa1n) uyof YVASN  0TEEO66A ££800000 66
96918 SI M 7207/81/10 HO L000-aS(1 NOLLVIOQIOD JIWN  TET0066A 7£800000 66
76°6€S SI M 7207/81/10 HO 8660€591 NI NOSYVHd SON  6C10066A 1€800000 66
06'1LE SI MW 7207/81/10 HO 6£0€8¢ SIMVd OLNV VAVN  91€€066A 0£800000 66
yILSE SI MW 7e0T/81/10 HO 1202 “04d OYANVIATY ‘ZddOT  6LTLO66A 67800000 66
Wosy'y SI AN T207/81/10 HO ¥LLSR00TL “INI ‘SNOLLVIINNAWOD NIANDOT  TI10066A 87800000 66
1L°0b SI MW 2z07/81/10  HO OVATIA-120T08d vTINddVZ NHOf  L8000663 LT300000 66
0r 189 SI  MIN 7207/81/10 HO SHAVO SANOOD WIf  ¥8000664 97800000 66
£0'30¥ SI M 7T07/81/10 HO 051668¢9¢ INI NOS 22 dddddd M T 6000664 67800000 66
00°009°¢ SI M 7¢07/81/10 HO £19€€701L LMNODYVH NITAAIN NOLHDNOH ~ ¥800066A $7800000 66
P1°LSS s M 7207/81/10 HO 1202 “Ddd STYVIIN HIadd 01000661 £7800000 66
98911 SI MWW 7eoz/81/10 HO INALS AONOd VNVIIAY  £0000664 77800000 66
09°T0°L St M 7207/€1/10 HO 17020dd vZZI1d VINJOAI'TVD NWAHLNOS  £100066N 12800000 66
67°969°L SI M 7T07/€1/10 HO 12020dd ANVINOD ATddNS YadVdd® d  6000066N 07800000 66
TIVLS'L SI M zeog/gl/10 HO 120204d AAIVA aOOM1ATd  ¥000066N 61800000 66
00081 ST AN 7eoz/cl/10 HO 120708d dI1annd 1000661 81800000 66
85°890°S SI M 7eoT/1/10 HO 1260T1181C1 IV JANIVM HNIL  L000066(1 L1800000 66
$9°LOS SI M TT0T/€1/10 HO eIvi6 ‘00 SWVITIIM-NIMIIHS HL 09000664 91800000 66
LL'SY SI M 7Z07/€1/10 HO  S$300d advod ATYNOADOW TAYHHS  6810066d S1800000 66
€LELT SI M Teoz/cr/10 HO vdasd AGIAAO VANOHY  TL10066H 1800000 66
€19 SI AN zzoz/el/10. HO 088106 SAMOT  L¥00066d £1800000 66
Ly 108y sI MW 7207/€1/10 HO 86S18001L “INI ‘SNOLLVIINNWIWOD NIANDOT  T110066A 71800000 66
70651 SI MIN 7eoz/€1/10 HO vdaso VIIVOI OdIvI  $6000668 11800000 66
y8 6Vl SI M zeoz/el/10 HO vdsO SANOOD IWIf  ¥800066d 01800000 66
9T 1¥L'8 SI MW 7e0T/e1/10 HO £I112¢ AT1ddNS IONVNALNIVIN AGSVID  £€00066d 60800000 66
00°0€9 s1 AN TzoT/el/10 HO £900Td0L LSIA SH NOINN INIOf NOLIHTINd  9LO0066A 80800000 66
00°0LT SI AN 7207/€1/10 HO 8SIEY ONINOLLIANOD ¥IV SYAOHL Wd  1£00066d L0800000 66
17zl s1 AN zeo/el/10 HO TTOT/LIN~E/1 ZATVZNOD VNVIA  ¥9TE066A 90800000 66
68°08L°1 SI MIN 720z/€1/10 HO LL6ELLY00TH VINYO4ITVD 40 TVINAQ V1 1dd  9S00066A $0800000 66
0E'LYL9 SI M TT0T/E1/10 HO NI-816L1 SNOISSTIJNI VILVA  £500066A 0800000 66
£0°€€S°1 S1 M 7Toz/El/10 HO ¥87€010¥1 "DNI 3DIAYAS TILL STAINVA €2000664 £0800000 66
cTI9t'E S MIN Teog/£1/10 HO 1€17E SHSNIIYALNT TVILSVOD  FOTEO66A 70800000 66
Junowry Yo34D smug J0AL A1Ed PAUE) A8d YD SqnS DUIINY owreN 29Ag (] 99Ked WD

TZ0T/TE/T 03 TTOT/T/T Woly

19)S139Y NI3YD PIepIjosuo)

s INIOf TTIMOT



1061

auwL], JudIIND

1035130 Y9047 PAILPHOSUOD 1600EMNE  H40daY

TT0T/L1/T0 P1eqIUdLING a3eq zopugwoH oudieq - ZAANVNIIHA 4938}
STye ST MIN 2202/9¢/10 HO DHA-gOVATIN NVAO0d NVILSIID P¥Te0664 69800000 66
8LOLS SI MIN 7207/97/10 HO q991-TVOIddN NITHOTVHOS VIANVIO £000066d 89800000 66
€EVT6°8 SI MIN 2207/97/10 HO STLYYO1 ZINLINdVLIVD SE€00066A L9800000 66
95°06C°1 SI  MIN 7202/97/10 HO da4-TVOIdIN ANV NATOUVD  LPZE066d 99800000 66
00'SSTY SI  MIN 720T/92/10 HO SdEITL-95£8S-ANI DOSSY SA¥VOd TOOHDS VINIOAITVD  ££00066A §9800000 66
TO°LSS SI M 7702/97/10 HO 41" TVOIAdN NVINSTIV LNTdd 10000664 ¥9800000 66
00°020°8 SI MIN 7202/97/10 HO ¥Tr01-120T ID0OTONHDAL INFWLVHYL NOLLOIAAVY 12€€066A £9800000 66
65'L89°TET SI MIN 7202/ST/10 HO Z# ddV AVd SANLLSNANI AFFdD JHATIS SLTL066A 79800000 66
91'SI16 SI MIN 7707/S7/10 HO 1T6TTI99TSLL A1GVO JANIVM HNLL  L000066(1 19800000 66
00808 SI  MIN T207/ST/10 HO (44301114114 ATdOW-L 800006611 09800000 66
£8°€€6°6 SI M TT07/ST/10 HO CCTIIOVITI NOSIAd VINYO4I'TVD NAHLNO0S 700006601 65800000 66
LTLS SI MIN T207/ST/10 HO 77989060V ANVINOD NOZIMFAA VIO £00006611 85800000 66
€6'C01°1 SI MIN 7207/S7/10  HO TT60T00110 YAILNO¥A 200006601 LS800000 66
05°L8 SI MW T720T/¥e/10 HO 019¢ ONI ‘ONOTAA % YAVJ ADOONVH  T1006664 95800000 66
Tl SI MIN °e0T/vT/10 HO 1965651 "DNI NOSYVAd SON  6C10066A $6800000 66
00°001°C SI MIN 720T/vT/10 HO 9818¢rI1101 NOILVIOJLI0D NIAHINI'T 1T10066A 5800000 66
98°¢€TS SI MW 720T/vT/10 HO $TLSSAD SHOIAYHES ¥AAVdT  ¥010066A £5800000 66
89v¥T SI MIN 7207/v2/10 HO PELS9 SINANNYLSNI ANVE TVIIHdNL  8800066A 75800000 66
¥v'991°C SI M 720T/¥T/10 HO 10-0-9¢191¢1 DONI “00 3dIVMAIVH NOLONLLNOH L£000664 15800000 66
SivL SI MIN T720T/¥T/10 HO 788CL *ONI SYALNAD ALTENDHS S NIHID £000664 05800000 66
LO'69S°T SI AN Te0T/vT/10 HO LEV6 dVIAHL DRMLVIAdd ¥9HOVTIVO 20006665 6¥800000 66
€L6L SI MIN T20TYT/100 HO T202/T1/1-01/1 ZATVZNOD VNVIA  ¥9TE066A 87800000 66
oL Tve'l SI MIN 7207/¥2/10 HO TATZZ1010 I4d00D Y04 STOOHOS A0 HONVITIV ~ 0100066A L¥800000 66
80'I¥8°LE SI  MIN 7207/17/10 HO DSATTOTI0 YAdO0D 404 STOOHDS 40 HDNVITIV ~ 0100066A 9%800000 66
91 ¥9¥°TI SI  MIA 220T/07/10 HO 120204d SA00A VIS ATO0D  LO00066N $¥800000 66
6€£€STT SI M 7207/07/10 HO 120204d so[e§ feuaunuo)  ST00066N 800000 66
00°00%°1 SI MIN 7202/0T/10 HO 120 Odd-520 SH471vaddad L0000661 £¥800000 66
00'1£0°C8 ST MIN 7207/07/10 HO -OM9509 44000 04 STOOHDS 40 IONVITIV ~ 0100066A 7¥800000 66
00'08C'v1 SI  MIN 7207/61/10 HO 144 ANVJNOD d444NVH £1006664 14800000 66
08'81L°8¥ SI MIN 7207/61/10 HO Lyov SLOALIHOYY NONNVE HJOVLVHD 11006669 0¥800000 66
£0°'L80°C1 SI M T707/61/10 HO 1214 SLOALIHOYY NONNVE HAOV.LVHD 11006664 6£800000 66
91" 6%9°0€T SI MIN 7207/61/10 HO 8#ddV AVd NOILLDNMYLSNOD TIVH-NOSYMOId 01006664 8€800000 66
96°6£S ST MIN 7207/31/10 HO LSTEE0T SYANIV.INOD 3DOVIOLS AVAMVINVH 62220664 L€800000 66
6Lt SI  MIN ZT0T/81/10 HO NELVINAIVILIT OLONWVIVA INNA 81200661 9€800000 66
unowy YYD snye)s unhr—. e PIUL) ANe JPRYD sqng UAIY dUWeN mahﬂnm di oohﬂﬂ— HYD

TTOT/TE/T 03 TTOTL/1/1 woyy

1315180y I9YD PasepI[osuo)

ds INIOL TTHMOT



110061

WL, JUILIND

1018139 309D Pareplosu0) 1600ENE  deday

TTOT/L1/T0 e 3udlanyy adeg zopuewdY ousjIeq - ZAANVNIAHA :19s[}
96'CS9 S M 7e0T/Le/10 HO 1144449 SOILOH0Y XHA £0T0066A £0600000 66
000099 SI M e07/LT/10 HO SS8T900ANI SdVIN DNIDINIHL S610066A 70600000 66
80°¢r6 SI M 0T/Le/10 HO 6L6€7900SdANI SLONAO0Ydd ALTVIOHdS LADYVL  9810066A 10600000 66
000801 ST MIN T207/LT/10 HO 081¢ DdV INISSOY OVL  LSTE066A 00600000 66
00°00L°T SI. M 7e07/LT/10 HO 6688 ATINOW LIAIdS  ¥8TL066A 66800000 66
0°05¢ SI MIN e0T/LT/10 HO 2e50¢ O¥dH 1IdIdS 99T£066A 86800000 66
8EVI1 S MIN 2T0T/L7/10 HO ADOHDHITAVHD ATVYNOUDN TAYHHS 68100664 L6800000 66
00°089 SI MW e0T/Le/10 HO NI-¥62C¢£10 VINJOAI'TVD 40 SHOIAYLS TOOHOS ZLT0066A 96800000 66
PLLT SI M e0T/Le/10 HO dINTT] HOUNd JHOHIdNVT LIdd0d ¥L10066d $6800000 66
00°0s¢ S M 7207/L7/10 HO 120121 SNOI1LONAO0Yd 2 HONVA HNY 19T10066A 6800000 66
7e'e09 SI M 7207/LT/10 HO ¥69C0TANI SLHOISNI ddISYAATY  6ST0066A £6800000 66
0L°L91 SI MIN c0T/Le/10 HO §8€1797E00VZ0 ATLSAN A9 HSTUATIAAVHY  #S10066A 76800000 66
8T'SLYLT SI M 7e0T/Le/10 HO GSSE0L SAI'TddNS TVIIOLINVI OHONVY  81££066A 16800000 66
00'90C SI AN T720T/LT7/10 HO dXH ANOD VdSD HOVININDIE AAVIN 6£100664 06800000 66
66'CP1 SI M T0T/LT/10 HO  NAQTOD vdSD NOILTd4 dI'IS3’1 £C100664 68800000 66
LE'TTT SI  MIN ¢C0T/LT/1I0 HO dXH ANOD VESD TIHddNVO NATLIVA £6000664 88800000 66
€oOve SI M TT07/LT/10 HOITY HOYINd-TTTI10 TAHOVYI ‘NOSNHOSL  TTEE066A L8800000 66
05°TET’1 SI  MIN TT0T/LT/10 HO TT0L0T10TTHMOT NOSYd.LLVd NHATIOD ¥000066I1 98800000 66
SL'TLE SI M 7T0T/LZ/10 HO T1Z0CAON-LddS NOSYIHD.LNH HIDNV 10000661 $8800000 66
00°520°8C ST MIN C¢C0T/LT/T0 HO 18L9 d ANITHAIS 1371100 OIANV YOHDNV  P0EL066A 8800000 66
c0°LSS SI M 7e07/97/10  HO ga41-TVOIdIN OTIILLVd HO14d4 20000664 £8800000 66
000091 SI  MIN 2C02/97/10 HO TVINHA HILVAHL ANVdWNOD DTJLDHTH HHL £1EE066A 78800000 66
79689 SI M 27207/9¢/10 HO 120€7120C1 SINHISAS YHLVM NVEINGNS 900006611 18800000 66
1S°€P0°E SI  MIN 7T07/9¢/10 HO TCI1100121 00 SVD VINYOAI'TVO NddHLNOS $00006601 08800000 66
8LOLS ST AN 2C07/97/10  HO gHA-TVOIdHIN AETAVIN AHTTdHS 71000664 6L800000 66
88119 SI MIN 07/97/10 HO A4 TVOIAdN HJdTOANVY A TVNOY 110006641 8.800000 66
96°06C°1 SI M 7C0T/97/10  HO dd4-TVOIAdN MOAHOYAAVIN ANNHAd 01000664 LL800000 66
95°06C°1 SI M C0T/97/10 HO g44-TVOIddIN HLIHM ADNVN 60000664 9L800000 66
8LOLS SI M 207/97/10  HO gHA-TVOIAdN HLOY dI'T0f 8¥7£066d SL800000 66
$6°CET S M 7207/97/10 HO dHA-TVOIAAN SYADHOY H'IAVD L000066d ¥.800000 66
8L'0LS SI MIN 7207/97/10 HO ga4-TVOIAdN ATdIadIvm ATINA 90000664 £L800000 66
TSIl SI M 7207/9¢/10 HO A1~ TVOIAAN OYIHSANV HLHIVZI'TH §000066¥ ¢L800000 66
£e6L ST MW 207/97/10 HO 7207/0¢/1-81/1 ZATVZNOD VNVIA  ¥9T066A 1.800000 66
8LOLS SI  MIN 7202/9¢/10 _HO A4 TVOIAHN THVANVVY NAVA ~ $000066d 0.L800000 66
junowry ya3y> smpyg 2dA], 9jed PIUED Ayed IR sqns IUIY EYNTANEET LR Al d4eg ¥YD

TT0T/1€/1 03 TTOT/T/1 woy

1918139y HI9YyD pIjepIosuo)

ds INIOf TTIMOT



1€:L0:G1 :PWlL judiIn) S 19951830 NP9YD) PAIEPI[OSUO)) :GO0ENT  :1r0ddy
TTOT/L1/T0 PR IVILIND adeq ZapuBwWIoY SudME( - ZHANVNYTHA 43501

¥6'660°0£0°T ‘el0 ], puely

#6'660°0€0°T fero], ueq 66

¥6'660°0£0°1 :panss]|
6L°0LT SI  MIN T7T07/8T/10 HO 10S66-1D @IOALIVH dHL  8810066A 60600000 66
00°000°¢ SI M 7207/LT/10 HO 119¢ DNI DNOTAA % JAVd JD0ONVH 21006664 80600000 66
00°868‘% SI MIN TT0T/LT/10 HO TS6LL dNOYD VINI  0910066A L0600000 66
00°596°C SI MIN 2e07/LT/10 HO 7€18809 TONHOAL ONIIOOYIAHLVAMN/OOWAIL 79000664 90600000 66
00 1St°6S SI  MIA 7T07/LT/10 HO 6+70C ANVJINOD HONHA 1-V 10000664 S0600000 66
86'16 SI  MIN TT0T/LT/10 HO NI-AS60v11 NMOIMHMOA  ¥I1T0066A 0600000 66
junowry Y3y>H smygyg dAL e [dUED e HIAYD SqNS 22U13JY aweN A g ai 24eg FRELe)

TLOU/TE/T 03 TTOT/T/1 woly
1318139y Y9y paIjepI[osuo)
ds LNIOT TTIMO'1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject: Approval of Bus Transportation Services for the ACTION

2021-2022 School Year

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees award a contract for transportation to Hot
Dogger Tours, Inc. dba Gold Coast Tours for the 2021-2022 school year, and to delegate to
the Superintendent or designee the authority to execute the necessary documents.

AR/sb

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-B3-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of Agreement with Magic Jump Rentals, ACTION

Inc. to Provide Inflatables for Rancho Starbuck
Intermediate School Boot Camp for the 2021-2022
School Year

The District has a need to contract with Magic Jump Rentals, Inc. in order to provide
inflatables to be used at the Boot Camp fundraiser held annually at Rancho Starbuck
Intermediate School.

It is recommended that the agreement with Magic Jump Rentals, Inc. for inflatables for
Rancho Starbuck Intermediate School Boot Camp 2021-2022 School Year, not to exceed $
4,500 be approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the
necessary documents.

AR/sb

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-B4-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
April 5, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject: Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2021-22 ACTION/
#8 Which Includes Hiring, Resignations, Contract (RATIFICATION)

Adjustments, and Retirements for Certificated, Classified,
and Confidential Employees

The attached Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2021-22 #8, which includes
hiring, resignations, contract adjustments, and retirements for certificated, classified, and
confidential employees has been completed without irregularities and in compliance with the
law, District policy, administrative regulations, rules, procedures, and direction of the supervisor
and all information has been fully disclosed.

It is recommended that Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2021-22 #8, which
includes hiring, resignations, contract adjustments, and retirements for certificated, classified,
and confidential employees, be ratified.

Attachment

JC/me

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-Cl-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS/PERSONNEL REPORT 2021-22 #8

March 7, 2021
I.  CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES
A. CHANGE OF STATUS
NAME EFFECTIVE END DATE SITE COMMENT
DATE

Stevens, Amanda 03/14/2022 06/03/2022 MG FMLA (AB375)
Maternity Leave (20%)

Long, Katelyn 03/07/2022 04/01/2022 OL FMLA (AB375)
Baby Bonding Leave

Wilkens, Melissa 02/15/2022 03/10/2022 MG FMLA (AB375)
Baby Bonding Leave

Kosareff, Bree 03/07/2022 03/18/2022 JO FMLA (AB375)
Baby Bonding Leave

Galli, Jessica 02/28/2022 03/18/2022 RS FMLA (AB375)
Baby Bonding Leave

Morrison, Deanna March 1, 2022 04/22/202 MG FMLA (AB375)
Medical Leave

Higgins, Kelly 03/10/2022 03/25/2022 MA FMLA (AB375)
Medical Leave

Kuitems, Naomi 04/25/2022 04/29/2022 MG FMLA (AB375)
Family Medical Leave

Kuitems, Naomi 05/09/2022 05/13/2022 MG FMLA (AB375)
Family Medical Leave

Casey, Kaleen 03/28/2022 05/06/2022 MA FMLA (AB375)
Maternity Leave

B. SUBSTITUTE CHANGE OF PAY
NAME EFFECTIVE END SITE COMMENT
DATE DATE

Fiscus, Riley 04/25/2022 04/29/2022 DO To be paid a rate of $200.00 for 1
/2 combo Meadow Green

Fiscus, Riley 05/09/2022 05/13/2022 DO To be paid a rate of $200.00 for 1
/2 combo Meadow Green

Charman, Lauren 03/10/2022 03/25/2022 DO To be paid a rate of $200.00 for
Macy Special Education Class

Charman, Lauren 03/28/2022 05/06/2022 DO To be paid a rate of $200.00 for
Macy 2NP grade

Peterson, Kaycee 03/14/2022 06/03/2022 DO To be paid special long term rate
of $250.00 for Olita Elementary
Intervention Teacher

Petersen, Kaycee 03/14/2022 06/03/2022 DO To be paid special long term rate

of $250.00 for Olita Elementary
4™ grade share teacher (20%/

X-Cl1-2



Fiscus, Riley

Vega, Sandy

Carr, Candice

Jacobsen, Brennan

Brooks, Edward

03/07/2022

03/07/2022

02/15/2022

March 1, 2022

02/28/2022

03/18/2022

04/01/2022

03/10/2022

04/2/2022

03/18/2022

DO

DO

MG

DO

DO

Fridays)

To be paid special long term rate
of $250.00 for Jordan fourth
grade

To be paid special long term rate
of $250.00 for Olita Elementary
for RSP

To be paid a rate of $200.00 for
Meadow Green sixth grade

To be paid a rate of $200.00
Meadow Green Elementary for
Sixth Grade

To be paid a rate of $200.00
Science Rancho Starbuck

* EMPLOYMENT OF SUBSTITUTES EFFECTIVE 08/10/2020 FOR THE 2020/2021

SCHOOL YEAR $131.00 PER DAY RATE AND $170.00 LONG TERM AND $65.50 PER

HALF DAY RATE AND $35.00 PER HOUR*

*It is further recommended that the individuals listed above be approved to instruct in the Intervention
Programs. The rate of pay is $35.00/hour and will be paid from Title I, or LCFF Supplemental Grant Funds.
*It is further recommended that the individuals listed above be approved as home school teachers, if needed,
for the 2020/21 school year at a rate of $35.00/hour, not to exceed five hours per week, per student. Mileage
will be paid at the IRS Standard Mileage Rate for the 2020/21 school year.

Brynn Prosser
Ian Bouldin
Eddie Mijares

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES March 7, 2022

A. HOURLY — GENERAL FUND
NAME/ EFFECTIVE END

EMPLOYEE ID# DATE DATE
Alcantara, Marissa 2/14/2022

Cacioppo, Sherrie 2/1/2022 03/04/2022
Cortez, Ernest 2/28/2022

Cortez, Ernest 2/28/2022

Fiscus, Regina 2/22/2022 3/2/2022
Gonzales, Vivian 02/11/2022

Gonzales, Vivian 02/12/2022

Gonzalez, Maria 02/22/2022

Gonzalez, Monica 02/16/2022

Gonzalez, Monica 02/16/2022

Irizarry, Erin 02/10/2022

Irizarry, Erin 02/10/2022

RANGE/
STEP

R1/81

R7/S6
R18/54

$37.50/month

R23/88
R16/S1

R14/S1
R14/83
R14/S1
R14/81
R14/S1
R14/81

X-C1-3

SITE
MG

RS
RS
RS
EP
MG

DO
OL
DO
DO
DO
DO

COMMENTS

Noon Duty Aide- FMLA/Medical
Leave

Cafeteria Worker/FMLA Unpaid leave
New Hire-Night Custodian

Custodian stipend for night time
Office Manager-LOA FMLA
Instructional Assistant/Termination of
Regular employee hours

Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Bi-lingual Aide/FMLA

Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Noon Duty Aid/Substitute
Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Noon Duty Aid/Substitute



Kim, Sharon 03/01/2022 R20/S8
Lozano,Melissa 02/11/2022 R30/S1
Miller, Shelli 3/08/2022 R1/S1
Munoz, Lauren 03/04/2022 R14/S5
Navarro, Amber 08/09/2021 09/03/2021 R14/S2
Gl 02/10/2022  03/04/2022 RISE
Qureshi, Lovely 03/04/2022 R15/S1
Rickenbacker, Kim /030020 01/13/2022 R28/52
Rickenbacker, Kim 2/22/2022 3/2/2022 R23/S2
Rodia, Sue 02/24/2022 03/18/2022 R14/S8
Sanchez, Marcela 03/23/2022 R17/S8
Soto, Brenda 3/18/2022 Intern
iruyilio, Mary 02/25/2022 R14/S1
B. HOURLY — CAFETERIA FUND
EFFECTIVE END RANGE/
NAME/

EMP—_L OYEE ID# DATE DATE STEP
Gonzalez, Maria 02/16/2022 R07/S4
Romero, Adriana 2/2/2022 RO7/S4
C. CLASSIFIED JOB DESCRIPTIONS

Addition:

Receptionist/Office Assistant
Secretary Special Education and Health Services

X-Cl4

DO  Step Increase
DO  SLPA Part time
RS  Noon Duty Aide/Temporary increase
in hours
RS  Instructional Assistant - Resignation
DO  School Counselor/Intern Resignation
RS  Instructional Assistant -LOA/Medical
Leave
EP  Health Technician-Resignation
EP  Substituting for Office Manager-
Temporary Upgrade
EP  Substituting for Office Manager-
Temporary Upgrade
OL  Instructional Assistant -LOA/Medical
Leave
DO  Step Increase
DO  School Counselor/Intern Resignation
Health Technician Substitute-
DO e
Resignation
SITE COMMENTS
DO Cafeteria Worker/Substitute
DO Cafeteria Worker/Substitute



Lowell Joint

School District
A Tradition 0f‘_E.;c.e.ﬂanu Since 1906 LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

“Dome of Schotans and Champions”

RECEPTIONIST/OFFICE ASSISTANT

Classified Salary Schedule
Range 17

JOB SUMMARY:

Under immediate supervision, operate the District’s centralized telephone system; perform a variety of clerical
duties as assigned; and perform other related clerical duties as assigned.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:

The duties listed below are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be performed. The omission of
specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the
classification.

e Serve as receptionist and direct visitors to appropriate administrative offices; perform a variety ofclerical
duties in as assigned.

o Operate the District’s centralized telephone system; answer telephone calls and route calls to various
offices.

e  Check automated substitute calling system for employees who are absent and assure propercoverage;
generate reports to determine substitute availability and call substitutes for coverage.

e  Answer routine questions concerning locations of schools, attendance boundaries and related information;
provide specific information concerning school and District schedules.

e Process District outgoing mail; maintain daily postage meter; receive, date stamp, and route incoming mail.

e Distribute student’s cumulative files and records requests to newly enrolled schools.

o Report necessary District Office repairs to maintenance and operations.

e Coordinate transportation for all field trips as needed.

o Distribute and receive inter/intra-District transfer requests and answer related questions.

¢ Distribute payroll checks.

o Provide sign-in sheet and building keys to substitute custodians.

o Instructs substitute and relief personnel on operation of telephone system and postage meter.

e Performs other related duties as assigned.

QUALIFICATION GUIDELINES:

Knowledge of:
e Operation of a centralized telephone system.
e Modern office practices, procedures and equipment.
o Telephone techniques and etiquette.
o District geographical area.
e Correct English usage, grammar spelling, punctuation and vocabulary.

Ability to:

Operate a centralized telephone system with speed and accuracy.

Greet visitors courteously, determine their needs and direct or escort visitors to the appropriatedepartment.
Operate a computer with efficiency to word process and for record-keeping.

Understand and follow oral and written instructions.

Communicate effectively, both orally and in writing, displaying tact, patience and judgment.

Type at a rate of 40 wpm.

Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others.

e Apply and explain policies, procedures, rules and regulations both in person and on thetelephone.



e  Complete work with many interruptions.

Education/Training/Experience:
Any combination equivalent to graduation from high school and two years experience in clerical, secretarial or

receptionist work in a multi-department organization.

Licenses/Certificates/Special Requirements:
Ability to speak multiple languages is preferred.

PHYSICAL STANDARDS AND WORKING CONDITIONS:

The physical and mental demands and work environment described here are representative of those that must be met by
employees to successfully perform the essential functions of this class. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. These physical demands are generic in nature and tasks may vary
dependent on specific trade and or specialized work assignment.

Physical Demands:

Physical demands of this position include sitting for most of the time, but may involve walking or standing for
brief periods; the manual dexterity to operate business related equipment, and handle and work with various
materials and objects are important aspects of this job.

Mental Demands:

Employee must be able to use written and oral communication skills; read and interpret data, information, and
documents; interpret policies and procedures; use math and mathematical reasoning; work with constant
interruptions; and interact cooperatively with District staff, vendors, contractors, other organizations, and the
general public.

Work Environment:
While performing the duties of this position, employees will work in an office setting where the noise level is
usually quiet. Negative interactions with employees and vendors can result in stressful situations,

The information contained in the physical standards description is for compliance with ADA and is not an exhaustive list of
duties performed. Individuals who hold this position may perform additional duties and additional duties may beassigned.

Receptionist/Office Assistant Page 2

Board Approved: November 26, 1973; January 14, 2013; September 9, 2019, March 7, 2022

Revised: May 6, 1983; January 14, 2013; May 2015
Reviewed: August 1984; September 1993



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

ECRETARY SPECIAL EDUCATION AND HEALTH SERVICES

Classified Salary Schedule

Range 21

JOB SUMMARY:

Under supervision of the Director of Special Education; performs secretarial and clerical functions related to the
Special Education Department, computer-based management of information, and other duties as assigned.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:
The duties listed below are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be performed. The omission of specific
statements of duties does not exclude them_from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the classification.

Prepare and assist with reports including but not limited to student performance, staffing, and student
attendance/enroliment.

Assist with professional development/collaboration presentations, special projects and provide clerical
support for professional development including registration, event planning and technology set-up.
Assist with the organization of parent/guardian meetings and presentations.

Maintain a calendar of all department activities.

Maintain accurate and complete site-specific case load files.

Maintain accurate student database (SEIS, CALPADS, AERIES) and reporting.

Medi-Cal Programs Coordinator.

Maintain all special education program records in compliance with State, Federal and District guidelines.
Assist with annual transition Individual Education Plans (IEPs) and the transfer of files from feeder
schools.

Prepare documents such as the Parent Handbook, Staff Handbook etc.

Assist with the organization of the Extended School Year program.

Process mileage and incidental expense claims, purchase orders, low incidence requests

etc., for all special education staff.

Provide administrative support to program director including, but not limited to preparation of
presentations, confidential files, tracking, calendar management, correspondence and answering all
incoming calls.

Knowledge of special education laws and regulations related to documentation and reporting.
Maintains the locked confidential student files for LJSD.

Assists with Department of Education reporting requirements.

Process all contracts with Non-public schools, Non- public agencies and specialists providing services for
Special Education Department.

Process submitted IEP’s and review for accuracy and compliance, including verification ofservice.
Report weekly on the completeness and timeliness etc. of IEPs

Maintain inventory and order all department supplies and equipment.

Assists with coordination of student transportation needs.

Must be able to meet and interact with employees and parents/guardians in routine situations, which
require tact, discretion, and courtesy.

Attend district offered trainings.

Administrative Secretary- SECRETARY SPECIAL EDUCATION AND HEALTH SERVICES



QUALIFICATION GUIDELINES:

Knowledge of:

e Knowledge of office procedures and practices, including filing systems, receptionist and telephone
techniques, letter and report writing, and sound bookkeeping procedures; English usage, spelling, grammar
and punctuation; ability to operate common office machines.

e Ability to interpret and apply pertinent school district procedures, policies, laws, rules and regulations, and
to apply them with good judgment in a variety of situations.

e Proficient in use of word processing, spreadsheets, and database management software.

e Knowledge of confidentiality laws.

o Meets the public tactfully and courteously and answer questions correctly; compile and maintain accurate
records and files.

e Understand and carry out oral and written directions, establish and maintain cooperative relationships with
those contacted in the course of work.

Ability to:

Ability to use a computer and other job-related software.

Ability to read and comprehend simple instructions, correspondence, and memos.

Ability to communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

Ability to effectively present information in one-on-one and small group situations to staff, parents,
students, administrators and the public.

Education/Training Experience:
¢ High school diploma or equivalent.
e Previous experience with special education law, procedures and policies and Special Education
Information System (preferably SEIS) preferred.
e Secretarial, clerical and computer experience in a school setting is also preferred.

PHYSICAL STANDARDS AND WORKING CONDITIONS:

The physical and mental demands and work environment described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to
perform the essential functions. These physical demands are generic in nature and tasks may vary dependent on specific trade and/or
specialized work assignment. The information contained in the physical standards description is for compliance with ADA and is not an
exhaustive list of duties performed. Individuals who hold this position may perform additional duties and additional duties may be assigned.

Physical Demands:
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to stand, walk, and sit. The
employee is occasionally required to stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl. The employee will occasionally lift
and/or push up to 40 lbs. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision, distance vision, and
depth perception.

Mental Demands:
Employees must be able to comprehend and follow written and oral instructions; read and interpret data,
information and documents; interpret policies and procedures; work under deadlines with interruptions; and
interact cooperatively with District staff, students, and parents.

Administrative Secretary- SECRETARY SPECIAL EDUCATION AND HEALTH SERVICES



Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters while
performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals

with disabilities to perform the essential functions. The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate
to loud.

WORK PERIOD:

12 months per year, 5 days per week, 8 hours per day.

Board Approved: March 7, 2022
Revised: March 7, 2022

Administrative Secretary- SECRETARY SPECIAL EDUCATION AND HEALTH SERVICES



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of Agreement with Chris Becerra ACTION

Consulting Services to Provide Services during
2021-2022 School Year

Universal prekindergarten (UPK) implementation is a part of the California Department of
Education’s Preschool through Third Grade Alignment initiative that supports strategies to
improve policies and practices. The District’s UPK plan must be presented to the Board for
approval by June 30, 2022. Chris Becerra Consulting Services will provide support in
developing this plan for our district. Mr. Becerra has supported the Alta Loma School
District, the Orange County Department of Education, and Brea Olinda Unified School
District in the area of child development in addition to work with the YMCA and the City of
Placentia. He is an adjunct professor at multiple colleges for Early Childhood Education and
will be able to support system development for Early Childhood in Lowell Joint under the
Universal Pre-Kindergarten planning. Mr. Becerras’ contracted fee is $150 per hour with an
amount not to exceed $10,000 for the school year. Costs will be covered by Universal Pre-
Kindergarten Planning money allocated to our district.

It is recommended that the Agreement with Chris Becerra Consulting Services be approved
and the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-D1-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject: Approval of Extended Field Trip to Catalina Island Marine
Institute from March 14-16, 2022 ACTION

There will be 49 sixth-grade students from Macy Elementary School participating in an
extended field trip to Catalina Island Marine Institute from Monday, March 14, 2022, to,
Wednesday, March 16, 2022. Students will enjoy a variety of experiential science labs and
adventure activities in Marine Science and Island Ecology. Supervision will be provided by
3 staff members and 8 parent volunteers.

Supervision will be provided by the following individuals:
Patty Jacobsen (Staff)
Ashley Solis (Staff)

Maya Picado (Staff)

Kim Johnson (Parent)
Yuni Sharkey (Parent)
Cassie Tolmasoff (Parent)
Maggie Beven (Parent)
Lee Perine (Parent)

Ed Gutierres (Parent)
Jason Toettcher (Parent)
Whitney Peterson (Parent)

It is recommended that the extended field trip to Catalina Island Marine Institute be
approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-D2-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of Consultant Agreement with Nancy J. ACTION

Kemp to Provide Consultation for Data Support
at Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School for the
2021/22 School Year

Arrangements have been made with Nancy J. Kemp to provide data support (iReady, GPA &
CAASPP) for the 2021/22 school year at Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School. Ms.
Kemp’s contract amount is not to exceed $2000.00 for the school year. Funding for this
expenditure will be covered by Rancho-Starbuck’s Site Funds.

It is recommended that the consultant agreement with Nancy J. Kemp to provide data support
during the 2021/22 school year at Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School, at an amount not to
exceed $2000.00, be approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to
execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-D3-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of Consultant Agreement with Isabel ACTION

Araiza to Provide Drumline Instruction at
Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School for the
2021/22 School Year

Arrangements have been made with Isabel Araiza to provide drumline instruction for the
2021/22 school year at Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School. Ms. Araiza’s contract amount
is not to exceed $500.00 for the school year. Funding for this expenditure will be covered by
Rancho-Starbuck’s Band Funds.

It is recommended that the consultant agreement with Isabel Araiza to provide drumline
instruction during the 2021/22 school year at Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School, at an
amount not to exceed $500.00, be approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-D4-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
March 7, 2022

To: President Salinas and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of Agreement #10000593 with Orange ACTION

County Department of Education

OCDE Operates and maintains a Quality Ratings and Implementation System (QRIS)
program within Orange County, referred to as Quality Start OC. Our District has voluntarily
agreed to participate in Quality Start OC. OCDE and the Children and Families Commission
of Orange County jointly applied for and were awarded Quality Counts California (QCC)
Local Consortia and Partnership Grants. The Lowell Joint Maybrook Learning Link will
receive a $1,000 stipend as part of the grant in addition to free technical support for the
Learning Link. There is no cost to the District to participate in this Agreement. This
agreement begins July 1, 2021 and will end no later than June 30, 2022.

It is recommended that the Agreement with the Orange County Department of Education be
approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-D5-1



